
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Audit Committee 

on Tuesday, 9 April 2019, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the Bindloss Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 
 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Matt Brereton 

Sheila Capstick 

Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 

Tracy Coward 

Eamonn Hennessy 

Kevin Lancaster 

Matt Severn 

 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
 
Friday, 29 March 2019 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Inge Booth 

 

Telephone: 01539 793190 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 14 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 5 December 2018. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 

Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 

If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  AUDIT COMMITTEE 2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME  15 - 18 

 To consider progress against the Committee’s 2018/19 Work Programme.  

6  AUDIT COMMITTEE 2019/20 WORK PROGRAMME  19 - 22 

 To consider a draft Work Programme for 2019/20.  (The Programme can be 
adapted as necessary during the year.  Firm meeting dates will be set when the 
Council considers the Calendar of Meetings for the forthcoming year at the 
Annual Meeting on 21 May 2019.) 

 

7  CHAIR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE'S ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19  23 - 34 

 To consider the Chair of the Audit Committee’s draft Annual Report which 
summarises the activities of the Committee during 2018/19. 

 

Regulatory Framework   

8  REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT PROCESS  

35 - 64 

 To consider an update to the Performance Management Framework and the 
Risk Process. 

 

9  RISK MANAGEMENT - OPERATIONAL RISKS  65 - 82 

 To consider the operational risks which are positioned above the line of risk 
tolerance and the reviewed Strategic Risk No.5, Impact of the Welfare Reform 
on Communities. 

 



External Audit   

10  EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S PROGRESS REPORT AND UPDATE  83 - 98 

 To consider a summary of the External Auditor’s progress to date and emerging 
issues and developments that may be relevant to the Council. 

 

11  CERTIFICATION WORK FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL FOR 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018  

99 - 102 

 To consider a letter from External Audit on certification work for South Lakeland 
District Council for year ended 31 March 2018. 

 

12  EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019  

103 - 116 

 To consider the Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council year ending 
31 March 2019. 

 

Internal Audit   

13  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2018/19  117 - 204 

 To consider progress achieved in delivering the Internal Audit Plan to date in 
2018/19, including seven final Internal Audit reports and an update on progress 
achieved in implementing recommendations from previous internal audit 
reviews. 

 

14  INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19  205 - 212 

 To consider a summary of the outcomes of the work of the internal audit 
provided by TIAA Limited for South Lakeland District Council for 2018/19, 
including the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s arrangements for risk management, governance and internal control. 

 

15  INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2019/20  213 - 228 

 To consider the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019/20.  

Financial Issues   

16  OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES   

 To consider a verbal update from the Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 
Officer) on any other significant financial issues. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)  

 

17  CUSTOMER CONNECT PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT  
 
- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
 

229 - 246 

 Further to AUD (2018/19), to consider an update on the management of the 
Customer Connect Programme. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



13 
05.12.2018 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Audit Committee held in the District 
Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Wednesday, 5 December 2018, at 
6.30 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 
 

Matt Brereton 
Sheila Capstick 

 

Tracy Coward 
Eamonn Hennessy 

 

Kevin Lancaster 
Matt Severn 

 
Officers 

 
Sarah Berry Projects and Innovation Officer 

Inge Booth Senior Committee Services Officer 

John Davies Performance and Risk Officer 

Lee Hurst Chief Accountant 

Anthea Lowe Solicitor to the Council 

Shelagh McGregor Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Simon McVey Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 

Paul Mountford Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer 

Helen Smith Financial Services Manager 

 
Also in attendance were Peter Harrison (Internal Audit Manager) and Gareth Kelly 
(External Audit Manager). 
 

AUD/26 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT  
 
The Chairman referred to the recent passing of Councillor Ian Stewart, Vice-Chairman of 
the Audit Committee, and paid tribute to his work and commitment to the Audit Committee 
over several years. 
 

AUD/27 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting of the Committee held on 19 September 2018. 
 

AUD/28 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

AUD/29 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



14 
05.12.2018 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/30 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
The Performance and Risk Officer presented the Strategic Risk Register (Quarter 2) 2018 
which outlined all of those risks above and below the line of risk tolerance. Mitigations 
designed to reduce the risks in terms of likelihood or impact or both were listed against 
each risk above the line of tolerance.  The Strategic Risk Register was reviewed by Senior 
Management Team each quarter as part of the Council’s quarterly performance 
monitoring and reporting arrangements and that review had informed this report. 
 
The Performance and Risk Officer drew attention to the fact that over 73% of the Strategic 
Risks were now positioned below the level of risk tolerance which demonstrated the 
effective mitigation and regular review of the risks. 
 
At its meeting on 25 July 2018, the Audit Committee had suggested that the Strategic Risk 
‘Medium Term Financial Plan’ may have a higher impact than indicated on the risk matrix 
due to future uncertainty over Government spending reviews.  Officers had subsequently 
undertaken a review of the risk and it had been decided that the matrix position for 
likelihood and impact was appropriate. 
 
Since the meeting of the Audit Committee on 25 July 2018, one new Strategic Risk has 
been added to the Register.  This new risk was ‘Business Continuity: Flu Pandemic - Loss 
of people, skills and supply chain disruption.’  Flu Pandemic was listed in the National 
Risk Register and the Cumbria Community Risk Register. 
 
A separate item on the Agenda, Customer Connect Programme Management, included 
information on Customer Connect risks. 
 
The Performance and Risk Officer referred to Risks 6, 9, 14 and 15, which were currently 
positioned above the line of appetite, and drew attention to the mitigations in place to 
manage them.  In response to a query with regard to the position below tolerance of Risk 
5 (Impact of the Welfare Reform on Communities) and concern expressed given the 
potential adverse impact of Universal Credit, he undertook to carry out an early review of 
the risk. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Strategic Risk Register, as at Appendix 1 to the report, be noted. 
 

AUD/31 IMPLEMENTATION OF GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATIONS AND DATA 
PROTECTION ACT 2018  
 
The Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer informed Members that the Data 
Protection Act 2018 (DPA) covered the use of personal data within the scope of the 
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and beyond it.  Amongst other provisions, it 
repealed and replaced the Data Protection Act 1998, incorporated the GDPR into UK law, 
laid the ground for the free-flow of data between the United Kingdom and the European 
Union after Brexit, set out permitted exemptions under the GDPR and set out the duties 
and powers of the UK's Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO). 
 
With administrative fines under the new DPA now having an upper limit of 20 million 
Euros, it was crucial that the Council was compliant with the GDPR/ DPA, as it had been 
under the Data Protection Act 1998.  The report sets out the work undertaken to prepare 
for and implement GDPR across the Council. 
 

Page 6



15 
05.12.2018 Audit Committee 
 

 

The General Data Protection Regulations Project Initiation Document had been presented 
to Audit Committee on 6 December 2017 and set out the scope, objectives, outcomes and 
deliverables of the project. 
 
The Information Governance Board, as outlined in the General Data Protection 
Regulations Project Initiation Document, had been established to ensure senior 
leadership, drive and accountability. 
 
The current Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer had been appointed as the 
Council’s Organisational Data Protection Officer.  He had qualified as a General Data 
Protection Regulation Practitioner. 
 
A number of activities were in operation to ensure continued compliance with the law, 
details of which were provided within the report. 
 
A number of documents, some of which were named within the report, had been formally 
reviewed by the Management Team and/or Cabinet (where appropriate) to assist 
Members, Officers, and members of the public. 
 
The Council’s Information Asset Register was complete and had been published on the 
Council’s SharePoint site.  The Council’s Register of Processing Activity, in accordance 
with Article 30 of the GDPR, was complete and had been published on the Council’s 
dedicated Data Protection SharePoint page. 
 
An Information Asset Register (IAR) was a simple way to help the Council understand and 
manage its information assets and the risks to them.  It was important to know and fully 
understand what information the Council held in order to protect it. 
 
In support of the Council’s IAR, the Information Handling and Classification Protocol was 
in place and would be applied in accordance with the overall GDPR/DPA 2018 
implementation. 
 
A generic corporate Privacy Notice had been published on the Council’s website covering 
all services provided by the Councils.  Alongside this Privacy Notice, service specific 
Privacy Notices for every service were being added.  Privacy Notices advised the 
Council’s customers what information about them was collected, when it was collected, 
how it was used, how long it was kept and whether it was shared, and with whom.  The 
Notices also set out peoples’ rights under GDPR and DPA 2018.  Publication of Privacy 
Notices was an ongoing task, and the Notices published to date could be found on the 
Council’s website. 

A Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) had to be performed where processing was 
likely to result in a high risk to the rights and freedoms of natural persons.  Where the 
Information Asset Registers had identified that the Council was holding sensitive data (for 
example ethnic origin, religion, health data), a DPIA would need to be completed to risk 
assess such data and ensure it was held as securely as possible. 

A template Data Processing Agreement had been implemented and shared with 
Procurement Services which would accompany all procurement documents where it was 
considered relevant. 

A Data Breach Notification Protocol was in place and was available to all Officers through 
the dedicated Data Protection SharePoint page. 

A procedure for implementing the Subject Access process was in place.  The amended 
Subject Access Request form was available to the public via the Council’s website. 
 

Page 7



16 
05.12.2018 Audit Committee 
 

 

In closing, the Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer informed Members that an 
audit of Information Governance was due to take place in February 2019.  In response to 
a query raised about cyber security and robustness of systems, he explained that he had 
been working closely with the IT department with regard to site security and a full audit 
had been carried out to ensure that governance arrangements were in place.  Additional 
work was being carried out around firewalls and updates and how data was retained, 
either on or off site.  Work was also ongoing regarding the issue of the Right to be 
Forgotten. 
 
The Chairman referred to the delivery of training for Members and requested that the 
relevant slides be made available.  He also raised the need for Members to be aware of 
their individual responsibilities with regard to meeting the Information Commissioner’s 
Office requirements.  
 
RESOLVED – That the update on the introduction of the General Data Protection 
Regulations and Data Protection Act 2018 across the Council be noted. 
 

AUD/32 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraph indicated. 
 

AUD/33 CUSTOMER CONNECT PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT 
 
- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information)  
 
Further to AUD/13 (2018/19), the Assistant Director Performance and Innovation, the 
Senior Responsible Officer and Senior Lead for the Customer Connect Programme, and 
the Projects and Innovation Officer, acting as Customer Connect Programme Officer, 
provided a further update on the management of the Customer Connect Programme and, 
specifically, the Programme’s risks and programme spend against budget. 

The Customer Connect Programme Officer presented a live version of the risk register 
which contained the most up to date information. 

Both officers responded to queries raised by Members of the Committee. 

RESOLVED – That the following be noted:- 

(1) the Programme Management Workbook at Appendix 1 to the report, including:- 
• summary page; 
• risk heat map; 
• risk log; 
• issue log; 
• dependency log; 
• change log; and 
• product log; and 

(2) the monthly Programme Overview of Spend against the approved budget at 
Appendix 2 to the report. 
 

Page 8



17 
05.12.2018 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/34 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 

AUD/35 AUDIT COMMITTEE 2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Financial Services Manager advised that there had been no changes to the Work 
Programme since the last meeting, however, that she intended to update the name of the 
Lead Officer for External Audit to reflect that there had been a change in Grant Thornton’s 
Engagement Lead from John Farrer to Gareth Kelly. 
 
RESOLVED – That progress against the 2018/19 Work Programme be noted. 
 

AUD/36 EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S PROGRESS REPORT AND UPDATE  
 
Gareth Kelly, External Audit, presented a report providing the Committee with a summary 
of the progress made by Grant Thornton in delivering their responsibilities as the Council’s 
External Auditors as of November 2018.  The report also included details of emerging 
national issues and developments that might be relevant to the Council. 
 
In presenting the report, Mr Kelly indicated that External Audit had now concluded the 
certification work for the 2018/19 claim, in line with the November deadline.  Planning 
processes had commenced for the 2018/19 financial year audit.  He also drew particular 
attention to Grant Thornton’s recent report on latest trends in local authority trading 
companies which, he felt, provided practical information. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress made by External Auditors be noted. 
 

AUD/37 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2018/19  
 
Peter Harrison, Internal Audit, introduced the Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19. The 
report provided a summary of the progress against the Internal Audit Annual Plan as at 
20 November 2018. 
 
Following the Internal Audit Plan’s approval by Committee in April 2018, five assurance 
reviews had been finalised and the report contained the executive summary of the one 
which had been completed since the last meeting, Business Continuity.  It had been 
intended that three other reports would be presented to this meeting of the Committee and 
reasons for the delay were provided.  These reports on Use of Agency, Interim and 
Casual Workers; Health and Safety – Property Risks; and Cyber Security, would now be 
presented to the Committee in April 2019.  There had been no changes proposed to the 
Annual Plan, however, the proposed audit of additional DFG monies had been cancelled, 
as the Council had not drawn down any grant. 
 
Mr Harrison presented the executive summary relating to the review of Business 
Continuity which had resulted in an assessment of substantial assurance, no action points 
having been identified.  The overall conclusion was that the Council had robust Business 
Continuity arrangements in place to prevent or minimise the time that the public were 
separated from critical services.  The Chairman commended the assessment of 
substantial assurance, as this was an area which had been of concern for a number of 
years. 
 

Page 9



18 
05.12.2018 Audit Committee 
 

 

Internal Audit had also assessed the extent to which previous internal audit 
recommendations had been implemented. The report showed that 16 recommendations 
were yet to be implemented.  Nine were on target and there were seven in progress 
where the original target dates had not been met.  11 recommendations had been 
implemented and were now considered closed. 
 
RESOLVED – That the following be noted:- 
 
(1) the progress achieved in 2018/19 in delivering the Audit Plan and the outcomes of 
completed audit reviews, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report;  
 
(2) the attached audit report, as set out in Appendix 2 to the report; and 
 
(3) the status of outstanding recommendations contained within the follow up report, 
as set out in Appendix 3 to the report. 
 

AUD/38 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2018/19  
 
The Chief Accountant presented a report outlining proposed accounting policies to be 
adopted for the 2018/19 financial year and to be used in the preparation of the Statement 
of Accounts for the financial year ending 31 March 2018.  These had been prepared in 
line with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2018/19 (the Code). 
 
The Chief Accountant explained that the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting provided a definition of accounting policies which, essentially, set out that 
accounting policies should be the cornerstone of good financial control and should explain 
how an organisation applied accounting standards and legislation.  He went on to explain 
that, whilst there was little discretion in which accounting policies to adopt, there was 
some flexibility in the accounting methods that could be followed. 

There had been substantial changes to the 2018/19 CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting which had come into effect for financial years beginning 1 April 2018.  
These changes were in the areas of Revenue recognition and Financial Instruments due 
to the adoption, by the Code, of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 15 - 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments.  The 
adoption of these new IFRSs in the 2018/19 Code constituted a change in accounting 
policy which would normally require restatement of the previous year’s accounts, but the 
Code contained provisions for transitional arrangements which only required adjustments 
to 1 April 2018 opening balances rather than full prior-year restatement. 

As a result of the adoption of IFRSs 15 and 9 in the 2018/19 Code, the Council’s own 
Accounting Policies for 2018/19, presented at Appendix 1 to the report, had been updated 
to ensure they remained in line with the 2018/19 Code requirements, and details of the 
changes were provided. 

At the time of writing the report, the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government had just published the results of a consultation on a statutory override for 
Local Government in relation to accounting for IFRS 9.  This meant that some charges to 
the accounts as a result of adopting IFRS 9 should be statutorily reversed.  Because of 
this consultation outcome, CIPFA had delayed publication of the CIPFA’s Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2018/19 Guidance Notes for 
Practitioners.  Therefore, the Council’s current accounting policy was based on the 
original legislation and draft guidance.  Once published, should the new legislation and 
guidance require any change to the Council’s accounting policies, a further report would 
be brought to a future meeting of the Audit Committee. 

Page 10



19 
05.12.2018 Audit Committee 
 

 

 
It was good practice to consider and adopt the accounting policies in advance of the 
production and approval of the draft accounts.  By statute, preparation of draft accounts 
had come forward to 31 May following the relevant year end, for financial years 2017/18 
onwards.  At the same time, the audited statements needed to be published by 31 July 
following the relevant financial year end; the Council had successfully prepared the 
2017/18 accounts to the new timetable. 
 
RESOLVED – That the accounting policies, as set out at Appendix 1 to the report, be 
adopted for closure of the 2017/18 Accounts. 
 

AUD/39 REVIEW OF CONSTITUTION  
 
The Audit Committee’s Contribution to the Review of the Constitution was presented by 
the Financial Services Manager.  The review concentrated on the areas of the 
Constitution with a direct impact on the financial controls of the Council contained within 
the Financial Procedure Rules and the Contract Procedure Rules and fed into the 
Monitoring Officer’s annual review of the Constitution. 
 
The review had identified a number of changes which were highlighted within the 
appendices to the report, namely:- 
 

 to extend the current virement rules for revenue budgets to capital programme and 
reserves; 

 to clarify terminology and update references to other documents; 

 to propose more delegation around the use of reserves.  Under the current 
arrangements approval to use reserves is needed from Council as part of the final 
accounts process but there is not a Council meeting between the finalisation of the 
reserve movements and the approval of the accounts by Audit Committee; 

 to clarify that the Monitoring Officer can agree it is not expedient to comply with certain 
contract requirements, such as signing under seal or the use of Council policies.  This 
reflects the growing use of framework agreements where the terms and conditions to 
be used have already been agreed and will give the Council appropriate protection; 
and 

 to remove references to paper tenders: all tender documents are now submitted 
electronically. 

 
The changes proposed would apply from the date of Council approval for the remainder of 
the current financial year and subsequent years. 
 
Further amendment of the Constitution would be required to reflect changes to the 
Leadership structure and other changes to job titles.  These changes would be included in 
the Monitoring Officer’s review of the Constitution and would not be separately reviewed 
by Audit Committee before submission to Council. 
 
RESOLVED – That the proposals for amendments to the Constitution, as set out within 
the appendices to the report, be recommended to Council for approval. 

AUD/40 AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER  

The updated Audit Committee Risk Register was presented by the Financial Services 
Manager.  The Risk Register had last been reviewed by the Committee on 25 July 2018 
and the recommendations from that meeting had been included within the update.  The 
Financial Services Manager had not identified any further proposals for change. 

RESOLVED – That the updated Audit Committee Risk Register be noted. 

Page 11



20 
05.12.2018 Audit Committee 
 

 

 

AUD/41 REVIEW OF LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE  
 
The review of the Local Code of Governance was presented by the Financial Services 
Manager. 
 
Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015), the Council was required to review the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control annually and report this through an Annual 
Governance Statement. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) had published a revised version of their governance framework for local 
authorities. This counted as proper practice and was to be applied for financial years from 
1 April 2016 onwards. The new framework had been re-arranged from the previous 
framework’s six principles to seven, in line with CIPFA’s broader International Framework: 
Good Governance in the Public Sector (2014). 
 
The Local Code approved in December 2015 and Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
had been prepared under the new framework for 2016/17 and 2017/18.  During 2017/18 
the Council’s internal auditors had undertaken a review of the Local Code and had 
concluded that there was reasonable assurance but that the existing procedures could be 
streamlined.  The recommendations had been:- 
 

 To evidence greater alignment with the Guidance, self-assessment be made against 
each of the Guidance's suggested Examples of Behaviours and Actions, rather than 
(or as well as) against the adopted sub-principles of its Local Code. 

 The Responsible Officer for each adopted sub-principle in the Local Code be 
referenced in all cases to the Officer's post, rather than to the Officer's name or a 
reference to the Constitution. 

 The spreadsheet that is used to evidence compliance with the Local Code be updated 
to reflect the proposed changes to the Local Code that were presented to the Audit 
Committee and subsequently to Council in December 2017. 

 The mapping of the Guidance behaviours and actions that demonstrate good 
governance in practice be mapped only to sub-principles in the Local Code that 
pertain to the same principle to which the behaviour and action relate. 

 Each line in the Guidance's list of examples of systems, processes, documentation 
and other evidence demonstrating compliance be mapped to a referenced sub-
principle, rather than being marked as duplicate. 

 
The first three recommendations had been implemented in the AGS for 2017/18.  The last 
two recommendations required changes to the Local Code of Governance itself. 
 
There had been one action added to the Local Code:- 
 

 D14 - Consider social value when preparing service plans, considering procurement 
and commissioning and monitoring performance. 

 
References to local area agreements had been removed and references to standards and 
guidance had been updated.  The majority of amendments were to include behaviours 
and actions under all principles to which they applied.  As a result some behaviours and 
actions were duplicated. 
 
Appendix 3 to the report showed the CIPFA principles, sub-principles, example 
behaviours and actions that demonstrate good governance in practice and examples from 
the CIPFA guidance with the Local Code reference for each. 
 

Page 12



21 
05.12.2018 Audit Committee 
 

 

An action plan to address areas for improvement in the Council’s governance 
arrangements had been presented as part of the approved 2017/18 AGS.  This had been 
presented to Audit Committee on 25 July 2018.  Appendix 4 provided an update on 
progress against the various actions. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the proposed revisions to the Local Code of Governance, as at Appendix 1 to the 
report, be noted; 
 
(2) Council be recommended to approve the amended Code, as at Appendix 2 to the 
report; and 
 
(3) the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan, as at Appendix 3 to the report, be 
noted. 
 

AUD/42 REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 
The Financial Services Manager reported that the annual review of the Audit Committee’s 
effectiveness had been carried out using principles established by the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 
 
Members were informed that CIPFA had published updated Practical Guidance for Local 
Authority and Police Audit Committees in 2018, which included the suggestion that a lay 
or independent member should be included in Audit Committees, although this was not a 
requirement. 
 
The conclusion of the review, which used a questionnaire approach shown at Appendix 1 
to the report, was that the Committee could demonstrate that it had been established in 
accordance with best practice and that it continued to operate effectively, whilst operating 
without an independent member.  The Committee needed to be alert to any changes in its 
membership and the expertise of its Members so that suitable training could be arranged 
and Appendix 2 to the report included a skills framework. 
 
CIPFA’s Practical Guidance also included suggested terms of reference for audit 
committees and it was pointed out that the Committee’s Terms of Reference had been 
revised in December 2014 to reflect this.  The Practical Guidance also included possible 
wider functions of an audit committee:- 
 

 considering governance, risk or control matters at the request of other committees or 
statutory officers; 

 working with local standards committees to support ethical values and reviewing the 
arrangements to support those values; and 

 reviewing and monitoring treasury management arrangements in accordance with the 
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice. 

 
Audit Committee did support some work of the Standards Committee to support ethical 
values, particularly around reviewing whistleblowing arrangements.  For South Lakeland 
District Council, the treasury management scrutiny function was carried out by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The Terms of Reference did not refer to requests for 
consideration of matters from other committees or statutory officers: any such proposals 
needed to be considered on a case-by-case basis, bearing in mind the need to maintain 
the independence of the Audit Committee. 
 

Page 13



22 
05.12.2018 Audit Committee 
 

 

Members discussed the suitability of seeking an independent member to sit on the 
Committee.  Both Gareth Kelly, External Audit, and Peter Harrison, Internal Audit, were of 
the opinion that this was not necessary in the context of local government.  The 
Committee did not feel it appropriate at this time to make such an appointment, however, 
suggested that the matter be kept under review. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the review, and its conclusion that the Audit Committee is operating effectively in 
all material aspects, be approved; 
 
(2) an independent member be not sought for the Audit Committee at this time; and 
 
(3) the skills framework for members of the Audit Committee, as at Appendix 2 to the 
report, be noted. 
 

AUD/43 OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES  
 
The Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) drew attention to the fact that the 
2019/20 to 2023/24 Draft Budget was due to be considered by Council at its meeting on 
18 December 2018.  She referred to the fact that the Local Government finance 
settlement had been delayed due to discussions on Brexit, however, advised that a verbal 
update would be incorporated at the meeting, as necessary. 
 
RESOLVED – That the verbal update be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 7.45 p.m. 

Page 14



09/04/2019 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 1 of 4 

 

 Lead Officer 25 July  19 Sept   5 Dec  9 April  

Committee Administration  

Committee Terms of Reference Una Bell √    

Set work programme for coming year Helen Smith    √ 

Review progress against current work 
programme  

Helen Smith √ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings  

Helen Smith √ As needed As needed As needed  

Chair’s Audit Committee Annual Report 
(Referral to Council) 

Helen 
Smith/Chair 

   √ 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Inge Booth  √   

External Audit 

2017/18 Annual Audit Letter Gareth Kelly  √   

2017/18 Grant Certification Report 
Gareth Kelly 

   √ 

2018/19 Opinion Audit Plan 
Gareth Kelly 

   √ 

Audit Fee Letter  

Gareth Kelly 
√  

(2018/19 Audit) 
   

External Auditor Update Gareth Kelly   √ √ 

P
age 15

Item
 N

o.5



09/04/2019 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 2 of 4 

 Lead Officer 25 July  19 Sept   5 Dec  9 April  

Internal Audit 

2017/18 Annual Internal Audit Report Peter Harrison √   √ 

2018/19 Internal Audit Plan Progress & 
Individual Internal Audit Reports 
Recommendation Follow Up Report  

Peter Harrison √ √ √ √ 

2019/20 Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including 
review of Internal Audit Charter) 

Peter Harrison    √ 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith  √   

Accounts 

Approve the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts 

Annual Governance Statement and Action 
Plan 

Sign letter of representation 

Helen Smith √    

2017/18 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report) 

Gareth Kelly √    

Review Accounting Policies for 2018/19 
Statement of Accounts 

 

Lee Hurst / 
Helen Smith 

  √   

P
age 16



09/04/2019 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 3 of 4 

 Lead Officer 25 July  19 Sept   5 Dec  9 April  

Regulatory Framework 

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the Statement of Accounts Report  

Helen Smith Incorporated into Statement of Accounts 

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   √  

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity 
Helen 

Smith/Katie 
Booth 

 √   

Review Whistleblowing Policy Helen Smith  
Bi-annual, due 

Sept 2019 
  

Review of Performance and Risk 
Management Framework 

Simon McVey    √ 

Review of Operational Risks above the line of 
risk tolerance  

Simon McVey 
 

  √ 

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √  √  

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance   Helen Smith   √  

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith   √  

Introduction of General Data Protection 
Regulations and Data Protection Bill 

Paul Mountford   √  

P
age 17



09/04/2019 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 4 of 4 

 Lead Officer 25 July  19 Sept   5 Dec  9 April  

 
Financial Issues 
 

Customer Connect Business Case & Updates Simon McVey √ √ √ √ 

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Helen Smith As required 

 

P
age 18



9/04/2019 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2019/20 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 1 of 4 

 

 Lead Officer  July   Sept    Dec   April  

Committee Administration  

Committee Terms of Reference Una Bell √    

Set work programme for coming year Helen Smith    √ 

Review progress against work programme  Helen Smith √ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings  

Helen Smith √ As needed As needed As needed  

Chair’s Audit Committee Annual Report 
(Referral to Council) 

Helen 
Smith/Chair 

   √ 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Inge Booth  √   

External Audit 

2018/19 Annual Audit Letter Gareth Kelly  √   

2018/19 Grant Certification Report Gareth Kelly    √ 

2019/20 Opinion Audit Plan Gareth Kelly    √ 

Audit Fee Letter  Gareth Kelly √     

External Auditor Update Gareth Kelly   √ √ 

P
age 19

Item
 N

o.6



9/04/2019 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2019/20 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 2 of 4 

 

Internal Audit 

2018/19 Annual Internal Audit Report Peter Harrison    √ 

2019/20 Internal Audit Plan Progress & 
Individual Internal Audit Reports 
Recommendation Follow Up Report  

Peter Harrison √ √ √ √ 

2020/21 Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including 
review of Internal Audit Charter) 

Peter Harrison    √ 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith  √   

Accounts 

Approve the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts 

Annual Governance Statement and Action 
Plan 

Sign letter of representation 

Helen Smith √    

2018/19 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report) 

Gareth Kelly √    

Review Accounting Policies for 2019/20 
Statement of Accounts 

Helen Smith   √   

P
age 20



9/04/2019 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2019/20 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 3 of 4 

 

Regulatory Framework 

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the Statement of Accounts Report  

Helen Smith Incorporated into Statement of Accounts 

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   √  

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity 
Helen 

Smith/Katie 
Booth 

 √   

Review Whistleblowing Policy Helen Smith  
Bi-annual, due 

Sept 2019 
  

Review of Performance and Risk 
Management Framework 

Simon McVey    √ 

Review of Operational Risks above the line of 
risk tolerance  

Simon McVey 
 

  √ 

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √  √  

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance   Helen Smith   √  

 

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness 

 

 

Helen Smith   √  

P
age 21



9/04/2019 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2019/20 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 4 of 4 

 
Financial Issues 
 

Customer Connect Business Case & Updates Simon McVey √ √ √ √ 

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Helen Smith As required 

 

P
age 22



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee  

9 April 2019 

CHAIR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE’S ANNUAL 
REPORT 2018/19 

PORTFOLIO: not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Cllr Stephen Coleman - Chairman of the Audit 
Committee 

REPORT AUTHOR: Shelagh McGregor, CFO & Helen Smith – Financial 
Services Manager 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to summarise the activities of the Audit Committee 
during the current Council year 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) consider the draft report; and 

(2) authorise the Chairman to submit it, with any agreed amendments, to 
Council. 

BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1  The terms of reference of the Audit Committee require the Committee to report 
annually to Council on its work for the year.  As well as informing Councillors 
generally, the report helps to demonstrate the continuing effectiveness of the 
Committee. 

3.2 The attached draft report describes the Committee’s work during 2018/19, 
grouped under functional headings.  For completeness, agenda items for this 
meeting are included in the report on the assumption that they will be accepted: 
if necessary, changes will be made to reflect any different outcome.  The 
Council year has been chosen for reporting purposes although this means that 
some cases do not fit the normal reporting cycle. 

4.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 The Committee’s terms of reference require the Chairman to produce this 
report; its contents are subject to consideration by Members. 

 

Page 23

Item No.7



5.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

5.1 To develop and embed a high performance culture. 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 This report has no direct financial implications 

6.2 Human Resources 

6.2.1 There are no direct human resources implications of this report. 

6.3 Legal 

6.3.1 There are no direct legal implications of this report. 

6.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

6.4.1  

Have you completed and Health, Social, Economic 
and Environmental Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, 
please explain your reasons. 

This report is a corporate 
governance issue and has no 
direct social, economic and 
environmental impacts 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1  

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis, please explain your reasons. 

This report is a corporate 
governance issue and has no 
direct equality and diversity 
impacts. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

No discernible risks in 
the production of the 
report 

  

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, 01539 793147, 
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Audit Committee Annual Report 2018/19 

Page 24



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

12/02/19 n/a 12/03/2018 n/a n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 9/04/19 21/05/19 12/02/19 12/03/2018 

Human Resource Services 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

n/a n/a n/a  

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Appendix 1 
 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 
 

Chairman’s Foreword 
 
The Committee’s role is to provide the Council and the public with independent assurance 
that it is operating securely and effectively within a sound governance framework.  The 
Committee’s brief covers risk management, performance management, governance and 
constitutional arrangements as well as traditional finance activities.  The role is to oversee 
the management of those processes to ensure that robust procedures are in place without 
being involved in the detailed operation. 

Audit Committee Members take their role seriously and are committed to their work.  We set 
out a full annual work programme that is monitored at each meeting and revised as 
necessary.  We have been trained on a range of relevant subjects and understand the 
nature of local government audit.  

The Audit Committee was established in October 2006 to provide the Council with effective 
leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  The Council also had an 
Accounts Committee to approve the draft and audited Statement of Accounts.  From May 
2012 the responsibility for the functions of the Accounts Committee transferred to the Audit 
Committee. 

The Committee’s terms of reference allow it to meet privately with External and Internal Audit 
(without council officers); earlier this year that took place these two organisations to discuss 
topical issues.   

The Committee has good working relationships with the respective Audit Managers.  All of 
their reports are presented to the Committee which pursues identified weaknesses in control 
systems to make sure that they are corrected.  In the Committees experience, council 
officers are receptive to the necessary changes and seek improvements wherever possible. 

I am pleased to present this report on behalf of the Committee.  It confirms the progress that 
we have made and that we continue to be an effective independent element of the Council’s 
governance arrangements.  We know that Local Government doesn’t stand still and the 
Committee will continue to develop so that it is always able to anticipate and deal with new 
aspects of finance and governance. 

 
 
Councillor Stephen Coleman 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 
April 2019

Page 27



Purpose of the Report 

This report summarises the work carried out by the Audit Committee during the year.  It 
demonstrates to Council and stakeholders the effectiveness of the Committee in assessing 
and maintaining the organisation’s internal control environment and governance 
arrangements.  

Background 

The Audit Committee was established in October 2006 to provide the Council with effective 
leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  The Council also had an 
Accounts Committee to approve the draft and audited Statement of Accounts.  As a result of 
the changes introduced by the Account and Audit Regulations 2011 which no longer 
required member approval of the draft Statement of Accounts, the Accounts Committee was 
discontinued with effect from the Annual General Meeting of Council in May 2012 and from 
that date the responsibility for the remaining functions of the Accounts Committee 
transferred to the Audit Committee 

The Terms of Reference for the Committee have been modelled on CIPFAi guidance and 
hence represent best practice.  A fully functioning Audit Committee needs to provide 
effective challenge across the Council’s activities together with independent assurance on 
the risk management framework and associated internal control environment to Members 
and the public and to demonstrate the impact of its work.  The Terms of Reference are 
reviewed annually with no substantive changes required in 2017/18 to the amendments 
approved by Council on 11 December 2014 beyond updating the names of the companies 
providing audit services. 

This Annual Report of the Committee, covers the period from May 2018 to April 2019.  This 
reporting timescale matches both the Council year and the external auditing cycle.   The 
Committee structures and plans its work around four main functional areas: external audit, 
internal audit, accounts and regulatory framework.  This report follows the same format in its 
summary of the year’s activities. 

The Committee 

Following the expansion of the duties of the Audit Committee to include the functions of the 
Accounts Committee the Committee has increased in size from five Councillors to seven.  All 
Councillors are independent of the Council’s Cabinet and the Committee membership is 
politically balanced.  Councillor Stephen Coleman has served as Chairman since May 2008.  
The Committee met on four occasions this year.   

The External and Internal Auditors, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer are invited 
to all Committee meetings.  In addition its Members meet periodically with both Audit 
Managers to discuss topical issues without officers being present.  The Committee has the 
ability to seek attendance from any officer or Member of the Council and has exercised this 
right on several occasions. 

Training is an essential element for an Audit Committee.  The Committee receive annual 
training, have been updated on statutory accounting requirements and are alert to the 
possibility of areas in which their knowledge could be extended. 

The Committee has developed a structured work programme which maps out its activities on 
an annual basis.  This programme is supplemented by new requirements as they are 
identified.  Progress against the programme is monitored at each Committee meeting.  

External Audit 

The Government changed the arrangements for the delivery of external audit for local 
government following the announcement of the abolition of the Audit Commission.  The 
external audit contract for the North West was awarded to Grant Thornton from September 
2012 for five years.   

Page 28



The Audit Committee receives and approves the external auditor’s Annual Audit Plan.  It 
comments on the fee rates and work programme consultation carried out by Grant Thornton 
based on fees set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd, the independent company set 
up by the Local Government Association with delegated statutory functions to set audit fees 
and make arrangements for certain audits.  Audit Committee receives the Annual Findings 
Report and the annual Grant Certification Report and monitors actions against the 
recommendations within these reports.  The Government have dropped the requirement of 
auditors to prepare a full Use of Resources assessment: instead a judgement is included in 
the Annual Governance Report indicating whether the Council has adequate arrangements 
to secure Value for Money in the use of resources.  The Annual Audit Letter summarised the 
auditor’s work for the year and opinion on the Council’s financial statements and value for 
money arrangements, as summarised later in this report. 

The Council opted to join the national sector-led procurement exercise for external audit 
services and in December 2017 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd appointed Grant 
Thornton for a further five-year term. 

Internal Audit  

The Committee oversees the work of Internal Audit. The internal audit service has been 
provided by TIAA Ltd since April 2016.  The internal auditor’s terms of reference are formally 
reviewed each year to ensure they continue to meet professional standards and good 
practice. 

At the beginning of the year the Committee approves the internal audit plan which sets out 
the individual audits to be carried out: coverage of the Council’s activities is informed by a 
risk-based audit needs assessment.  This process, introduced from April 2015, now 
focusses internal audit resources at areas of known or perceived risk within the Council, 
thereby increasing the possibility of lower levels of assurance.  

Performance against the plan is monitored by formal progress reports to each Committee 
meeting, supplemented as necessary by verbal updates from the Internal Audit Manager.  
The Committee closely monitors the implementation of recommendations made by both 
External and Internal Audit. 

All individual audit reports are presented to the Committee.  During the year, 12 reports have 
been considered which recorded the following assurance levels:ii 

Assurance Level 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 

Substantial 2 3 0 2 3 

Reasonable 10 8 9 8 11 

Limited (previously Partial) 0 1 3 1 3 

None (previously Limited) 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 12 12 12 11 17 

 

The Committee concentrates its attention on high priority recommendationsiii made in 
reports.  Where a report carries partial or limited assurance, the Committee has adopted the 
practice of requiring the relevant Assistant Director or Operational Manager to attend its next 
meeting where appropriate to demonstrate that progress is being made in implementing its 
recommendations.  If necessary, Members have requested subsequent update reports.   

The Internal Audit Manager will present his Annual Report for 2018/19 to the Committee in 
July 2019.  This will summarise the results of his work during the year and contains his 
opinion of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control 
environment.  As the fieldwork for 2018/19 has been completed and the outcome of each of 

Page 29



the reviews are known, the opinion will conclude that, for the areas reviewed during the year, 
there is reasonable assurance that effective risk management, control and governance 
processes are in place at the Council to manage the achievement of its objectives.  In the 
Internal Audit Manager’s experience, this profile of assurance is comparable with other local 
authorities.  The final 2018/19 Annual Internal Audit Report will be prepared for the July 2019 
Committee meeting but the Internal Audit Manager has produced an Interim Internal Audit 
Report for the April 2019 meeting which also concludes there is reasonable assurance.  

In September 2018 the Committee considered a review of the effectiveness of the system of 
Internal Audit by reference to Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and associated 
Local Government Application Note (LGAN).  This showed that TIAA Ltd fully complied with 
the relevant standards and concluded it was operating effectively. 

The Council’s Internal Auditors operate within a broad framework set by the contract 
between the two organisations. It is a requirement of the mandatory Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards that the Council has an audit charter in place, which has been approved by 
senior management and the Audit Committee.  Key elements of the Charter are: 

 Reference to the mandatory nature of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 The functional reporting line of internal audit to the Audit Committee to maintain audit 
independence. 

 The requirement for internal audit to provide an annual opinion on the Council’s 
arrangements for governance, risk management and internal control. 

 Internal Audit’s right of access to all activities, premises, records, personnel, cash 
and stores as required to undertake agreed internal audit assignments. 

 The responsibility of the Head of Internal Audit to prepare an annual risk based audit 
plan for approval by senior management and the Audit Committee. 

 Certain specific responsibilities of the Head of Internal Audit  
 

Accounts  

Each year CIPFA updates the accounting requirements for statutory accounts by issuing a 
revised Code of Practice.  The Committee is informed of these changes by means of an 
informal training session and approves the resulting amendments to the Council’s 
Accounting Policies.  In December 2017 the Committee noted a draft set of Accounting 
Policies that would be applicable for the preparation of the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts.   

Changes to the Accounts and Audit Regulations no longer require Member approval of the 
draft Statement of Accounts prior to its submission for audit.  Instead the Council’s Chief 
Finance Officer, the Assistant Director (Resources) approved the draft Statement by the 
statutory deadline of 30 May 2018.   

In September 2018 the Audit Committee received the Audit Findings Report from Grant 
Thornton, incorporating their draft opinion on the 2017/18 accounts, and approved the 
audited Statement of Accounts.  The auditors reported their intention to provide an 
unqualified opinion on the financial statements.  Their key message was that the Council 
produced good quality financial statements that were free from material error and supported 
by comprehensive working papers.  Only disclosure amendments were required to the 
accounts and there were no major issues identified.   

In respect of the Authority’s arrangements for securing value for money, Grant Thornton 
reported proper arrangements were in place to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness.  The Council is prioritising its resources within tighter budgets and is 
challenging the way it delivers its services to ensure cost reductions are achieved, whilst 
maintaining service delivery.   

The Annual Audit Letter, reported to Audit Committee in December 2018, confirmed the 
audit conclusions in relation to 2017/18 were: 

Page 30



 an unqualified opinion on the accounts which give a true and fair view of the 
Council's financial position as at 31 March 2018 and its income and expenditure for 
the year; 

 an unqualified conclusion in respect of the Council's arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

The Council is now required to produce the draft Statement and have that externally audited 
a month earlier than in previous years by 31 May and 31 July respectively. That was 
achieved for the 17/18 Accounts and is planned for the 2018/19 Accounts.   

Regulatory Framework 

Corporate Governance  

Following drafting work by the Audit Committee using a framework produced by CIPFA and 
SOLACEiv, Council approved a Local Code of Governance in May 2008.  The Committee 
reviews this Code annually.  CIPFA published a revised version of their governance 
framework in 2016 which applied from 1 April 2016.  Audit Committee considered and 
approved a re-written Local Code of Governance in December 2016 which was approved by 
Council later in December 2016.  Minor changes were considered by Audit Committee and 
approved by Council in December 2017.  

The Council is required to formally review its governance arrangements annually and the 
Committee carries out this work on its behalf.  This is achieved by the production of an 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) which is a far-reaching review of the effectiveness of 
the Council’s governance, including departmental assurance statements and Internal Audit’s 
annual opinion report. 

Members of the Audit Committee sat on a Panel which examined and approved the 2016/17 
AGS before its adoption by the Leader and Chief Executive and inclusion in the Statement of 
Accounts.  The final Statement provides a thorough review of governance arrangements.  
Audit Committee members will revisit the subject when they review the 2018/19 AGS 
alongside the Statement of Accounts in July 2019. 

The Audit Committee conducts an annual review of the Constitution.  During 2015/16 
substantial changes were made to improve the financial management and contract 
management processes of the Council including changes to reflect statutory changes in the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015.  Only minor changes were required in 2018/19 and 
these were approved by Audit Committee in December 2018 and Council in December 
2018. 

Fraud Prevention and Whistleblowing 

The promotion of fraud awareness is important to Audit Committee Members who encourage 
officers in their efforts; as a visible demonstration of this commitment, the Committee has 
introduced an annual report of anti-fraud activity, the first being presented in 2009.  The 
Committee received a review in September 2018 of activity up to that date.  Following 
changes to the Department for Work and Pension, Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) 
was set up and fraud investigation staff from this Council transferred to the SFIS in July 
2015. The Council retained one member of the counter-fraud team as a Corporate Anti-
Fraud Officer who works closely with both the Revenues and Benefits Team and the Finance 
Team in tackling fraud.  The Corporate Anti-Fraud Officer has also be involved in raising the 
profile of anti-fraud and corruption in the authority. This has included attending team 
meetings, briefing Operational managers and reviewing policies and practices related to 
Interviews under Caution across the Council to ensure consistency of practice.  
Investigations have included the submission of false invoices for flood grant claims, review of 
council tax exemptions and eligibility for homelessness support. The Council is also working 
with South Lakes Housing to review all applications for Right-to-Buy as this has been 
identified nationally as an area of high risk and high value. 

Page 31



During the year, the Committee reviewed the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, approved a 
new Counter Fraud Strategy and updated the Anti-Money Laundering Policy to ensure 
robust reporting and investigation arrangements where a fraudulent act is suspected.   

Risk Management  

The Committee receives annual progress reports on the Council’s risk management 
arrangements.  The Committee maintains a risk register relating to its own activities and 
reviews this periodically.  The experience gained from the years of the Committee’s 
existence has enabled it to manage its risks effectively within its agreed risk appetite.   

Performance Management  

The Committee receives an annual progress report on the Council’s performance 
management arrangements.  The Committee received the annual review of the Performance 
Management Framework in April 2019. The framework describes how the Council monitors 
its performance and is intended to support the Council in developing and embedding a high 
performance culture to further enhance the quality of services for the people of South 
Lakeland. 

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee 

Officers from the Council used a checklist to test the effectiveness of the Committee 
produced by CIPFA as part of its Practical Guidance for Local Authority and Police Audit 
Committees in 2013.  The conclusion was that the Committee has been established in 
accordance with best practice and is operating effectively in all material respects. Minor 
weaknesses identified in past reviews have been recognised and addressed, including the 
introduction of separate meetings with the Internal and External Audit Managers; however 
Members need to be continually aware of areas in which they should be challenging the 
performance of the Cabinet and Council generally. 

Conclusions 

This Annual Report has summarised the work of the Committee over the last twelve months, 
indicating that it is functioning in accordance with best practice and providing independent 
assurance of the Council’s governance arrangements.  Committee Members believe that it is 
carrying out this role effectively, an opinion supported by the officer review. 

 The Committee will continue to develop its role and impact through ongoing Member 
training and refinement of its work programme in order to meet future challenges.  

 

 

 

                                           
i The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, which sets standards for local 
government accounting and audit. 
 
 
ii Internal Audit terminology for assurance levels given to individual audits by Internal Audit are: 

Substantial: There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the system 
objectives and this minimises risk. 

Reasonable: There is a reasonable system of internal control in place which should ensure 
that system objectives are generally achieved, but some issues have been 
raised which may result in a degree of risk exposure beyond that which is 
considered acceptable. 

Limited: The system of internal control designed to achieve the system objectives is 
not sufficient. Some areas are satisfactory but there are an unacceptable 
number of weaknesses which have been identified and the level of non-

Page 32



                                                                                                                                   
compliance and / or weaknesses in the system of internal control puts the 
system objectives at risk.  This was previously known as partial assurance. 

 
None:  Fundamental weaknesses have been identified in the system of internal 

control resulting in the control environment being unacceptably weak and 
expose the system objectives to a high degree of risk.  This was previously 
known as limited assurance 

 
iii Internal Audit report recommendations are prioritised as: 

1 Urgent Fundamental control issue on which action should be 
taken immediately 

2 
Important Control issue on which action should be taken at the 

earliest opportunity. 

3 Routine Control issue on which action should be taken. 

 
Recommendations are also made to improve operational effectiveness. 
 

iv The Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers. 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Tuesday, 9 April 2019 

Review of Performance Management Framework 
and Risk Management Process 

 

Portfolio:   Cllr Giles Archibald - Leader of the Council 

Report from: Claire Gould – Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Lead 
Specialist 

Report Author: John Davies – Performance and Risk Officer 

Wards:  Not applicable  

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report presents the update to the Performance Management Framework and the 
Risk Process. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) notes the Performance Management Framework 2019/20 in appendix 1; 
and 

(2) notes the Risk Management Process 2019/20 in appendix 2 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Council has an existing Performance Management Framework and Risk 
Management Process which are reviewed annually.  The Council Plan, adopted by 
Full Council on 26 February 2019, has been taken into consideration as part of the 
annual review of these documents.  

3.2 The Performance Management Framework describes how the Council monitors its 
performance and reflects the performance monitoring structures and schedules. 
There have been changes to the Council Plan that require updates to the 
Performance Management Framework. These changes are the Council Plans 
updated Priorities and Values. 

3.5 The Risk Management Process describes how the Council identifies and manages 
operational and strategic level risks. There have been no changes required for risk 
management processes and therefore no changes for the Risk Management Process 
for 2019. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Partnerships and Organisational Development staff were involved in the review of the 
Performance Management Framework and the Risk Management Process. 

Page 35

Item No.8



5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The consequences of not approving updates to policies are to weaken corporate 
governance arrangements. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Reviewing key policies is a key organisational control that supports good 
performance with the Council Plan and helps develop and embed a high 
performance culture. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no financial, resources or procurement implications are associated with the 
reviewed documents. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no resource implications are associated with the reviewed documents. 

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications associated with the reviewed documents. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: the 
Performance Management Framework and the Risk Process underpin positive 
impacts on Health, Social, Economic and Environmental needs. 

7.6 Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: none. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: the 
Performance Management Framework and the Risk Management Process have a 
positive impact on Equality and Diversity. 

7.9 Summary of equality and diversity impacts: none. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Not to update governance 
policies 

The consequences of not 
updating policies are to 
weaken corporate 
governance arrangements 

Policies are updated and 
approvals sought prior to 
implementation 

Contact Officers 

John Davies, Performance and Risk Officer, 01539 733333, rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Appendices Attached to this Report 

(delete if no appendices attached) 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Performance Management Framework 2019/20 

Page 36

mailto:rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk


Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

2 Risk Management Process 2019/20 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Council Plan South Lakeland District Council Website 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 14/03/19 

Section 151 Officer 14/03/19 

Monitoring Officer 14/03/19 

SMT 28/03/19 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 14/03/19 

Human Resources Manager 14/03/19 

Communications Team 14/03/19 

Leader 28/03/19 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 28/03/19 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 09/04/19 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 37

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/documents/s25277/Council%20Plan%20-%20Appendix%203.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
1 

 

 

 
 

[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the 
text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.] 

Version 11.0 

April 2018 

 

    2019/20 

Appendix 1 

Page 39



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
2 

 

Version Control 

 
Please note: for previous review history please refer to earlier versions of this document  
 

Version By Date Comments 

4.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

09/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

5.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

13/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

6.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

14/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

7.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

16/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

8.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

01/03/2015 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 (Updated in February 2015) 

9.0 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

31/03/2016 Reviewed – no changes required. 

10.0 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

01/03/17 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 (Updated in February 2017) and in 
line with changes in Committee structure. 

11 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

29/03/18 Reviewed – no changes required. 

12 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

14/03/19 Reviewed in line with Council Plan. Council Plan 
values and priorities updated to reflect changes. 

 

How we review this document 

 
Performance, Innovation and Commissioning will facilitate an annual review involving: 

1. Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead for performance reporting requirements 

2. Human Resources Lead for workforce and appraisal elements 

3. Finance Lead for budgeting timescales 

4. Strategic Lead for localism and consultation 

  

Page 40



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
3 

 

Performance - Introduction 
 
Performance management is about the delivery of the goals of an organisation and its 
community.  It needs much more than just back office systems, processes, plans and 
indicators.  Successful performance management needs leaders, managers and employees to 
see their purpose to continually improve what they do - and the services they provide to their 
communities.  
 
Performance management must add value.  In order to do this the processes employed must 
achieve the right balance between effort and results.  
 
Performance management is central to the political process – performance information is 
reported regularly to Scrutiny and Cabinet Committees.   
 
The Performance Management Framework recognises that improvement comes from people 
and process, and that the framework will not operate without employee awareness.   
 
It will be about positive endorsement, continuous improvement, innovation and creativity.   
 
In particular, the processes should emphasize the significance of performance management for 
enabling service improvement, and build links into other improvement processes - and into 
training and development. 
 
Effective performance management: 

1. Is being clear about the purpose of the Council 

2. Has a strong emphasis on achieving outcomes 

3. Has robust and effective planning systems which ensure the allocation of resources 
follow service demands 

4. Monitors delivery against clear targets and acts upon them 

5. Minimises the risk of serious error 

Additionally our political and administrative leadership makes performance a priority, and the 
clear vision motivates, enthuses and empowers employees – an organisation that has a culture 
that is enabling and empowering.  
 

  

Page 41



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
4 

 

Purpose and aim of the framework 
 
The purpose and aim of our Performance Management Framework is to make sure we deliver:  
 

 the right services  

 at the right time  

 in the right way  

 value for money  

 
Our Performance Management Framework sets out how we put this into practice.  
 

 providing an overview of the steps to be taken, followed by a brief explanation of each  

 summarising Member and Officer performance management roles and responsibilities 

 listing reporting arrangements for various Council and Partnership plans and strategies 

 
Our Performance Management Framework follows the sequence of: 
 

Plan    Do    Review 
 

Plan means being clear about what we are setting out to achieve and how we are going 
to achieve it  

Do means putting our plans into action in the most efficient and effective way  

Review means monitoring results to ensure that we:  

achieve what was planned and to the agreed standard  

can compare our performance with other service providers and with our own 
past achievements to show trends  

have relevant and timely information to feed back into the process  

can inform stakeholders accordingly  
 
  

Page 42



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
5 

 

Performance management is the responsibility of everyone in the Council.  A summary of the 
key roles and responsibilities of Officers and Councillors is set out below: 
 

 Plan Do Review 

 Vision 

Planning 

Commitment 

Action and Results Monitoring 

Review and Response 

Councillors Approve the Council 
Plan, key strategies 
and Budget 

Hold the Cabinet to 
account 

Scrutinise the Council’s 
performance 

Undertake specific 
reviews of any identified 
performance issues 
which can be undertaken 
through the Council’s 
arrangements for 
scrutiny 

Cabinet Formulate the Council’s 
priorities 

Monitor and respond  
to performance data 

Challenge performance 
of all services 

Ensure strategic delivery 
of Council Plan  

Monitor performance with 
Portfolio Holder Priority 
Plans via regular 
meetings with 
Operational Leads and 
Lead Specialists 

Senior 
Management 

Oversee Performance 
Management 
Framework 

Commitment to 
Council’s priorities 
through the allocation 
of responsibilities and 
resources 

Strategic responsibility 
for delivery of Council’s 
priorities including 
monitoring performance 

Take a view on service 
underperformance and 
manage the Council 
Plan 

Ensure that Operational 
Leads and Lead 
Specialists annual 
performance appraisals 
underpin the 
performance with the 
Council Plan 

Review the Council Plan 
Performance Report 
every quarter 

Operational Leads 
and Lead 
Specialists 

Ensure that service 
area plans underpin 
performance with the 
Council Plan 

Sign off Service Plans  

Produce Service Plans 

Contribute to the 
Council’s corporate 
priorities and objectives 

Manage projects 
applying project 
management 
techniques 
appropriately 

Ensure that managers’ 
annual performance 
appraisals underpin 
performance with 
service area plans  

Deliver Service Plans 

Provide data in 
accordance with 
performance reporting 
requirements 

Maintain service budget 
and implement 
efficiencies 

Hold 1-2-1’s with 
managers as required to 
manage performance 
with key activity – this 
may include projects as 
well as day to day work 

Monitor directorate 
performance at 
Departmental 
Management Team 
meetings on a quarterly 
basis 

Respond to service and 
organisational workflow 
and workload issues  

Support employees to 
deliver their objectives 
and manage employee 
performance 

Employees Responsible for 
personal development 
and performance 

Understand how work 
contributes to vision, 
priorities and objectives 

Raise specific issues 
regarding performance 

Ensure that activity listed 
within individual 
performance reviews are 
implemented on 
schedule 

Page 43



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
6 

 

with Operational Leads 
and Lead Specialists 

Page 44



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
7 

 

Performance Reporting Process 

 

  

P
age 45



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
8 

 

 

 

The Council will make decisions on the priorities, risks, activities, ownership, targets and 
measures necessary to meet the needs of South Lakeland. 

 

1. Vision 

 

Performance management begins with a clear vision. The Council’s corporate vision is 
contained in the current Council Plan. 

 
 

Working together to make South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore 
 
This vision is underpinned by our agreed values, which influence the way we work. They lie at 
the heart of everything we do:  
 
Our Values 
 
Our Council Plan is influenced by our key three values.  
 
Empowering people  
 
By listening to our customers and our employees their ideas and comments will help us make 
improvements to customer service and workforce development.  
 
Excellence  
 
Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, ensuring that our actions address the needs 
of South Lakeland.  
 
Open and transparent  
 
Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our dealings with the public. 
  

Plan 

Page 46



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
9 

 

 
 
 

2. Planning 

 

The Council’s priorities are set out in the Council Plan and are informed by the Council’s 
approach to service delivery 
 
We will deliver our Council Plan by: 
 

• Working across boundaries to deliver sustainable communities 
• Creating balanced communities 
• Reducing inequalities so no one is left behind 
• Encouraging a sustainable environment and an inclusive economy 

 
The Council must focus must on how we and our partners can achieve positive outcomes for 
our communities - to improve their quality of life and the services we provide for them.  
 
When planning, the Council must ensure it understands South Lakeland, our communities and 
their needs based on a detailed knowledge of key demographic data, customer satisfaction and 
perceptions.  
 
  

Plan 

Page 47



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
10 

 

 

 
 
As a Community Leader, the Council should engage with and share information, where 
applicable, with partners particularly the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership, the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, Local Area Partnerships, Parish and Town Councils and Community Groups. 
 
We must also be aware of available resources, anticipated risks and levels of current 
performance when setting priorities and developing Plans.  
 
The Council’s services are delivered through plans and strategies at all levels, both 
independently and in partnership with other service providers and provide a link between our 
high-level Vision and strategic priorities and team and individual performance.  
 
 
Our Priorities  
 
The Council has agreed three priorities in its new Council Plan, which support the Council’s 
Vision. 
 
Economy and Culture 
 
Enabling and delivering opportunities for sustainable economic growth and supporting cultural 
activities. 
 
Housing and Communities 
 
Enabling homes and local infrastructure via local planning and partnership working. 
 
Health and Environment 
 
Improving wellbeing, reducing inequality and protecting and enhancing our place. 
 
 

 
  

Plan 

Page 48



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
11 

 

 
 
 
 

3. Commitment 

 
The priorities for South Lakeland are set at the highest level.  These priorities are not only 
supported by the Council’s strategic and operational plans but also individual employee 
appraisals.  Managing employees’ performance is a continuous process.   
 
It involves making sure that the performance of employees contributes to the goals of their 
teams and the business as a whole.  Performance monitoring which includes risk management 
activity ensures that the key priorities are met. 
 
Organisational commitment is demonstrated through the allocation of responsibilities and 
resources.  
 
Members’ responsibilities are set out in the Council’s Constitution.   
 
Officers’ responsibilities are contained in the Constitution, Job Descriptions and annual 
appraisals.  
 
Ownership of responsibility is further supported by:  

 The Personal Qualities Framework links organisational targets and actions with those of 
individual employees  

 Commitment to training and development through the Corporate Training Programme 
and Training Budget  

Financial resources are allocated to the Council’s Priorities through the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and annual Revenue and Capital Budgets.  Resources provided by other bodies are 
secured through external funding bids.  
 
Commitments towards achieving South Lakeland and Cumbria Strategy priorities are 
demonstrated through membership of Boards, Task Groups and Officer Working Groups. 
 
 
 
 

  

Plan 

Page 49



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
12 

 

 

 

 

4. Action  

 

The Council will implement plans at strategic, operational and individual levels by: 

 

Working across boundaries 

We will meet the needs of the communities, work with our partners to deliver regional growth 
and improve wellbeing. Supported by the following documents and measures of success within 
the Local Plan, Economic Growth Strategy, Public Health Strategy. 

Creating balanced communities 

Deliver affordable homes to meet need, create opportunities for young people and improve 
quality of life. Supported by the following documents and measures of success within Housing 
Strategy, Older Persons Housing Strategy, Affordable Housing Policy, Economic Growth 
Strategy, Children and Young Peoples’ Action plan and the Customer Connect Programme. 

Reducing inequalities 
Improve existing housing and reduce homelessness, deliver inclusive growth so everyone can 
achieve their potential and reduce disadvantage. This is supported by the following documents 
and measures of success within the Homelessness Strategy, Local Plan, Empty Homes 
Strategy, Digital Declaration, Tackling Poverty Together Position Statement, Community Safety 
Partnership, Air Quality Action Plan and Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. 
 
Sustainable environment and inclusive economy 
Build resilience, grow a green economy and be ready for the challenge of climate change. 
These are supported by the following documents and measures of success within the Housing 
Strategy, Older Persons Housing Strategy, Affordable Housing Policy, Economic Growth 
Strategy, Customer Connect Programme and the Climate Change Policy. 
 
 
Measures of success 
 
Performance, Innovation & Commissioning will set measures and monitor activity. 
 
Performance management will allow consistency and better access to information regarding 
ownership, service activity and measures, and to improve monitoring and reporting procedures 
including the management of complaints received; service planning and projects.  
 
Every stage of the performance management process relies on evidence and data to allow the 
organisation to make judgments on what South Lakeland and the Council’s needs are; what its 
customers’ needs are; what it has achieved and how it compares.  It is vital that data is high 
quality, reliable, and timely.   
 
As part of a rolling programme of scorecard review, regular assurance checks will be carried 
out and reported to Members and Officers. 
 

  

Do 

Page 50



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
13 

 

Financial Management 
 
Financial Management covers all financial accountabilities in relation to the running of the 
Council, including the policy framework and budget.   
 
All Members and Officers have a duty to abide by the highest standards of probity in dealing 
with financial issues.   
 
This is facilitated by ensuring everyone is clear about the standards to which they are working 
and the controls that are in place to ensure that these standards are met.  The Corporate 
Financial Monitoring Report is presented to advise Members of the financial position of the 
Council each quarter.  Explanations of variances are provided.   
 
The report is presented to Members.  The report summarises the General Fund revenue and 
capital positions with monitoring updates for large and volatile costs and income, approved 
savings, Treasury Management, Revenue Collection and Sundry and Long term debtors.  
 
The Corporate Financial Monitoring Report includes the following areas: 

1. Revenue Budget monitoring 

2. Budget Savings monitoring 

3. Capital Budget monitoring 

4. Treasury Management review    

Page 51



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
14 

 

 

 
Personal Qualities Framework 

It is important to ensure that all employees are aware of how the Personal Qualities Framework 
and performance appraisal ‘fits’ with the Performance Management Framework. In terms of the 
hierarchy of strategic and business planning the performance appraisal process sits as follows: 

 

 

 
The above plans are aspirational i.e. they are the statement of either new objectives or an 
intention to improve service/performance on existing objectives.  Therefore individual 
performance appraisals will reflect this i.e. the performance objectives will be about 
implementing new services, improving existing services, reducing cost etc. The Personal 
Qualities Framework also includes two other factors, Personal Qualities and Development.   
 
Personal Qualities reflects the way in which employees conduct themselves and the manner in 
which business is undertaken.  Adherence to these qualities will support the successful pursuit 
of objectives.  Development acknowledges that for employees at all levels there will be gaps 
between current performance and target performance which cannot be addressed by additional 
resources or new technology but by enhancing the skills, knowledge and confidence of the 
post-holder.  
  

Council Plan

Group/Service 
Plan

Personal Qualities 
Framework

Do 

Page 52



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
15 

 

 
 
Performance Appraisals are not the only corporately supported performance/communication 
mechanisms available.  For line managers performance appraisals form part of a tripartite 
employee management portfolio. 

 

 
 

 
Managers and employees need to be able to differentiate between the aims and content of the 
various meetings. 
 
1-2-1’s between managers and employees should be conducted on a regular basis and are an 
opportunity to: 

 Manage tasks and prioritise work 

 Tackle day to day supervision and resource issues 

 Monitor and evaluate incoming and outgoing work 

They can also be used to visit the performance objectives and individual development needs 
and, where appropriate, amend/update the performance review and developmental review 
sections of the performance appraisal documentation. 

 
Managers should brief their teams once a month as a minimum and should be the opportunity 
to: 

 Communicate corporate information  

 Discuss service issues 

 Raise awareness of topical issues facing the Council 

 Listen to ideas and discuss innovative solutions on issues facing the team, service and 
Council 

The aim of the Personal Qualities Framework is to ensure the performance appraisal process is 
embedded within organisational culture and practice rather than be a stand-alone, once a year 
activity.   

 
  

Performance 
Appraisal

1-2-1s
Team 

Meetings

Do 

Page 53



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
16 

 

 

 

Performance data will be collected and areas for concern identified.  Areas that are not on track 
will be commented on by employees with ownership at weekly meetings. 

 

5. Monitoring 

 
Feedback and other information generated in delivering services enables us to actively monitor 
performance and report as necessary to Committees, management and  operational teams, 
individuals, members of the public and external agencies.  This is undertaken in accordance 
with the following: 

 
Quarter 1  
April 

Complete a review of and update the policies and strategies integral to the 
Performance Management Framework. 
Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 4’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
Employee appraisal process is started. 

May Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 4’ performance data which details progress 
with towards priorities and measures and the management of risks. 
Target for completion of Council’s Annual Financial Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement.  
Statutory deadline for completion of Council’s Annual Financial Accounts and 
Annual Governance Statement. 

June Start of Audit of Council’s Annual Financial Accounts and Annual Governance 
Statement. 

Quarter 2  
July 

Council approves performance framework related policies and strategies. 
Update the Council Plan. The draft budget strategy with the Medium Term 
Financial Plan is prepared. 
Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 1’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
Publish the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan  
Statutory deadline for completion of external audit of Council’s Annual 
Financial Accounts and Annual Governance Statement. 

August Consultation on the draft Council Plan. 
Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 1’ performance data. 

September Employee mid-year Job Appraisals are completed 

Quarter 3  
October 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 2’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

November Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 2’ performance data. 

December Approve the Council Plan 
Budget options are aligned to priorities 
Consultation on the draft budget.  

Quarter 4  
January 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 3’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

February Finalised the Council Budget and Capital Programme.  
Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 3’ performance data. 

March Publish the Council’s operational plans including the workforce element. 

  

Review 

Page 54



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 12.0 

April 2019 
17 

 

 
 
 
Detailed information regarding costs, performance and benchmarking of services will be 
reported along with a value for money calculation. This will bring essential business information 
to decision makers – for more detail see the diagram below: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Results of service performance are published internally and externally in the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee reports.  
 
In addition, the Council provides employees, Members and the public with feedback on the 
Council’s performance in a number of digestible formats.  This includes the annual report of our 
performance over a 12 month period.  
 
 

6. Review and Response 

 

Reviewing and taking corrective action are essential steps as they distinguish performance 
management from performance monitoring.  Action taken is recorded to provide an audit trail 
and evidence of improvement, and could include any or all of the following:  
 

 Reassessing the need for a particular service  

 Re-designing standards, measures and targets  

 Reviewing systems and processes  

 Re-evaluating resource requirements  

 
Customer feedback is used to support the review process, while benchmarking helps to set 
Council performance into context by comparing processes and measure results, for example 
when carrying out service reviews or value-for-money exercises.  
 
Implementation of this Framework is overseen by the Corporate Management Team. 
 

Costs 

 

Costs of individual 
services 

Benefits 

 

Measures that show 
performance 

 

Benchmarking for 
comparing with 
other authorities 

Value for Money 

 

Cost per head of 
population 

Review 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



1 
Version: 9 

Date: April 2019 
 

  

2019/20 

Appendix 2 

Page 57



2 
Version: 9 

Date: April 2019 
 

Contents 

Risk Management Process ........................................................................................ 3 
Roles and Responsibilities ......................................................................................... 4 
Risk Management – Five practical steps .................................................................... 6 
Risk Prioritisation Matrix ............................................................................................. 7 
 

Version Control  

Version By Date Comments 

V5 

Mar 2015 

Risk and 
Performance 
Officer 

January 
2015 

Reviewed – management of partnership 
risks better defined 

V6 

April 
2016 

Risk and 
Performance 
Officer 

March 2016 Reviewed - no significant changes required 
Reference to fraud and corruption risks 
added as required by audit. 

V7 

Mar 2017 

Risk and 
Performance 
Officer 

March 2017 Reviewed – management and escalation of 
operational risks clarified on page 4 

V8 

April 
2018 

Performance and 
Risk Officer 

April 2018 Reviewed - no changes required 

 

V9 

2019/20 

Performance and 
Risk Officer 

April 2019 Reviewed - no changes required 

 

 
Please note: for previous review history please refer to earlier versions of this 
document 

 

How we review this document 

The Council’s Strategy Lead Specialist will facilitate a periodic review in line with 

government guidance. 

  

Page 58



3 
Version: 9 

Date: April 2019 
 

Risk Management Process 

 
Introduction 
This document outlines how South Lakeland District Council is taking on its 
responsibility to manage risks and opportunities using a structured and focused 
approach. 
 
This process will enable the Council to identify: 

1. Partnership risks 
2. Strategic risks 
3. Operational risks 
4. assess the risks for likelihood and impact 
5. identify mitigating controls  
6. allocate responsibility for both risks and controls. 

 
What is Risk Management? 
A risk is an event which has a negative or positive effect on the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives. Risk management is both the awareness of risks and the 
management processes that are directed towards effective reduction or mitigation of 
risks. Identifying and dealing with the principal risks facing an authority enables it to 
identify key actions it must take to deliver its objectives. 

 
Corporate processes and risk 
These corporate processes require the consideration of risk.   

 Council Planning Process 

 Project Management 

 Financial Planning 

 Partnerships 

 Cabinet/Council reports 

 Business Continuity 

 Health and safety 

 Fraud and corruption 

 Insurance 

 
Why do we need a Risk Management Process? 
Risk management will strengthen the ability of South Lakeland District Council to 
achieve its objectives and enhance the value of services provided, to make the area 
a place where people want to live and work, where they are able to enjoy a high 
quality of life.  
 
Risk management is also an essential part of the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy/ framework on Corporate Governance that has been 
adopted by SLDC. Alongside Corporate Governance the Council is required to 
publish an annual assurance statement in respect of internal controls. This 
determines that the Council is responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system 
of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of the Council’s functions 
and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
 

Page 59



4 
Version: 9 

Date: April 2019 
 

Roles and Responsibilities 
The Portfolio Holder with responsibility for risk management and the Chief Executive 
jointly have overall responsibility for risk management throughout the Council.  

 
Strategic Risks: 
Corporate Management Team is pivotal in the management of the Council’s high 
level risks by identifying and reviewing existing risks and ensuring mitigation. These 
decisions will determine which risks are included on the Strategic Risk Register.  
 
Corporate Management Team reviews the risks along with corporate plan 
performance on a quarterly basis. 
 
The Performance and Risk Officer maintains the strategic risks and mitigating 
controls each quarter on behalf of the Corporate Management Team. The officer 
also organises appropriate training for staff and members and reviews the risk 
process. The officer prepares quarterly monitoring reports covering risks and 
performance with the Council Plan for 
 

1. Corporate Management Team 
2. Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
3. Cabinet 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will monitor the mitigation of the Strategic Risks 
via quarterly performance reporting. This ensures that all senior elected members 
understand the Strategic Risks and their mitigating controls. 
 
Operational Risks: 
Directorates will identify, manage and monitor their operational risks. Operational 
Leads and Lead Specialists will list their operational risks within their Service Plans.  
 
They will review these operational risks and record their review history for each risk 
on a quarterly basis. Operational Leads and Lead Specialists can escalate an 
operational risk to Corporate Management Team if they feel that the risk is more 
strategic in nature or that they need help with mitigation.  
 
In this way operational risks are identified and managed - and where necessary 
escalated for further control. The management of operational risks is facilitated by 
guidance provided on the front page of the staff intranet – the five step risk 
management cycle, templates and training slides are available.  
 
Training is provided. . Operational Risks above tolerance are reported to Audit 
Committee in Quarter 1 each year. 
  

Page 60



5 
Version: 9 

Date: April 2019 
 

Partnership Risks: 
There are two kinds of risks involved in partnership working. The first are the risks 
that the Council faces because it is a partner. These risks will be identified by the key 
partnership lead and managed via service plans and if necessary escalated as a 
potential strategic risk.  
 
The Second risks are the risks that the partnership faces as a whole. Where a key 
partnership is significant enough to warrant risk management arrangements these 
risks will be reviewed and managed by the partnership itself.  
 
The risks will be communicated back to the Council via the Council’s representative 
on that Partnership.  
 
These risks may then bring about new strategic risks which would then be subject to 
the Council’s performance management arrangements. 
 
 
Links with Audit findings: 
Internal audit is responsible for undertaking periodic assessment of the Council’s risk 
management processes as part of reviewing of corporate governance arrangements. 
 
Internal Audit will also as a result of their risk assessments in other areas of the 
Councils operations highlight to Corporate Senior Management Team further risks 
for their consideration and possible inclusion on the Strategic Risk Register. 
 
These risks are then performance managed as part of the quarterly performance 
monitoring process 
 

Page 61



6 
Version: 9 

Date: April 2019 
 

Risk Management – Five practical steps 
Managing risks involves adopting a systematic and robust process. The following 
risk management cycle describes the processes that should be followed.  
 
Step 1 - Identifying the risks 
When identifying risks it is suggested that as a minimum the following categories of 
risk be used. They will act as a prompt and as a trigger for officers involved in the 
identification process. These categories are Financial (including Fraud and 
Corruption), Environmental, Customer (including Equalities), Reputational and 
Legislative.  
 
Risks can also be positive rather than just negative - in that there may be positive 
opportunities brought about by the impact of a risk. These opportunities should be 
identified so that they can be maximised if the risk occurs. A project can also be 
thought of as positive risk taking as it is something that will bring benefits - but there 
will be risks to manage along the way.  
 
Risks can also be strategic or operational in nature and it is important that both types 
of risk are managed effectively. If risks identified at an operational level are 
considered to be strategic in nature they should be brought to the attention of 
Corporate Management Team by Operational Leads and Lead Specialists. 
 
Step 2 - Analysing the risks 
It will help understanding of each risk if analysis of the vulnerabilities, triggers and 
consequences are completed. This better understanding will aid the next step in the 
process - prioritisation of risks. There may be Equalities considerations when 
completing this analysis work. 
 
Step 3 - Risk Profiling and prioritisation 
A standard prioritisation matrix is used across the Council to plot the risks in terms of 
likelihood and impact. Once completed this risk profile clearly illustrates the risks 
which are priorities for management. The Council’s line of risk tolerance or appetite 
is set on the matrix. This line determines which risks cannot be tolerated and must 
be managed down, transferred or avoided.  
 
Step 4 - Action Planning 
Most risks are capable of being managed – either by managing down the likelihood 
or impact or both. Action plans will also identify the resources required to deliver the 
improvements, key dates and deadlines and critical success factors. There may be 
Equalities issues when agreeing risk actions 
 
Step 5 - Risk management monitoring and reporting framework 
Quarterly monitoring of the effective management of risks through Overview and 
Scrutiny including regular reporting on council plan performance. 

Page 62



7 
Version: 9 

Date: April 2019 
 

Risk Prioritisation Matrix  
 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

A 

high 

    

B 

medium 

    

C 

low 

    

D 

very low 

    

 4 

negligible 

 

3 

marginal 

2 

serious 

1 

critical 

 Impact 

 

 

 

Priority risks which 

require mitigating 

controls and quarterly 

review 

Low priority risks 

which require annual 

review 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Tuesday, 9 April 2019 

Risk Management - Operational Risks 

 

Portfolio:   Cllr Giles Archibald - Leader of the Council 

Report from:  Dan Hudson – Strategy Lead Specialist 

Report Author: John Davies – Performance and Risk Officer 

Wards:  Not applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 Members are aware of the operational risks which are positioned above the line of 
risk tolerance. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) note the operational risks which are positioned above the line of 
tolerance as listed in appendix 1 of this report and the mitigations to 
manage them, and; 

(2) note the reviewed Strategic Risk No 5 ‘Impact of the Welfare Reform on 
Communities’ as listed in appendix 2 of this report. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Following an internal audit recommendation the Performance and Risk Officer 
reports the operational risks that are above tolerance to Audit Committee on an 
annual basis to ensure that Members are aware of the operational risks which have 
been identified and are being managed. Service Planning includes reviewing 
operational risks for the start of each financial year and the reporting fits in with this 
schedule. 

3.2 The Strategic Risk Register is also reported to Audit Committee every 6 months. The 
Strategic Risk Register is currently reviewed by Senior Management Team prior to 
being reported each quarter as part of quarterly performance monitoring and 
reporting arrangements. 

3.3 This report asks the Audit Committee to note the operational risks which are 
positioned above the line of tolerance as listed in Appendix 1 to the report and the 
mitigations to manage them. 

3.4 Audit Committee requested a review of Strategic Risk 5 ‘Impact of the welfare 
Reform on Communities’ - to be reported to April 2019 meeting. The completed 
review can be seen at Appendix 2. The Council has mitigations to reduce poverty 
and alleviate against universal credit impacts and these are now listed. 

 

Page 65

Item No.9



 

 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The Performance and Risk Officer collates operational risks following risk reviews 
with managers at operational level. The risks which are above tolerance are listed in 
appendix 1. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 No alternative options – Audit Committee must have sight of operational risks to 
ensure that they are aware and that they are being managed. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Risk Management directly underpins all Council Plan priorities. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no financial implications associated with reporting operational risks. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no staffing implications associated with reporting operational risks. 

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications associated with reporting operational risks. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
There are no Health, Social, Economic or Environmental implications associated with 
reporting operational risks. 

7.6 Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: None. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
There are no Equality and Diversity implications associated with reporting operational 
risks. 

7.9 Summary of equality and diversity impacts: None 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

There is a risk that Members are 
not aware of the Council’s 
‘above tolerance’ Operational 
Risks 

Members are not able to 
ensure that risks are 
managed effectively. 

Risks impact on services. 

Operational Risks are 
reviewed by managers at 
operational level and 
those risks which are 
above tolerance are 
reported to Audit 
Committee by the 
Performance and Risk 
Officer. 

Page 66



 

 

Contact Officers 

John Davies, Performance and Risk Officer, 01539 733333, rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Appendices Attached to this Report 

(delete if no appendices attached) 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Operational Risks 

2 Strategic Risk No 5 ‘Impact of the Welfare Reform on Communities’ 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Risk Management Process. 

Performance Management 
Framework. 

Both documents can be viewed on SLDC Website 

 

Audit Committee updates. Previous Audit Committee updates can be viewed on 
SLDC Website 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 14/03/19 

Section 151 Officer 14/03/19 

Monitoring Officer 14/03/19 

SMT 28/03/19 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 14/03/19 

Human Resources Manager 14/03/19 

Communications Team 14/03/19 

Leader 28/03/19 

Committee Chairman NA 

Portfolio Holder 28/03/19 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 09/04/19 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 67

mailto:rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-documents/council-plan/performance/
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=135


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



 

 

Appendix 1 

 

 

Operational Risks - Introduction 

 
 

Purpose of appendix 

 
The purpose of this appendix is to present the operational risks that are positioned ‘above the line’ of risk appetite/tolerance. 
 
 
How to understand this report 

 

The next two pages explain: 

 

 how to understand the Risk Matrix 

 how to understand the layout of each risk 

  

P
age 69



 

 

How to understand the Risk Matrix: 

 
Each risk is plotted on a risk matrix to show degree of likelihood and impact. The greater the likelihood and impact the higher the priority for 
management. Those risks which lay above the line of risk appetite (risk tolerance) can be seen in the blue zone of the matrix. These risks are a priority 
for management and are reviewed every quarter. Risks below the risk appetite, in the green zone, are a lower priority and so are reviewed on an 
annual basis. 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next page shows how the information for each risk is presented.

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

High 

    

Medium 

  

x 
 

Low 

 

x 
  

Very Low 

    

 

Negligible Marginal Serious Critical 

 
Impact 

Risks positioned in the blue zone of the risk matrix are a 
high priority and require quarterly mitigation and 
management. Mitigation updates are listed for these risks.  

 

Risks positioned in the green zone of the risk matrix are 
lower priority and require an annual review in Quarter Four. 

 

P
age 70



 

 

How to understand the layout of each risk 

 

Risk name 
 

Risk No. & Name 
The risk name is a concise and clear title for the risk 
 
 

Risk 
Current 
Position 

Shows the current position of the risk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 

    

  X  

 
 

  

    
Impact 

Review 
Date 

The date when 
this risk will be 
reviewed 

Description Description 
A description of the circumstances which help to 
generate risk. 
 
Impact 
A description of the predicted impacts. 

Risk  
Target 
Position 

Shows the desired position of the risk 
with completed mitigations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 

    

    

 
 

X  

    
Impact 

Target Date The date that 
the risk must 
reach the 
target position 
– through the 
completion of 
mitigations. 

Mitigations A mitigation is an action which is designed to reduce or eliminate the risk. Due Date  

History For each risk a history of risk review and improvement is shown 

Risk Owner The person with sufficient authority and resources to control this risk 

  

P
age 71



 

 

Operational Risks – Risks above Appetite / Tolerance 

 

 

 
  

P
age 72



 

 

Risk 1 

Wi-Fi Rollout – Non delivery  

Description 

The Council is currently trying to procure a provider of town centre Wi-Fi for 
the key service centres.  Risk review indicates that the risk has reduced one 
position in terms of likelihood due to agreement with CCC who is a key partner 
in the project. 
 
Impact 
Lost opportunity to improve access to WIFI for residents and business 
 

Current Position of Risk 

This risk matrix shows the current 

position of the risk. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 

Blue zone: manage quarterly  

Review Date: 

Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 

This risk matrix shows the desired position of 

the risk following the completion of 

mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 

Blue zone: manage quarterly  

Target Date: 

March 2020 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

1. Organise joint meeting between SLDC 

and CCC legal teams to ensure requirement 

properly communicated  

Complete Operational Lead Specialist 

Services 

Complete 

2. Raise with relevant SLDC and CCC elected 

members to ensure officers are aware of 

the importance of concluding the 

agreement. 

Complete Operational Lead Specialist 

Services 

Complete 

History of Risk 

Improvement 

01/03/2017 – Risk Identified and entered into risk log  

13/03/2018 - Review of risk has identified an increase in likelihood of non-delivery due to legislative changes. 

13/03/2019 – Review indicates that the risk has reduced one position in terms of likelihood due to agreement with CCC who is a key 

partner in the project. 

P
age 73



 

 

Risk Owner Operational Lead Specialist Services Portfolio Economy and Assets 

 
  

P
age 74



 

 

Risk 2 

Loss of Housing Benefit subsidy  
Due to audit detection of assessment errors or delays, additional risk due to 
software system change over 
There is risk because errors and delays occur in benefits processing. There is 
a dependency on skilled posts in place to ensure accuracy during a period of 
organisational change. 
 
Impact 
Where errors or delays exceed 0.5% the Council must meet the full costs of 

those errors – in terms of overpaid benefit. 

Current Position of Risk 

This risk matrix shows the current 

position of the risk. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 

Blue zone: manage quarterly  

Review Date: 

Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 

This risk matrix shows the desired position of 

the risk following the completion of 

mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 

Blue zone: manage quarterly  

Target Date: 

March 2020 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Dedicated accuracy checking officer 

established 

Mitigations in place and 

established 

Operational Lead Support 

Services 

In place and ongoing  

Subsidy error report is monitored monthly As above As above In place and ongoing 

Accuracy testing feedback informs staff 

training 

As above As above In place and ongoing 

Accuracy testing feedback identifies 

performance issues 

As above As above In place and ongoing 

History of Risk 

Improvement 

For previous history please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Update 12/03/18: Additional risk due to software system change over. 
Update 06/12/18: Risk review indicates that the risk remains in the same position. 
Update 13/03/19: Review indicates no change to this risk. 

P
age 75



 

 

Risk Owner Operational Lead Support Services Portfolio Finance Portfolio Holder 

  

P
age 76



 

 

Risk name 
 

Risk 3 

 
Lack of capacity in team because of 
pressures caused by Customer Connect 

Risk current 
position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
     

  x 
 

    

    

Impact 
 

Next 
review date 

March 2020 

Description of 
risk 

There is a requirement to release the 
Communications Team Manager to support 
the Customer Connect project. There is 
now a reduced risk that this will affect team 
capacity as there may be assistance from 
within the maturing new organisational 
model. However there could be extra 
pressures brought about by leaving the EU 
and potentially holding EU elections. 
 
Impact 
Lack of capacity for responding to  
communications priorities. 
Negative public image. 
Missed opportunities for positive 
messages. 
 

Risk target 
Position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
     

    

 
 

x  

    

Impact 
 

Target date March 2020 

Mitigations Monitor and review workloads on a regular basis. Interim arrangements in place. Mitigation Due 
Date 

Mitigation 
established and 
ongoing 

History of risk 
improvement 

For previous history please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
29/03/18: review indicates similar likelihood and impact for this risk 
19/03/19: review indicates that this risk has reduced one place in terms of likelihood as there is more certainty with regard to the 
new organisational model. 

Risk Owner Communications Specialist  

  

P
age 77



 

 

Risk name 

 

Risk 4 

Windermere lake encroachment debt 

recovery does not significantly reduce 

the amounts outstanding. 

Risk Current 

Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

    

  x 
 

    

    

Impact 

 

Next Review Date Quarterly 

Description of 

risk 

Reputational risk to Legal Services. 

Historically there has been insufficient 

resource for recovery on Windermere. 

Numerous challenges to the current 

square metre methodology have been 

made. Debts require significant Legal, 

Finance and Lambert Smith Hampton 

work in every case. 

Impact 
Unrecovered debts. Negative publicity. 

Risk Target 

Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

    

    

 
 

x  

    

Impact 

 

Target Date April 2020 

Mitigations 1. Regular progress reports to senior officers and members 

2. Reports to Lake Admin Committee and Audit Committee 

3. Regular 1-1 item with Assistant Director Resources 

Mitigation Due 

Date 

Ongoing - all 

mitigations are 

established 

History of risk 

improvement  

For previous history please see earlier versions of this register. 

29/03/18: Reviewed.  Significant improvements have been made in relation to this risk.  However, it is considered prudent for the risk to 

remain unchanged until the impact of such improvements has been monitored. 

P
age 78



 

 

 

  

14/03/19: Review indicates that debt has been reduced significantly and is now within corporate recovery rates. However the 

organisation is undergoing change and key legal vacancies will require maintaining - the risk position therefore remains unchanged in the 

short term. 

Risk Owner Lead Governance/Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring) 

P
age 79



 

 

Risk name 

 

Risk 5 

 

Risk of not being able to deliver legal 

commercial property advice and deal with 

legal aspects of encroachments. 

Risk Current 

Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

    

  X 
 

    

    

Impact 

 

Next Review Date Quarterly 

Description of 

risk 

Reputational risk to Legal Services. 

Impact 
Lack of delivery of key legal services 
Financial and reputational impacts. 
 

Risk Target 

Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

    

    

  X  

    

Impact 

 

Target Date July 2019 

Mitigations 1. Outsourcing of urgent legal commercial property matters to private practice to ensure 

continued delivery of effective legal service for Council.  

2. Use of locums to ensure continued delivery of effective legal service. 

3. Ensure proactive and prompt recruitment with regard to legal staff vacancies. 

4. Ensure compliance with processes and procedures in place to maintain positive 

communications between various stakeholders involved in such matters. 

Mitigation Due 

Date 

Ongoing - all 

mitigations are 

in place. 

History of risk 

improvement 

For previous history please see earlier versions of this register. 

29/03/18: Reviewed and updated mitigations.  Progress on recruitment has reduced the likelihood of any adverse impact to the Council. 

This risk is below risk appetite and therefore the next review will be during Quarter 4 2018/19. 

18/03/19: Review indicates that there is a risk of insufficient staff resources during the current organisational change – risk has been 

increased one position in terms of current likelihood. Mitigations 2 and 3 added above. 

Risk Owner Lead Governance/Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring) 

 

P
age 80



Appendix 2 
 

 
Audit Committee requested a review of Strategic Risk 5 ‘Impact of the welfare Reform on Communities’ to be reported to April 2019 meeting.  
 
The Council has many mitigations to reduce poverty and alleviate against universal credit impacts and these are listed below. 
 

 

Strategic Risk 5 

Impact of the Welfare Reform on communities 

 
Description 
The Council maintains this risk to mitigate as far as possible against the impacts of 
welfare reform. Welfare reform is a major element of recent government spending 
cuts resulting in significant changes to taxes and benefits - impacting on low-income 
tenants and social landlords. With the transfer to Universal Credit there have been 
widely reported issues and impacts on claimants across England. Central Government 
monitor the impacts of welfare reform and makes mitigating adjustments. Also South 
Lakeland District Council has put in place a series of mitigations which seek to reduce 
impacts – these mitigations can be seen below.  
 
The current risk position is proportionate in terms of the likelihood and impact across 
the whole of South Lakeland. The Council has put in place many mitigations to reduce 
poverty and to alleviate against universal credit impacts - the main mitigations are 
listed below. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 
 
 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

 X   

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Annual – end of March 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/20 

P
age 81



Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Revenues and Benefits has regular ‘Keep in Touch’ 
meetings with Department for Work and Pensions 
(DWP) and also Citizens Advice (CAB) 

These regular meetings share 
intelligence and situational 
awareness on any adverse 
impacts. 

Operational Lead Support 
Services 

Regular meetings are in place 

Revenues and Benefits ‘Discretionary Housing 
Payment’  

This payment eases financial 
pressures for eligible claimants 

Operational Lead Support 
Services 

Mitigating payments are in 
place for eligible claimants 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme This payment helps to reduce the  
financial pressures for eligible 
claimants 

Operational Lead Support 
Services 

Mitigating payments are in 
place for eligible claimants 

Building Financial Resilience Group was set up by 
South Lakeland District Council – it is a multi-
agency collaboration to reduce poverty. 

This group meets on a regular 
basis and delivers on a poverty 
reduction (financial resilience) 
action plan. 

Strategy Lead Specialist Regular meetings are in place 

History  
of Risk Improvement 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - The risk will be retained on the risk register whilst there is a potential for impacts. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - This risk received a special review at the request of Audit Committee. It was felt 
that the current risk position was proportionate in terms of the likelihood and impact across the whole of South Lakeland. The 
Council has put in place many mitigations to reduce poverty and alleviate against universal credit impacts and these are now listed. 

Risk Owner Finance Lead Specialist Portfolio Culture, Wellbeing and Leisure Portfolio 

 

P
age 82



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

South Lakeland District Council

Year ending 31 March 2019

March 2019

P
age 83

Item
 N

o.10



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress as at March 2019 4

Audit Deliverables 5

Sector Update 6

Links 15

2

P
age 84



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in 

delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

The paper also includes:

• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a local authority; and

• includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the Committee may wish to 

consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section dedicated 

to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications www.grantthornton.co.uk ..

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager.nt--transitioning-successfully/

Introduction

3

Gareth Kelly

Engagement Lead

T 0141 223 0891

E gareth.kelly@uk.gt.com

Jillian Burrows

Engagement Manager

T 0161 214 6302

E jillian.a.burrows@uk.gt.com

P
age 85

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/
mailto:gareth.kelly@uk.gt.com
mailto:jillian.a.burrows@uk.gt.com


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Progress at March 2019

4

Other areas

Certification of claims and returns

We are required to certify the Council’s annual Housing 

Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with procedures 

agreed with the Department for Work and Pensions. 

This certification work for the 2017/18 was concluded in 

November 2018. 

The results of the certification work are reported to you 

in our certification letter, presented to this Audit 

Committee.

Meetings

We met with Finance Officers in February as part of our 

planning liaison meetings and continue to be in 

discussions with finance staff regarding emerging 

developments and to ensure the audit process is smooth 

and effective. We also met with your Chief Executive 

and other members of CMT in November and December 

2018 to discuss the Council’s strategic priorities and 

plans.

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with network 

events for members and publications to support the 

Council. Members of the Finance Team attended our 

Financial Reporting Workshop, in February 2019.  

Further details of the publications that may be of interest 

to the Council are set out in our Sector Update section 

of this report.

Financial Statements Audit

We have issued our audit plan, which is on this Audit 

Committee meeting agenda. This sets out our 

proposed approach to the audit of the Council's 

2018/19 financial statements.

We have completed our planning work and our 

interim work is being undertaken in early April. Our 

interim fieldwork visit will include:

• Updated review of the Council’s control 

environment

• Updated understanding of financial systems

• Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial 

systems

• Early work on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing.

We will report any findings from the interim audit 

alongside the findings from the audit of the financial 

statements in our ISA260 Audit Findings Report in 

July 2019. 

The statutory deadline for the issue of the 2018/19 

opinion is 31 July 2019. We will discuss our plan and 

timetable with officers. 

The final accounts audit is due to begin in June with 

findings reported to you in the Audit Findings Report 

by the deadline of July 2019.

Value for Money

The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued 

by the National Audit Office. The Code requires auditors 

to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all 

significant respects, the audited body had proper 

arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 

decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned 

and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 

people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 

conclusion overall are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties

Details of our initial risk assessment to determine our 

approach are included in our Audit Plan. This is included 

as a separate agenda item. 

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report and 

give our Value For Money Conclusion by the deadline in 

July 2018.

P
age 86



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Audit Deliverables

5

2017/18 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work carried out under the PSAA contract.

December 2018 Complete

2018/19 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2018/19.

April 2018 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed 

approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2018-19 financial statements.

February 2019 Complete

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit Committee.

July 2019 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

July 2019 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2019 Not yet due

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work carried out under the PSAA contract.

December 2019 Not yet due

P
age 87



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 

achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 

public services, whilst facing the challenges to 

address rising demand, ongoing budget 

pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of emerging 

national issues and developments to support you. We cover areas which 

may have an impact on your organisation, the wider NHS and the public 

sector as a whole. Links are provided to the detailed report/briefing to 

allow you to delve further and find out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research on 

service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest research 

publications in this update. We also include areas of potential interest to 

start conversations within the organisation and with audit committee 

members, as well as any accounting and regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

6

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 

government sections on the Grant Thornton website by clicking on the logos 

below:

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 

specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

Public Sector
Local 

government

P
age 88

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Public Sector Audit Appointments – Report on 
the results of auditors’ work 2017/18

This is the fourth report published by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments (PSAA) and summarises the results of auditors’ 

work at 495 principal local government and police bodies for 

2017/18. This will be the final report under the statutory 

functions from the Audit Commission Act 1998 that were 

delegated to PSAA on a transitional basis.

The report covers the timeliness and quality of financial 

reporting, auditors’ local value for money work, and the extent 

to which auditors used their statutory reporting powers.

For 2017/18, the statutory accounts publication deadline came forward by two months to 31 

July 2018. This was challenging for bodies and auditors and it is encouraging that 431 (87 

per cent) audited bodies received an audit opinion by the new deadline.

The most common reasons for delays in issuing the opinion on the 2017/18 accounts were:

• technical accounting/audit issues;

• various errors identified during the audit;

• insufficient availability of staff at the audited body to support the audit;

• problems with the quality of supporting working papers; and

• draft accounts submitted late for audit.

All the opinions issued to date in relation to bodies’ financial statements are unqualified, as 

was the case for the 2016/17 accounts. Auditors have made statutory recommendations to 

three bodies, compared to two such cases in respect of  2016/17, and issued an advisory 

notice to one body. 

The number of qualified conclusions on value for money arrangements looks set to remain 

relatively constant. It currently stands at 7 per cent (32 councils, 1 fire and rescue authority, 

1 police body and 2 other local government bodies) compared to 8 per cent for 2016/17, with 

a further 30 conclusions for 2017/18 still to be issued.

The most common reasons for auditors issuing qualified VFM conclusions for 2017/18 were: 

• the impact of issues identified in the reports of statutory inspectorates, for example 

Ofsted; 

• corporate governance issues; 

• financial sustainability concerns; and 

• procurement/contract management issues. 

All the opinions issued to date in relation to bodies' financial statements are unqualified, as 

was the case for the 2016/17 accounts. 

The report is available on the PSAA website:  

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

7

PSAA Report

Challenge question: 

Has your Authority identified improvements to be made 

to the 2018/19 financial statements audit and Value for 

Money Conclusion?                                                  

P
age 89

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

National Audit Office – Local auditor reporting in 
England 2018

The report describes the roles and responsibilities of local 

auditors and relevant national bodies in relation to the local 

audit framework and summarises the main findings reported 

by local auditors in 2017-18. It also considers how the 

quantity and nature of the issues reported have changed 

since the Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) took up his 

new responsibilities in 2015, and highlights differences 

between the local government and NHS sectors.

Given increasing financial and demand pressures on local bodies, they need strong 

arrangements to manage finances and secure value for money. External auditors have a key 

role in determining whether these arrangements are strong enough. The fact that only three 

of the bodies (5%) the NAO contacted in connection with this study were able to confirm that 

they had fully implemented their plans to address the weaknesses reported suggests that 

while auditors are increasingly raising red flags, some of these are met with inadequate or 

complacent responses.

Qualified conclusions on arrangements to secure value for money locally are both 

unacceptably high and increasing. Auditors qualified their conclusions on arrangements to 

secure value for money at an increasing number of local public bodies: up from 170 (18%) in 

2015-16 to 208 (22%) in 2017-18. As at 17 December 2018, auditors have yet to issue 20 

conclusions on arrangements to secure value for money, so this number may increase 

further for 2017-18.

The proportion of local public bodies whose plans for keeping spending within budget are not 

fit-for-purpose, or who have significant weaknesses in their governance, is too high. This is a 

risk to public money and undermines confidence in how well local services are managed. 

Local bodies need to demonstrate to the wider public that they are managing their 

organisations effectively, and take local auditor reports seriously. Those charged with 

governance need to hold their executives to account for taking prompt and effective action. 

Local public bodies need to do more to strengthen their arrangements and improve their 

performance.

Local auditors need to exercise the full range of their additional reporting powers, where this 

is the most effective way of highlighting concerns, especially where they consider that local 

bodies are not taking sufficient action. Departments need to continue monitoring the level 

and nature of non-standard reporting, and formalise their processes where informal 

arrangements are in place. The current situation is serious, with trend lines pointing 

downwards.

The report is available on the NAO website:  

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-auditor-reporting-in-england-2018/

8

NAO Report

Challenge question: 

Has your Authority responded appropriately to any concerns or issued raised 

in the External Auditor’s report for 2017/18?

P
age 90

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-auditor-reporting-in-england-2018/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

National Audit Office – Local authority 
governance

The report examines whether local governance arrangements 

provide local taxpayers and Parliament with assurance that 

local authority spending achieves value for money and that 

authorities are financially sustainable. 

Local government has faced considerable funding and demand challenges since 2010-11. 

This raises questions as to whether the local government governance system remains 

effective. As demonstrated by Northamptonshire County Council, poor governance can 

make the difference between coping and not coping with financial and service pressures. 

The Department (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) places great 

weight on local arrangements in relation to value for money and financial sustainability, with 

limited engagement expected from government. For this to be effective, the Department 

needs to know that the governance arrangements that support local decision-making 

function as intended. In order to mitigate the growing risks to value for money in the sector 

the Department needs to improve its system-wide oversight, be more transparent in its 

engagement with the sector, and adopt a stronger leadership role across the governance 

network

Not only are the risks from poor governance greater in the current context as the stakes are 

higher, but the process of governance itself is more challenging and complex. Governance 

arrangements have to be effective in a riskier, more time-pressured and less well-resourced 

context. For instance, authorities need to: 

• maintain tight budgetary control and scrutiny to ensure overall financial sustainability at a 

time when potentially contentious savings decisions have to be taken and resources for 

corporate support are more limited; and 

• ensure that they have robust risk management arrangements in place when making 

commercial investments to generate new income, and that oversight and accountability is 

clear when entering into shared service or outsourced arrangements in order to deliver 

savings. 

Risk profiles have increased in many local authorities as they have reduced spending and 

sought to generate new income in response to funding and demand pressures. Local 

authorities have seen a real-terms reduction in spending power (government grant and 

council tax) of 28.6% between 2010-11 and 2017-18. Demand in key service areas has also 

increased, including a 15.1% increase in the number of looked after children from 2010-11 to 

2017-18. These pressures create risks to authorities’ core objectives of remaining financially 

sustainable and meeting statutory service obligations. Furthermore, to mitigate these 

fundamental risks, many authorities have pursued strategies such as large-scale 

transformations or commercial investments that in themselves carry a risk of failure or under-

performance. 

The report is available on the NAO website:  

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-authority-governance-2/

9

NAO Report

Challenge question: 

Has your Authority got appropriate governance and risk management arrangements in place to 

address the risks and challenges  identified in the NAO report?

P
age 91

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-authority-governance-2/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

CIPFA – Financial Resilience Index plans revised 

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) has refined its plans for a financial resilience index 

for councils and is poised to rate bodies on a “suite of 

indicators” following a consultation with the sector. 

CIPFA has designed the index to provide reassurance to councils who are financially stable 

and prompt challenge where it may be needed. To understand the sector’s views, CIPFA 

invited all interested parties to respond to questions it put forward in the consultation by the 

24 August.

CIPFA has also responded to concerns about the initial choice of indicators, updating the 

selection and will offer authorities an advanced viewing of results.

Plans for a financial resilience index were put forward by CIPFA in the summer. It is being 

designed to offer the sector some external guidance on their financial position.

CIPFA hailed the “unprecedented level of interest” in the consultation.

Responses were received from 189 parties, including individual local authorities, umbrella 

groups and auditors. Some respondents called for a more “forward-looking” assessment and 

raised fears over the possibility of “naming and shaming” councils.

CIPFA chief executive Rob Whiteman said with local government facing “unprecedented 

financial challenges” and weaknesses in public audit systems, the institute was stepping in to 

provide a leadership role in the public interest.

“Following the feedback we have received, we have modified and strengthened the tool so it 

will be even more helpful for local authorities with deteriorating financial positions,” he said.

“The tool will sit alongside CIPFA’s planned Financial Management Code, which aims to 

support good practice in the planning and execution of sustainable finances.”

CIPFA is now planning to introduce a “reserves depletion time” category as one of the 

indicators. This shows the length of time a council’s reserves will last if they deplete their 

reserves at the same rate as over the past three years.

The consultation response document said this new category showed that “generally most 

councils have either not depleted their reserves or their depletion has been low”.

“The tool will not now provide, as originally envisaged, a composite weighted index but within 

the suite of indicators it will include a red, amber, green (RAG) alert of specific proximity to 

insufficient reserve given recent trajectories,” it said.

It also highlighted the broad support from the sector for the creation of the index. “There was 

little dissent over the fact that CIPFA is doing the right thing in drawing attention to a matter 

of high national concern,” it said.

“Most respondents agreed to the need for transparency – but a sizable number had 

concerns over the possibly negative impacts of adverse indicators and many councils 

wanted to see their results prior to publication.”

As such, CIPFA plans to provide resilience measurements first to the local authorities and 

their auditors via the section 151 officer rather than publishing openly.

10

CIPFA Consultation

Challenge question: 

Has your S151 Officer briefed members on the Council’s 

response to the Financial Resilience Index consultation?                                                  

P
age 92



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

ICEAW Report: expectations gap

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 

(ICEAW) has published a paper on the ‘expectation gap’ in the 

external audit of public bodies.

Context:

The expectation gap is the difference between what an auditor actually does, and what stakeholders 

and commentators think the auditors obligations might be and what they might do. Greater debate 

being whether greater education and communication between auditors and stakeholders should 

occur rather than substantial changes in role and remit of audit.

What’s the problem?

• Short-term solvency vs. Longer-term value:

• LG & NHS: Facing financial pressures, oversight & governance pressures 

• Limited usefulness of auditors reports: ‘The VFM conclusion is helpful, but it is more about 

the system/arrangements in place rather than the actual effectiveness of value for money’ 

• Other powers and duties: implementing public interest reports in addition to VFM

• Restricted role of questions and objections: Misunderstanding over any objections/and or 

question should be resolved by the local public auditor. Lack of understanding that auditors have 

discretion in the use of their powers.

• Audit qualification not always acted on by those charged with governance: ‘if independent 

public audit is to have the impact that it needs, it has to be taken seriously by those charged with 

governance’

• Audit committees not consistently effective: Local government struggles to recruit external 

members for their audit committees, they do not always have the required competencies and 

independence.

• Decreased audit fees: firms choose not to participate because considered that the margins 

were too tight to enable them to carry out a sufficient amount of work within the fee scales.

• Impact of audit independence rules: new independence rules don’t allow for external auditors 

to take on additional work that could compromise their external audit role

• Other stakeholders expectations not aligned with audit standards

• Increased auditor liability: an auditor considering reporting outside of the main audit 

engagement would need to bill their client separately and expect the client to pay.

Future financial viability of local public bodies 

Local public bodies are being asked to deliver more with less and be more innovative and 

commercial. CFOs are, of course, nervous at taking risks in the current environment and therefore 

would like more involvement by their auditors. They want auditors to challenge their forward-

looking plans and assumptions and comment on the financial resilience of the organisation..

11

Solution a) If CFO’s want additional advisory work, rather than just the audit, they can 

separately hire consultants (either accountancy firms not providing the statutory audit or 

other business advisory organisations with the required competencies) to work alongside 

them in their financial resilience work and challenging budget assumptions.

Solution b) Wider profession (IFAC,IAASB, accountancy bodies) should consider whether 

audit, in its current form, is sustainable and fit for purpose. Stakeholders want greater 

assurance, through greater depth of testing, analysis and more detailed reporting of 

financial matters. It is perhaps, time to look at the wider scope of audit. For example, 

could there be more value in auditors providing assurance reports on key risk indicators 

which have a greater future-looking focus, albeit focused on historic data?

The ICAEW puts forward two solutions:

The expectations gap

Challenge question: 

How effectively is the audit meeting client expectations?

More information can be found in the link below (click on the cover page)

P
age 93



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Financial Foresight: Our sustainable solution for 
cash-strapped councils 

Grant Thornton’s new Financial Foresight platform helps 

provide local councils with financial sustainability.

Launched in early January, Financial Foresight is a 

unique platform that can help us provide financial 

sustainability to under-pressure local councils, using a 

combination of data, statistics and our expertise.

In December 2018, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) estimated that 15% of councils are showing signs of financial distress. If the 

rate at which these councils are dipping into their financial reserves continues, the 

National Audit Office estimates that 10% of councils will have depleted their reserves 

by 2021. The latest figures from our Insights and Analytics team 

suggest this could be closer to 20%.

Alarm bells started to chime at Somerset, Surrey, Lancashire and Birmingham 

councils last year. Yet it was the catastrophic near-collapse of Northamptonshire 

County Council - after it chose for five years not to raise council tax to cover its 

spiralling costs - that shone the spotlight on this widespread problem. 

Unless local councils can get to grips with the situation, we’ll all feel the effects of 

deeper cutbacks in public spending.

What’s causing the problem?

After eight years of government austerity which followed the financial crash of 2008, 

many councils are now digging deep into their financial reserves in order to provide 

public services to their communities – from social care to fixing potholes in the road. 

Pressure on funding is further impacted by rapidly rising costs – especially for 

demand-led services as populations grow and age. Within just a few years, many 

councils will not have any reserves left to fall back on, and some have already said 

they will be unable to provide any non-statutory services at this time. Overlay Brexit 

onto this situation, along with the anticipated financial pressures this will bring, and 

the outlook for local authorities is extremely challenging.

12

How can we help?

The investments we have made in analytics coupled with the commercial success of our 

CFO Insights tool has enabled us to develop credible financial forecasts for every local 

authority in the country. From this platform we developed Financial Foresight; a unique, 

forward-looking financial analytics and forecasting platform designed to support financial 

sustainability in local government. 

Financial Foresight takes account of factors such as population growth, development 

forecasts and demand drivers to project local authority spend, income and operating 

costs. It provides a baseline view on the financial sustainability of every local authority in 

England and allows leaders in each authority to benchmark their own outlook against 

others. This will help councils move on from resilience – or just getting by – to financial 

sustainability.

Head of Local Government Paul Dossett said: “Through Financial Foresight and our 

associated strategy workshops, we can support local authorities to test and appraise a 

range of financial strategies and levers to develop a plan for a sustainable future. The 

critical importance of authorities understanding their financial resilience is only going to 

increase, so we’re proud to be leading the market with this offering.”

For more information, follow the links below:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/councils-are-at-risk-but-do-they-really-know-

why/

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/from-resilience-to-financial-sustainability/

P
age 94

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/councils-are-at-risk-but-do-they-really-know-why/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/from-resilience-to-financial-sustainability/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Brexit Room - Increasing readiness and 
resilience within your locality

Local authorities have always navigated uncertainty and 

faced challenges on behalf of communities and this role 

has never been more important than now. Whilst the 

outcome of Brexit remains uncertain at a national level, it 

is essential for councils to set a path to ensure the 

continued delivery of vital services and the best possible 

outcomes for their local communities and economies. 

Whatever happens over the coming weeks and months, 

it is important that councils identify key Brexit scenarios 

and use these to frame robust local contingency plans. 

From our conversations with the sector we know that local authorities are at different 

stages in their preparation for this big change. 

Here’s a brief summary of the issues that we are seeing: 

Organisations

• Engaging non-EEA nationals within the workforce to ensure they understand their 

residency rights and are not receiving incorrect information from other sources

• Loss of access to key EU databases on policing and trading standards and 

changes to data sharing arrangements

• Uncertainty around continuation of EU funding beyond 2020 and the 

implementation of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund.

Services and suppliers

• Engaging with key suppliers to assess their risk profiles and resilience

• Dealing with the immediate strain on key services such as social care and trading 

standards

• Potential disruption to live procurement activities and uncertainty around the 

national procurement rulebook post OJEU.

13

Place

• Considering scenarios for economic shock, the associated social impact in the short, 

medium and long-term and the potential impact on local authority financial resilience

• Potential impacts on major local employers, key infrastructure investment 

programmes and transport improvements

• Civil contingencies and providing reassurance and support to residents and 

businesses.

Our approach

The Brexit Room is a flexible and interactive half-day workshop designed to sharpen 

your thinking on the impact Brexit could have on:

Your organisation – including considerations on workforce, funding, and changes to 

legislation 

Your services and suppliers – ensuring that critical services are protected and 

building resilience within supply chains 

Your place – using our proprietary Place Analytics tools we will help you to understand 

potential impacts on your local communities and economy and develop a place-based 

response, working with partners where appropriate. 

We can work with you to identify key risks and opportunities in each of these areas 

whilst building consensus on the priority actions to be taken forward. You will receive a 

concise and focused write-up of the discussion and action plan to help shape the next 

stages of your work on Brexit. 

For more information, follow the link below:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/brexit-local-leadership-on-the-front-line/

Brexit

Challenge question: 

How well advanced are your authority’s plans for Brexit?

P
age 95

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/brexit-local-leadership-on-the-front-line/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

MHCLG – Social Housing Green Paper 

The Green Paper presents the opportunity to look afresh at the regulatory framework (which 

was last reviewed nearly eight years ago). Alongside this, MHCLG have published a Call for 

Evidence which seeks views on how the current regulatory framework is operating and will 

inform what regulatory changes are required to deliver regulation that is fit for purpose.

The Green Paper acknowledges that to deliver the social homes required, local authorities 

will need support to build by:

• allowing them to borrow

• exploring new flexibilities over how to spend Right to Buy receipts

• not requiring them to make a payment in respect of their vacant higher value council 

homes

As a result of concerns raised by residents, MHCLG has decided not to implement at this 

time the provisions in the Housing and Planning Act to make fixed term tenancies mandatory 

for local authority tenants.

The Green Paper is available on the MHCLG’s website at: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/a-new-deal-for-social-housing

14

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 

(MHCLG) published the Social Housing Green Paper, which 

seeks views on government’s new vision for social housing 

providing safe, secure homes that help people get on with 

their lives. 

With 4 million households living in social housing and projections for this to rise annually, it is 

crucial that MHCLG tackle the issues facing both residents and landlords in social housing.

The Green Paper aims to rebalance the relationship between residents and landlords, tackle 

stigma and ensure that social housing can be both a stable base that supports people when 

they need it and also support social mobility. The paper proposes fundamental reform to 

ensure social homes provide an essential, safe, well managed service for all those who need 

it.

To shape this Green Paper, residents across the country were asked for their views on 

social housing. Almost 1,000 tenants shared their views with ministers at 14 events across 

the country, and over 7,000 people contributed their opinions, issues and concerns online; 

sharing their thoughts and ideas about social housing,

The Green Paper outlines five principles which will underpin a new, fairer deal for social 

housing residents:

• Tackling stigma and celebrating thriving communities

• Expanding supply and supporting home ownership

• Effective resolution of complaints

• Empowering residents and strengthening the regulator

• Ensuring homes are safe and decent

Consultation on the Green Paper is now underway, which seeks to provide everyone with an 

opportunity to submit views on proposals for the future of social housing and will run until 6 

November 2018.

Social Housing Green Paper 

Consultation

Challenge question: 

What does the Social Housing Green Paper mean for your 

local authority?

P
age 96

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/a-new-deal-for-social-housing


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Grant Thornton website links

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-caring-society/

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/care-homes-where-are-we-now/

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-rise-of-local-authority-trading-companies/

National Audit Office link 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-health-and-social-care-interface/

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-auditor-reporting-in-england-2018/

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-authority-governance-2/

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government links

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/social-housing-green-paper-a-new-deal-for-social-housing

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728722/BRR_Pilots_19-20_Prospectus.pdf

Institute for Fiscal Studies

https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/publications/comms/R148.pdf

Public Sector Audit Appointments

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

15

Links

P
age 97

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-caring-society/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/care-homes-where-are-we-now/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-auditor-reporting-in-england-2018/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/social-housing-green-paper-a-new-deal-for-social-housing
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 

and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 

for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 98



 
 

 

 

Chief Finance Officer 
South Lakeland District Council 

South Lakeland House 

Lowther Street 

Kendal 

LA9 4DQ 

 
 
19 December 2018 

Dear Shelagh 

Certification work for South Lakeland District Council for year ended 31 March 2018 
 
We are required to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim submitted by South Lakeland 
District Council ('the Council'). This certification typically takes place six to nine months after 
the claim period and represents a final but important part of the process to confirm the 
Council's entitlement to funding. 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gave the Secretary of State power to transfer 
Audit Commission responsibilities to other bodies. Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) took on the transitional responsibilities for HB COUNT issued by the Audit 
Commission in February 2015. 

We have certified the Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the financial year 2017/18 relating to 
subsidy claimed of £17.0 million. Further details are set out in Appendix A. 

We identified a number of errors in the initial testing from our certification work, which we 
have highlighted for your attention in Appendix A, along with the follow up issues from 
2016/17.  The claim form was amended for the majority of the errors identified, however a 
qualification letter was required to report the testing errors in Rent Allowances to the 
Department of Works and Pensions, including an extrapolation table of the potential errors. 
The DWP may require the Council to undertake further work or provide assurances on the 
errors we have identified. 

The indicative fee for 2017/18 for the Council was based on the final 2015/16 certification 
fees, reflecting the amount of work required by the auditor to certify the Housing Benefit 
subsidy claim that year. The indicative scale fee set by PSAA for the Council for 2017/18 was 
£7,552.  The Council requested that we complete the additional testing this year on their 
behalf, which has led to additional fees of £3,500 being agreed with the Council, resulting in a 
total fee of £11,052.  This would be revisited if the Department for Work and Pensions 
required additional work in any areas noted in our qualification letter. Details of the fee are 
set out in more detail in Appendix B. 

Yours sincerely 
 
Grant Thornton UK LLP 
 
John Farrar, for and on behalf of 
Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
4 Hardman Square 
Spinningfields  
Manchester 
M3 3EB 
 
T +44(0)161 953 6900 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

Page 99

Item No.11



 2 

Appendix A - Details of claims and returns certified for 2017/18 

Claim or 
return 

Value Amended? Amended 
value 

Qualified?  
 

Comments 

Housing 
benefits 
subsidy claim 

£17,022,734 Yes £17,016,696 Yes See below 

 

Findings from the certification of the 2017/18 housing benefits subsidy claim 
 
Follow up of 2016/17 issues  
Non-HRA Rent Rebate 
Our work on the 2016/17 claim identified a number of issues on Non-HRA Rent Rebate claims relating to 
misclassification of expenditure and overpayments.  As part of the 2017/18 certification process the Council 
has reviewed all Non-HRA Rent Rebate claims and amended the subsidy claim to correct all errors identified. 
 
The initial testing identified similar misclassification issues and also duplicate payment errors as a result of the 
change in system during the year.  As the full population was tested (due to there being less than 100 cases), 
the subsidy claim was amended for these errors. 
 
Rent allowance 
In 2016/17, one case was identified where the Council had incorrectly classified expenditure as backdated.  
The Council had already identified this as a high risk area and reviewed all backdated claims.  We re-
performed a sample to agree the backdated amount and reasons for backdating, with no further action 
required. 
 
The initial testing identified one case where incorrect child care costs had been included as part of the income 
calculation.  We carried out 40+ testing in this area where further child care cost errors were identified, the 
results were included in an extrapolation table in the qualification letter. 
 
The additional testing in this cell also identified one case which had been affected by a bug in the Civica 
system, this was included as an observation in the qualification letter and also within the extrapolation table. 
 
Modified schemes 
Last year, one case was identified where the Council had used an incorrect income figure resulting in the split 
between modified and normal expenditure being incorrect.  
 
The initial testing identified four cases which were coded to Modified Schemes where there was no war 
pension, therefore all cases were to be checked for validity.  
 
We have reviewed all modified scheme cases in 2017/18 for both income and validity and the Council has 
amended the claim form to account for the errors found. 
 
 

  

Page 100



 3 

Appendix B: Fees for 2017/18 certification work 

Claim or return 2016/17 
fee (£)  

2017/18 
indicative 
fee (£) 

2017/18 
actual fee 
(£) 

Variance 
(£) 

Explanation for variances 

Housing benefits 
subsidy claim 
(BEN01) 

£7,545 £7,552 £11,052 £3,500 The Council requested that we 
undertake additional testing on 
its behalf this year which was 
not in the original scope of 
our engagement nor within the 
baseline fee set by PSAA. 

Total £7,545 £7,552 £11,052 £3,500  

  

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2019

South Lakeland District Council

28 February 2019

P
age 103

Item
 N

o.12



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Introduction & headlines 3

2. Key matters impacting our audit                                                                                             4                                                   

3. Significant risks identified 5

4. Other matters 7

5. Materiality 8

8.    Value for Money arrangements                                                                                           9

9. Audit logistics, team & fees                                                                                                 10

10. Independence & non-audit services 11

Appendices

A. Audit Approach 13

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the

Authority or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.

We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,

nor intended for, any other purpose.

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Gareth Kelly

Associate Director

T:  0141 223 0891

E: gareth.kelly@uk.gt.com

Jillian Burrows

Senior Manager

T: 0161 214 6302

E: jillian.a.burrows@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 

is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 

Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

P
age 104

mailto:gareth.kelly@uk.gt.com
mailto:jillian.a.burrows@uk.gt.com


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 3

Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory

audit of South Lakeland District Council (‘the Authority’) for those charged with

governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit

Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin

and end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities

are also set out in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities

issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for

appointing us as auditor of South Lakeland District Council. We draw your attention

to both of these documents on the PSAA website.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on

Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

• Authority’s financial statements that have been prepared by management with the

oversight of those charged with governance (the Audit committee); and

• Value for Money arrangements in place at the Authority for securing economy, efficiency

and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit Committee of

your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Authority to ensure that proper arrangements

are in place for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly

accounted for. We have considered how the Authority is fulfilling these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Authority's business and is

risk based. We will be using our new audit methodology and tool, LEAP, for the 2018/19 audit.

It will enable us to be more responsive to changes that may occur in your organisation.

Significant risks Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been 

identified as:

• Management override of controls

• Valuation of land and buildings

• Valuation of pension fund net liability

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit 

Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £1.372m (PY £1.325m) for the Authority, which equates to 2% of your prior year gross 

expenditure for the year. We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to 

those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been set at £0.068m (PY £0.066m). 

Value for Money arrangements Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following VFM significant risk on financial 

sustainability and the significant savings contributions from the Customer Connect Programme.

Audit logistics Our interim visit will take place in April and our final visit will take place in June and July. Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and our 

Audit Findings Report. Our audit approach is detailed in Appendix A.

Our fee for the audit will be £43,005 (PY: £55,851) for the Authority, subject to the Authority meeting our requirements set out on page 10.

Independence We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements..

P
age 105

https://www.psaa.co.uk/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 4

Key matters impacting our audit

Internal and external factors

Our response

.

The wider economy and political uncertainty

Local Government funding continues to be stretched with 

increasing cost pressures and demand from residents. 

The MTFS will be presented on 26 February 2019. Whilst 

a balanced budget can be achieved in 2019/20, the 

Council will need to seek additional savings on top of 

those already being generated by Customer Connect 

from 2020/21 onwards.

At a national level, the government continues its 

negotiation with the EU over Brexit, and future 

arrangements remain clouded in uncertainty. The 

Authority will need to ensure that it is prepared for all 

outcomes, including in terms of any impact on contracts, 

on service delivery and on its support for local people 

and businesses. 

• We will consider your arrangements for managing 

and reporting your financial resources as part of our 

work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

• We will consider whether your disclosures around 

going concern are sufficient to meet the Code 

requirements. 

New audit methodology

We will be using our new audit methodology and tool, 

LEAP, for the 2018/19 audit. It will enable us to be 

more responsive to changes that may occur in your 

organisation and more easily incorporate our 

knowledge of the Authority into our risk assessment 

and testing approach. 

Changes to the CIPFA 2018/19 Accounting Code 

The most significant changes relate to the adoption of:

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which impacts on the 

classification and measurement of financial assets 

and introduces a new impairment model. 

• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

which introduces a five step approach to revenue 

recognition.

The Finance Team have already commenced their 

work to establish the impact of these standards.

Customer Connect Programme

On 24 July 2018 the Council approved the business case, 

including the new operating model for the Authority, under 

the Customer Connect Programme.  A key part of this 

change programme relates to a management restructure, 

with the key focus bring that operational decision making is 

moved as close to the customer as possible.

The new structure will take effect from 1 April 2019 and it is 

anticipated that it will contribute £740k of savings in 2019/20 

and £1.55m from 2020/21.  

This is a new way of working for the Council and is not 

without challenges. Whilst key members of the current senior 

management team will be retained until 31 May 2019, the 

new management team will need to manage the 

implementation of revised working practices alongside 

ensuring the year end processes for production of the 

financial statements, annual governance statement and 

associated documentation remain as ‘business as usual’.  

• You will see changes in the terminology we use in our 

reports that will align more closely with the ISAs

• We will keep you informed of changes to the financial  

reporting requirements for 2018/19 through on-going 

discussions.

• As part of our opinion on your financial statements, 

we will consider whether your financial statements 

reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2018/19 

CIPFA Code.

• We will maintain our regular dialogue with the Finance 

Team to review and monitor the impact that the 

management restructure and revised working 

practices may have on the efficient and robust year 

end processes.  

• We will continue to monitor progress in relation to the 

implementation of Customer Connect as part of our 

Value for Money conclusion.  

P
age 106



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 5

Significant risks identified

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, 

the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of 

management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The Authority faces 

external scrutiny of its spending and this could potentially place management 

under undue pressure in terms of how they report performance.

We therefore identified management override of control, in particular journals, 

management estimates and transactions outside the course of business as a 

significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of 

material misstatement.

We will:

• evaluate the design effectiveness of management 

controls over journals

• analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for 

selecting high risk unusual journals 

• test unusual journals recorded during the year and after 

the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and 

corroboration

• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and 

critical judgements applied made by management and 

consider their reasonableness with regard to 

corroborative evidence

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting 

policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

Income from fees and charges Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be

misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.

For South Lakeland District Council we have concluded that the greatest risk

of material misstatement relates to fees and charges income. We have

therefore identified the occurrence and accuracy of fees and charges income

as a significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of

material misstatement and a key audit matter.

We have rebutted this presumed risk for the other revenue streams of the

Authority because:

• Other income streams are primarily derived from grants or formula based

income from central government and tax payers.

We will:

• evaluate the Authority’s accounting policy for recognition

of income from fees and charges for appropriateness;

• gain an understanding of the Authority's system for

accounting for income from fees and charges and

evaluate the design of the associated controls;

• Agree, on a sample basis, amounts recognised as

income from fees and charges in the financial statements

to gain assurance over occurrence and accuracy.

P
age 107



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 6

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of 

land and 

buildings

The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a rolling four-yearly basis. This 

valuation represents a significant estimate by management in the financial 

statements due to the size of the asset base, numbers involved and the 

sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key assumptions. Additionally, 

management will need to ensure the carrying value in the financial statements 

is not materially different from the current value or the fair value (for surplus 

assets) at the financial statements date, where a rolling programme is used.

We therefore identified valuation of land and buildings, particularly revaluations

and impairments, as a significant risk, which was one of the most significant

assessed risks of material misstatement, and a key audit matter.

We will:

• evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of

the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of

their work

• evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert

• write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried

out

• challenge the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess

completeness and consistency with our understanding

• test revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly

into the Authority’s asset register

• evaluating the assumptions made by management for those assets not 

revalued during the year and how management has satisfied themselves 

that these are not materially different to current value at year end.

Valuation of 

the pension 

fund net 

liability

The Authority's pension fund net liability, as reflected in its balance sheet as 

the net defined benefit liability, represents a significant estimate in the 

financial statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant estimate due to the 

size of the numbers involved and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in 

key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Authority’s pension fund net liability as 

a significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of 

material misstatement, and a key audit matter.

We will:

• update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by 

management to ensure that the Authority’s pension fund net liability is not 

materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

• evaluate the instructions issued by management  to their management 

expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

• assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who 

carried out the Authority’s pension fund valuation; 

• assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the 

Authority to the actuary to estimate the liability;

• test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures 

in the notes to the core financial statements with the actuarial report from 

the actuary;

• undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial 

assumptions made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as 

auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within 

the report; and

• obtain assurances from the auditor of Cumbria Pension Fund as to the 

controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data; 

contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund 

and the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

Significant risks identified

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report in July 2019.

P
age 108



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 7

Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other

audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement and any other 

information published alongside your financial statements to check that they are 

consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and consistent 

with our knowledge of the Authority.

• We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual 

Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued by CIPFA.

• We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government 

Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

• We consider our other duties under legislation and the Code, as and when required, 

including:

• Giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2018/19 

financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in 

relation to the 2018/19 financial statements;

• issue of a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the 

Authority under section 24 of the Act, copied to the Secretary of State.

• Application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary 

to law under Section 28 or for a judicial review under Section 31 of the Act; 

or

• Issuing an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Act.

• We certify completion of our audit.

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material

misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each

material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material

balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will

not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the

appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the

preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is

a material uncertainty about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA

(UK) 570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption

and evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements.

P
age 109



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 8

Materiality
The concept of materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements

and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to

disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and

applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if

they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross

expenditure of the Authority for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same

benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage of our audit is £1.372m (PY £1.325m) for

the Authority, which equates to 2% of your prior year gross expenditure for the year. We

design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision.

The senior officer remuneration disclosure has been identified as an area requiring

lower level of materiality of £5,000 based on the disclosure bandings, due to it’s

sensitive nature.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we

become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a

different determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to

our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit

Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are

identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged

with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements

other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260

(UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken

individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative

criteria. In the context of the Authority, we propose that an individual difference could

normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £68,000 (PY £66,0000).

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of

the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the

Audit Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Prior year gross expenditure

£68.602m

(PY: 66.25m)

Materiality

Prior year gross expenditure

Materiality

£1.372m

Authority financial 

statements materiality

(PY: £1.325m)

£68k

Misstatements reported 

to the Audit Committee

(PY: £66k)

P
age 110



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 9

Value for Money arrangements

Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work in November 2017. The

guidance states that for Local Government bodies, auditors are required to give a

conclusion on whether the Authority has proper arrangements in place to secure value for

money.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys

resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks

Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that 

proper arrangements are not in place at the Authority to deliver value for money.

Financial sustainability

On 24 July 2018 the Council approved the business case, including the new 

operating model for the Council, under the Customer Connect Programme.  A 

key part of this change programme relates to a management restructure, with 

the key focus on bringing the operational decision making closer to the 

customer.

The new structure will take effect from 1 April 2019 and it is expected to 

contribute £0.740m of savings in 2019/20 and £1.55m from 2020/21.  The 

MTFS presented to Council on 26 February 2019 showed that, after inclusion 

of the Customer Connect savings a balanced budget can be achieved in 

2019/20.  However, from 2020/21 additional efficiencies are required of 

£0.62m and this rises to £1.985m in 2023/24.  Some savings have been 

identified from the capital programme from 2019/20 onwards but there are still 

significant efficiencies to be identified to achieve a medium term balanced 

position.

We will continue to monitor progress in relation to the implementation of 

Customer Connect as part of our Value for Money conclusion. We will also 

review your medium-term financial forecast and examine underlying 

assumptions and dependencies for robustness.

Informed 

decision 

making

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

Working 

with partners 

& other third 

parties

Value for 

Money 

arrangements 

criteria

P
age 111



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 10

Audit logistics, team & fees

Audit fees

The planned audit fees are £43,005 (PY: £55,851) for the financial statements audit 

completed under the Code, which are inline with the scale fee published by PSAA.  In 

setting your fee, we have assumed that the scope of the audit, and the Authority and its 

activities, do not significantly change. 

Our requirements

To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, you must ensure 

that:

• The draft accounts and AGS are provided to us by 31 May 2019 and are materially 

accurate

• Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts and other working papers are 

provided to us by the commencement of the audit in June 2019 and are in accordance 

with the agreed upon information request list

• All supporting schedules are clearly presented and agree to figures in the accounts

• Key management and accounting staff identified in our information request list are 

available throughout the duration of our audit visits to help us locate information and to 

provide timely explanations

• All audit queries are resolved promptly and within agreed timescales.

Gareth Kelly, Engagement Lead

Gareth leads our relationship with you and takes overall 

responsibility for the delivery of a high quality audit, ensuring the 

highest professional standards are maintained and a commitment 

to add value to the Authority.

Jillian Burrows, Engagement Senior Manager

Jillian plans, manages and leads the delivery of the audit, is your 

key point of contact for your finance team and is your first point of 

contact for discussing any issues. 

.

Planning and

risk assessment 

Interim audit

W/C 1 and 8 

April 2019

Year end audit

June and July 2019

Audit

committee

9 April 2019

Audit

committee

25 July 2019

Audit

committee

September 2019

Audit 

Findings 

Report and 

audit opinion

Audit 

Plan
Annual 

Audit 

Letter

P
age 112



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 11

Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm 

or covered persons relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us.  We will also discuss with you if we make 

additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters. 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 

Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Eth ical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered 

person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit 

Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 and PSAA’s Terms of Appointment which set out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local 

public bodies. 

Other services provided by Grant Thornton

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Authority. The following other services were identified.

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are 

consistent with Authority’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Audit Committee.  Any changes and full details of all fees 

charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit 

Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees. 

Service £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of Housing 

Benefits Claim

11,350 Self-Interest (because 

this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee  

for this work is £11,350 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £43,005 and in particular relative to Grant 

Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These 

factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

P
age 113



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19

Appendices

A. Audit Approach

P
age 114



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19 13

Audit approach

Use of audit, data interrogation and analytics software

IDEA

• We use one of the world's 

leading data interrogation software tools, called 

'IDEA' which integrates the latest data analytics 

techniques into our audit approach

• We have used IDEA since its inception in the 

1980's and we were part of the original 

development team. We still have heavy 

involvement in both its development and delivery 

which is further enforced through our chairmanship 

of the UK IDEA User Group

• In addition to IDEA, we also other tools like ACL 

and Microsoft SQL server

• Analysing large volumes of data very quickly and 

easily enables us to identify exceptions which 

potentially highlight business controls that are not 

operating effectively

Appian

Business process management

• Clear timeline for account review:

− disclosure dealing

− analytical review

• Simple version control

• Allow content team to identify potential risk areas 

for auditors to focus on

S
y
s
te

m
 (

7
3
m

 r
e
c
o
rd

s
)

Inflo

Cloud based software which uses data analytics to 

identify trends and high risk transactions, generating 

insights to focus audit work and share with clients.

LEAP

Audit software

• A globally developed ISA-aligned methodology and 

software tool that aims to re-engineer our audit 

approach to fundamentally improve quality and 

efficiency

• LEAP empowers our engagement teams to deliver 

even higher quality audits, enables our teams to 

perform cost effective audits which are scalable to 

any client, enhances the work experience for our 

people and develops further insights into our 

clients’ businesses

• A cloud-based industry-leading audit tool developed 

in partnership with Microsoft

P
age 115



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council |  2018/19

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 116



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Tuesday, 9 April 2019 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19  
 

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable 

Report from:  Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Report Author: Peter Harrison – Internal Audit Manager (Director, TIAA Ltd) 

Wards:  Corporate Issue 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report provides a summary of the progress against the Internal Audit Annual Plan 
to date in 2018/19. It provides the Committee with assurance through the individual 
internal audit reports for work carried out to date. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 Members of the Audit Committee are asked to note: 

 The progress achieved in 2018/19 in delivering the Audit Plan and the outcomes 
of completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1.  

 The attached audit reports at Appendix 2. 

 The progress achieved in implementing recommendations from previous internal 
audit reviews set out in Appendix 3. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 
Local Government Act. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the 
Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, internal control and governance processes, taking into account the 
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS). 

3.2 Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the Council’s 
senior management and to the Audit Committee on the systems of governance, risk 
management and internal control. 

3.3 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain internal control systems 
and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately managed and 
that outcomes are achieved. Management is responsible for the system of internal 
control and should set in place policies and procedures to ensure that controls are 
operating effectively. 

4.0 Progress against the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan 

4.1   The Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Committee in April 2018.  

Page 117

Item No.13



4.2 The progress report at Appendix 1 provides the Committee with a summary of the 
position as at 25th March 2019. The executive summaries for each completed review 
are included at Appendix 2.   

5.0 Audit reports completed in the period 

5.1 Appendix 2 contains the executive summaries of the seven audit report completed in 
the period: 

 Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers; 

 Health & Safety – Property Risks; 

 Cyber Security; 

 Customer Connect; 

 Homelessness; 

 Information Governance; and 

 Housing Benefit. 

6.0 Follow up of internal audit recommendations 

6.1 The latest position relating to the implementation of outstanding recommendations is 
set out in Appendix 3. 

7.0 Alternative Options 

7.1 There are no alternative options; the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that 
the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, internal control and governance processes, taking into account the 
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS). 

8.0 Links to Council Priorities 

8.1 Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements for 
governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of the 
Council’s strategic priorities. 

9.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

9.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report.  

Human Resources 

9.2 There are no direct staffing implications arising from this report. 

Legal 

9.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

9.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No      

9.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental impacts. 

Equality and Diversity 

9.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

Page 118



9.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no 
Equality and Diversity impacts. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council does not comply 
with legislative requirements as 
laid out under the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015. 

The Council does not 
receive adequate 
assurance over the internal 
control environment.   

Regular progress reporting 
to senior management and 
Audit Committee each 
quarter. 

Contact Officer 

Peter Harrison, Director, TIAA Limited. 

07970 376542 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Internal Audit Progress Report 

2 Audit Reports – Executive Summaries 

2a. Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers; 

2b. Health & Safety – Property Risks; 

2c. Cyber Security; 

2d. Customer Connect; 

2e. Homelessness; 

2f.  Information Governance; and 

2g. Housing Benefit. 

3 Follow Up Report 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Not applicable Not Applicable 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services N/A 

Section 151 Officer 25/03/2019 

Monitoring Officer N/A 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 25/03/2019 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Page 119



Circulated to Date sent 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 120



 

 

 2018/19  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council  

 
Internal Audit Progress Report 

March 2019 

 FINAL 

P
age 121



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
Page 1 

 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This summary report provides the Audit Committee with an update on the progress of our work at South Lakeland District Council as at 25th March 2019. 
 

AUDITS COMPLETED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO COMMITTEE 

2. The table below sets out details of audits finalised since the previous meeting of the Audit Committee.  

  Report history Number of Recommendations 

Review Evaluation Draft issued 
Responses 
Received 

Final issued 1 2 3 OEM 

Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers Reasonable 19/11/2018 31/01/2019 11/02/2019 - 3 - - 

Health & Safety – Property Risks Reasonable 13/03/2019 21/03/2019 25/03/2019 - 1 - 1 

Cyber Security Reasonable 11/12/2108 28/01/2019 25/03/2019 - 6 2 3 

Customer Connect Reasonable 29/01/2019 15/02/2109 18/02/2019 - - - - 

Homelessness Reasonable 07/03/2019 22/03/2019 25/03/2019 - 2 1 - 

Information Governance Reasonable 12/03/2019 19/03/2019 25/03/2019 - 3 9 1 

Housing Benefit Reasonable 01/03/2019 26/03/2019 26/03/2019 - 1 2 1 

Follow Up N/A 22/03/2019  25/03/2019 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL PLAN  

3. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2018-19 is set out in Appendix A.  

4. These final reports conclude the Internal Audit work for 2018/19.  

 
 

P
age 122



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
Page 2 

 

CHANGES TO THE ANNUAL PLAN 2018/19    

5. There have been no changes proposed to the Annual Plan; other than the proposed audit of additional DFG monies being cancelled as the council did not draw 

down any grant and therefore there was no requirement to have this area audited.  

FRAUDS/IRREGULARITIES  

6. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities that require the involvement of internal audit in the period since the last summary report was issued. 

PROGRESS ACTIONING PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 

7. We have made no Priority 1 recommendations (i.e. fundamental control issues on which action should be taken immediately) since the previous Internal Audit 

Progress Report.    

RESPONSIBILITY/DISCLAIMER 

8. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. 

The matters raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. No 

responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty 

of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by 

their reliance on our report. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 123



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
Page 3 

 

Appendix A 
 

Progress against the Annual Plan for 2018/19 
       

System Days Current Status Comments Audit Committee 

Debtors 10 Completed  September 2018 

Treasury Management 10 Completed  September 2018 

Budgetary Control 10 Completed  September 2018 

Procurement 15 Completed  September 2018 

Business Continuity 10 Completed  December 2018 

Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 15 Completed  March 2019 

Health & Safety – Property Risks 15 Completed  March 2019 

Cyber Security 8 Completed  March 2019 

Customer Connect 10 Completed  March 2019 

Homelessness 15 Completed  March 2019 

Information Governance 15 Completed  March 2019 

Housing Benefit 20 Completed  March 2019 

Follow-up 12 Completed  Each meeting 

 

   KEY: 

 = To be commenced 

 = Site work commenced 

 = Draft report issued 

 = Final report issued 

 

P
age 124



 2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 

 Appendix 2a 

 South Lakeland District Council 

 Assurance Review of the Use of Agency, 

Interim and Casual Workers 

 February 2019 

 FINAL 

  

 

P
age 125



 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT  OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

 

Procedures relating to the use of interim and casual workers are thorough 

and appropriate. 

Standard template forms are used to help ensure each recruitment is 

approved and processed consistently. 

The Council references the latest legislation and guidance in 

developing its procedures. 

Control over the use of agencies be centralised to ensure compliance 

with procurement legislation. 

Controls over the use of casual staff need to be strengthened relating 

to avoiding possible employment status claims and to Equality Impact 

Assessments. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements and controls in place for the use of agency, 

interim and casual workers. This review also considered the implications arising from 

IR35 legislation. The review covered the following areas: processes in place for 

identifying the need for agency, interim and casual workers; processes for booking 

and authorisation thereof; payment and authorisation of invoices, and; management 

information and reporting mechanisms. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 3 0 0 

 

P
age 126



 

      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

     South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 

Page 2 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed With reference to the LGA Guide to the 

Law on Casual Workers, specifically 

relating to 'umbrella' or 'global' contracts, 

it could not be readily determined that 

sufficient controls are in place to ensure 

that casual workers are not in a position to 

argue their status to be that of ‘employee’; 

thus potentially entitling them to a wide 

range of statutory employment rights and 

benefits not afforded to casual workers. 

Controls be strengthened to ensure 

that casual workers may not 

successfully seek employee status, 

for example by virtue of the length of 

their working relationship with the 

Council, or by arguing their working 

hours and patterns can be shown to 

be set and regular. 

2 Agree.  Business as Usual HR 

colleagues will undertake periodic 

reviews.  In line with Customer 

Connect the use of casual workers 

will be significantly reduced 

therefore mitigating current risk. 

Jan 2020 Senior 

Human 

Resources 

Advisor 

2 Directed The LGA Guide states that "local 

authorities are advised to include an 

assessment of [female casual] workers in 

their Equality Impact Assessments of their 

pay and reward policies". It could not be 

determined that such Equality Impact 

Assessments had taken place. Both the 

Partnerships and Community Project 

Officer and the Human Resources Advisor 

stated that they are not aware of any such 

equality claims having been made against 

the Council in the past two years. 

In line with LGA advice, an 

assessment of female casual 

workers be included in any Equality 

Impact Assessments of pay and 

reward policies. 

2 Agree, these have not taken place 

previously.   

 

Given the fact that there have not 

been any quality claims in the past 

two years does not present an 

immediate risk.  However as an EAI 

is required under the LGA we will 

commit to ensuring this is carried 

out in the future. 

Jan 2020 Senior 

Human 

Resources 

Advisor 

P
age 127



 

      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

     South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Compliance The choice of agency used to source 

agency staff was seen to be generally at 

the discretion of the recruiting manager. 

Given the level of spend on agency staff, 

without central control there may be a risk 

that EU Procurement Thresholds, as 

advised in the European public contracts 

directive (2014/24/EU), are exceeded. 

The directives set out detailed procedures 

for the award of contracts whose value 

equals or exceeds specific thresholds. 

From 1st January 2018, the threshold for 

supply, services and design contracts is 

£181,302. 

Control over the use of agencies be 

centralised to ensure compliance 

with procurement legislation. 

2 Agree. There is one particular area 

of the Council that is heavily reliant 

on the use of agency.  For this area 

it is proposed that on completion of 

Customer Connect this area is 

reviewed and options considered 

and a possible procurement 

exercise to be undertaken.   

Following completion of Customer 

Connect there will be minimal 

requirement for the utilisation of 

agency employees.   

Senior Management will be required 

to commit to the introduction of a 

strict agency process.   

Jan-June 2020 due 

to Customer 

Connect demands 

Human 

Resources 

Manager 

 

P
age 128



 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 

Page 4 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 129



 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 
Page 5 

 

  
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 
Page 5 

 

Detailed Findings 
 

Introduction 

1. This review was carried out in November 2018 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2018/19. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 

overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

Background 

2. The rules relating to IR35 were recently changed, placing a greater onus on public authorities to correctly determine the capacity in which persons provide services. 

Also, some employers have suffered adverse publicity through allegations of using 'zero-hour contracts'. 

Materiality 

3. For the financial year 2018/19 to date, the Council has spent £421,000 on casual staff, contract and agency staff, and IR35 Off-Payroll Workers (excluding National 

Insurance). 

Key Findings & Action Points 

4. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

5. The review considered the arrangements and controls in place for the use of agency, interim and casual workers. This review also considered the implications arising 

from IR35 legislation. The review covered the following areas: processes in place for identifying the need for agency, interim and casual workers; processes for 

booking and authorisation thereof; payment and authorisation of invoices, and; management information and reporting mechanisms. 

6. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 

has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 

and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

  

P
age 130



 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 
Page 6 

 

  
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 
Page 6 

 

Risk Area Assurance Assessments 

8. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are managed 

and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

Audit Contacts 

9. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Ian Goodwin  

Ian.Goodwin@tiaa.co.uk 

07867 526292 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

Audit Report Distribution 

10. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Kerry Wallace, Human Resources Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

  

P
age 131

mailto:Ian.Goodwin@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 
Page 7 

 

  
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 
Page 7 

 

Release of Report 

11. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 19th November 2018  

Date management responses received: 31st January 2019  

Date final report issued: 11th February 2019  

--------------- 

P
age 132



 2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 Appendix 2b 

 South Lakeland District Council 

 Assurance Review of Health & Safety – 

Property Risks 

 March 2019 

 FINAL 

  

 

P
age 133



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Health & Safety – Property Risks  
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT  OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

 

The Council engages a consultancy firm to provide the property services 

function, including planned and reactive maintenance and service 

contracts. 

Testing showed there to be sufficient, regular communication between 

the two parties to help ensure that the property services function is 

effectively managed. 

Records maintained are accurate and up-to-date and properly 

evidenced by supporting documentation. 

The Council does not have current contracts in place for its service 

work. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements in place for undertaking cyclical and 

periodic maintenance and inspection in relation to fire risk assessments, asbestos, 

lift maintenance, water hygiene and electrical testing. The scope covered Council-

owned properties excluding car parks. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 1 0 1 

 

P
age 134



   
 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Health & Safety – Property Risks 

Page 2 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed The Council does not have current 

contracts in place for its property service 

work. For example, the contract period for 

its Fire Protection Servicing Contract is for 

three years from 1st July 2014 and for its 

Legionella Monitoring Contract, four years 

from 1st September 2013. 

Contracts be put in place as soon as 

possible for the Council's property 

service work. In the interim, a 

contractual relationship be 

established ahead of the full 

procurement exercises and a 

timeframe and action plan for 

procurement of these services be 

established. 

2 Tender return dates for the service 

contracts are as follows: 

 

SLDC HVAC Maintenance Contract 

– Tender return date: 22.03.2019 

SLDC Fire Protection & Security 

Contract – Tender return date: 

12.04.2019 

SLDC Lift Maintenance Contract– 

Tender return date: 12.04.2019 

SLDC Sewage & Water Pump 

Maintenance– Tender return date: 

12.04.2019 

SLDC Legionella Monitoring and 

Water Hygiene contract– Tender 

return date: 12.04.2019 

All tenders are currently OTT, 

Assets team will require 1 week to 

evaluate and Legal will require 4 

weeks to set up the necessary 

contracts.  

All contracts to be 

in place from: 

SLDC HVAC 

Maintenance 

Contract – Tender 

return date: 

17.05.2019 

SLDC Fire 

Protection & 

Security Contract – 

Tender return date: 

17.05.2019 

SLDC Lift 

Maintenance 

Contract– Tender 

return date: 

17.05.2019 

SLDC Sewage & 

Water Pump 

Maintenance– 

Tender return date: 

17.05.2019 

SLDC Legionella 

Monitoring and 

Water Hygiene 

contract– Tender 

return date: 

17.05.2019 

Sion Thomas 

Property 

Services 

Contract 

Manager 

P
age 135

https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=cf545b79-ed2a-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=90b1fff4-e638-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=90b1fff4-e638-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=d3e29188-1439-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=80ef33e0-4f3c-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=80ef33e0-4f3c-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=1eb6d819-963e-e911-80f3-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=1eb6d819-963e-e911-80f3-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=cf545b79-ed2a-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=cf545b79-ed2a-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=cf545b79-ed2a-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=90b1fff4-e638-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=90b1fff4-e638-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=90b1fff4-e638-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=d3e29188-1439-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=d3e29188-1439-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=d3e29188-1439-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=80ef33e0-4f3c-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=80ef33e0-4f3c-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=80ef33e0-4f3c-e911-80f2-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=1eb6d819-963e-e911-80f3-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=1eb6d819-963e-e911-80f3-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=1eb6d819-963e-e911-80f3-005056b64545
https://procontract.due-north.com/ProjectManagement/ProjectDashboard?projectId=1eb6d819-963e-e911-80f3-005056b64545


   

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Health & Safety – Property Risks 

Page 3 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

1 Directed A cloud-based solution to the Technology Forge software be investigated, with 

a view to streamlining access between the Council and its third-party property 

services contractor. 

Awaiting GDPR data sharing agreement to be produced between Policy and 

Legal prior to placing order for the upgrade.  

 

 

P
age 136



   

 

   

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Health & Safety – Property Risks 

Page 4 

 

Detailed Findings 
 

Introduction 

1. This review was carried out in October 2018 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2018/19. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 

overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

Background 

2. The inclusion of this review reflects an increased focus on property by property owners. 

Materiality 

3. The revenue budget for 2018/19 for planned and reactive property maintenance and service contract work within the scope of this review is £517,000. 

Key Findings & Action Points 

4. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

5. The review considered the arrangements in place for undertaking cyclical and periodic maintenance and inspection in relation to fire risk assessments, asbestos, lift 

maintenance, water hygiene and electrical testing. The scope covered Council-owned properties excluding car parks. 

6. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 

has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 

and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

  

P
age 137



   

 

   

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Health & Safety – Property Risks 

Page 5 

 

Risk Area Assurance Assessments 

8. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are managed 

and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

Audit Contacts 

9. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Ian Goodwin 

ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk  

07867 526292 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

Audit Report Distribution 

10. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Ian Hassall, Assistant Director Strategic Development 

Sion Thomas, Property Services Contract Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

 

P
age 138

mailto:ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


   

 

   

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Health & Safety – Property Risks 

Page 6 

 

Release of Report 

11. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 9th October 2018  

Date revised draft report issued: 13th March 2019  

Date management responses received: 21st March 2019  

Date final report issued: 25th March 2019  

 

 

P
age 139



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 140



 2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 Appendix 2c 

 South Lakeland District Council 

 ICT Review of Cyber Security 

 March 2019 

 FINAL 

  

 

P
age 141



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cyber Security 
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT  OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

 

Appropriate operational cyber security arrangements are in place at SLDC, 

however, the control framework within which these function can be 

strengthened by: 

Documenting a cyber security risk assessment. 

Producing an ICT incident management policy and response plan. 

Updating the end user Acceptable Use Policy (AUP) and introducing a 

programme of information security / governance refresher and 

awareness training for staff. 

Establishing linkage between corporate information security policy and 

ICT operational procedures. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements in place to prevent or deter cyber security 

attacks or incidents, focussing on both the network and staff awareness. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 6 2 3 

 

P
age 142



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Cyber Security 

Page 2 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Recommendations marked * were also highlighted during the recent Local Government Association (LGA) cyber security stocktake 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed Information security policy is an essential 

aspect of the Council's governance 

framework, however, there is no clear 

linkage between corporate policy 

developed by the information governance 

function and ICT operational procedures. 

Additional policies and guidance are 

needed to strengthen the framework.  

ISO 27002, the international standard 

for information security policies, be 

used as a checklist to ensure the 

completeness of operational 

policy/procedures.* The policy 

framework be strengthened by: 

 Producing additional ICT operational 

policies/procedures to cover firewall 

configuration and maintenance, 

network privileged access, network 

monitoring, incident management, 

and anti-virus configuration and 

management; 

 Communicating recent changes in 

corporate ICT policy to all ICT staff 

and establishing direct linkage 

corporate policy and ICT operational 

procedures; and  

 Ensuring that linkage between policy 

and procedures is treated during 

Customer Connect service design 

reviews where appropriate.* 

2 It is good that what’s happing on the 

ground has been received positively as 

part of the Audit. 

It is Agreed that our documented IT 

procedures need to be updated as a 

record of how our working practices 

support and underpin the information 

governance framework. 

 

Agreed that the Acceptable Usage 

Agreement be updated and shared with 

all staff outlining change in ICT policy. 

 

Information Security is a key part of the 

service redesign process, in particular 

privacy impact assessments. 

 

 

 

30/09/19 

 

 

 

 

30/09/19 

 

 

 

Completed 

 

 

 

IT Services 

Manager 

 

 

 

Information 

Governance 

Officer 

P
age 143



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Cyber Security 

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Directed The responsibilities of end users of the 

Council's IT systems are set out in an end 

user Acceptable Use Policy and related 

Information Security policies, however, 

these policies contain little information 

regarding cyber security and should be 

updated to include advice on such issues 

as use of social media, phishing scams and 

other cyber threats.  

The Acceptable Use Policy be updated 

to include treatment of issues and risks 

such as phishing scams, malicious 

links, malign websites, malware and 

other cyber threats. * 

2 Agreed for the acceptable use policy to 

be updated covering the areas 

mentioned. This will be done before 

communicating to all staff in the 

recommendation above. 

31/03/19 IT Services 

Manager 

3 Directed The Council does not have a program of 

end user refresher and awareness training 

regarding information / cyber security. 

The e-learning system introduced to 

deliver GDPR training also be used to 

deliver periodic mandatory information 

security awareness / refresher training 

both to staff and Council members and 

followed up by email phishing tests. * 

2 Agreed for a training package to be 

developed and used as part of a regular 

cycle of training for staff. 

31/12/19 Information 

Governance 

Manager 

4 Directed A cyber risk assessment (virus intrusion, 

ransomware, hacking, phishing and social 

engineering, data interception, SQL 

injection etc.) has not been undertaken.  

Organisations are also often exposed to 

cyber-crime risks not just because of 

failures in technology but because of 

problems with people, processes and 

behaviour. A cyber risk assessment 

therefore needs to be at a corporate level 

rather than solely delegated to the IT 

department.  

A risk analysis be undertaken of the 

impact potential cyber threats may have 

on the Authority which should evaluate 

both technical and behavioural risk, 

cover those aspects of ICT delivery 

contained in the NCSC/CESG 10 steps 

to Cyber Security and include on-going 

consideration of security alerts issued 

by recognised cyber security 

authorities. * 

2 Agreed for the risks of Cyber threats to 

be reviewed at a corporate level using 

the NCSC 10 steps as a guide.  

This should be linked into the business 

continuity and disaster recovery plans. 

31/12/19 Information 

Governance 

Manager 

P
age 144



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Cyber Security 

Page 4 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

7 Compliance Some types of ICT incident response will 

require co-ordination between a number of 

officers, A co-ordinated and planned 

response will be essential in such 

circumstances. This incident response plan 

should be supported by detailed forensic 

readiness procedures in order to preserve 

evidence. 

A cyber security incident response plan 

be produced identifying the various 

types of action required to address 

known threats detailed in the cyber risk 

analysis, referenced to detailed 

procedures dealing with the different 

actions required to the diverse types of 

security threat to which the Council may 

be subject.* 

The arrangements for investigation of 

cyber incidents be supported by 

detailed forensic readiness procedures 

in order to preserve evidence to assist 

with the investigation and resolution of 

incidents and lessons learnt recorded.* 

2 Agreed that a security incident 

management policy and a 

corresponding response plan are 

required. 

30/09/19 IT Services 

Manager 

8 Compliance The cyber security incident plans and 

procedures should be periodically tested, 

for example by plan rehearsals and/or 

desktop scenarios.  

Once in place, the cyber security 

incident plans and procedures be 

periodically tested, for example during 

testing/rehearsal of the corporate 

business continuity arrangements.* 

The Audit Committee be made aware of 

the contents and requirements of the 

policy, procedures and response 

plans.* 

2 The Management Policy and response 

plan will be shared with Audit 

Committee when completed. 

31/12/19 IT Services 

Manager  

P
age 145



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Cyber Security 

Page 5 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

5 Compliance A firewall is in place at the South Lakeland 

House site. The firewall facilitates web-

filtering and includes intrusion prevention 

and detection functionality, the use of which 

it is recommended the Council explores 

further. 

The utilisation of the intrusion detection 

and prevention functionality provided 

by the firewall software be explored, the 

rationale for which will be an outcome 

of the cyber risk analysis referred to at 

Recommendation 4 and the 

implementation of which will inform the 

incident response plan referred to at 

Recommendation 7. * 

3 We are currently making use of the 

functionality of the firewalls – this is one 

of the main reasons for having them. We 

will work with internal audit to ensure we 

maximise functionality.  

30/09/19 IT Services 

Manager 

6 Compliance It was noted that firewall management 

arrangements are not detailed in a 

documented policy which should record the 

Council’s standards regarding 

ownership/responsibilities, configuration, 

maintenance and rule change 

management, on-going fitness for purpose 

and business continuity arrangements for 

all firewalls. 

Changes to firewall rules be recorded in 

the helpdesk or in a management 

spreadsheet and approved. 

3 Agreed that changes to firewall 

configuration be recorded and approved 

prior to being implemented. 

21/01/19 IT Services 

Manager 

 

P
age 146



   

 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Cyber Security 

Page 6 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

1 Directed Consideration be given to allocating lead responsibility for information security 

and cybercrime to a Committee member who can provide direction for and 

scrutiny of the SLDC’s information governance and cyber security 

arrangements; this role should also include presentation of details of significant 

successful and unsuccessful security incidents to the Committee, including an 

annual information security report. * 

Agree that this should indeed be considered.   

2 Compliance The inclusion of specific cyber security training in the skills and competencies 

matrix for ICT staff be considered.* 

Agreed that Cyber Security Training be provided to appropriate ICT staff. 

3 Compliance Consideration be given to strengthening information security by further 

restricting the arrangements for allowing the connection of external drives/USB 

devices to the network both to guard against virus intrusion and potential 

subsequent data loss. 

Agreed that we should review whether USB restrictions should be applied.  

 

P
age 147



   

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Cyber Security 

Page 7 

 

Detailed Findings 
 

Introduction 

1. This review was carried out in November 2018 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2018/19. Based on the work carried out an assessment of the overall 

adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

Background 

2. Cybercrime is an increasing threat to organisations, many of whom are not aware of the seriousness, and the impact, of a security attack should it happen, nor do 

they have adequate arrangements in place to prevent such attempts in the first place.  

Materiality 

3. South Lakeland District Council places considerable reliance on the security, integrity and availability of its computer systems for day-to-day operations and to 

achieve its business objectives. 

Key Findings & Action Points 

4. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

5. The review will consider the arrangements in place to prevent or deter cyber security attacks or incidents, focussing on both the network and staff awareness. 

6. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 

has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 

and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

 

  

P
age 148



   

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Cyber Security 

Page 8 

 

Risk Area Assurance Assessments 

8. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are managed 

and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

Audit Contacts 

9. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Peter Simpson 

peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk  

07580 700415 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

Audit Report Distribution 

10. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Simon McVey, Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 

Ben Wright, IT Services Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manage 

 

P
age 149

mailto:peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


   

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Cyber Security 

Page 9 

 

Release of Report 

11. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 11th December 2018  

Date management responses received: 28th January 2019  

Date final report issued: 25th March 2019  

 

P
age 150



 

 2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 

 Appendix 2d 

 South Lakeland District Council 

 Assurance Review of Customer Connect  

 February 2019 

 FINAL 

  

P
age 151



   
 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Customer Connect  
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT  OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

 

The Council has adopted a recognised industry standard Agile approach to 

its Customer Connect programme. This approach is recommended by its 

implementation partner Ignite, who have developed this based on similar 

successful business transformations achieved at other local Councils.  

Reasonable Assurance has been given as, despite there being no 

recommendations in relation to the current approach, there has been some 

slippage regarding timescales and budgets. This assurance rating attempts 

to reflect the balance between the two. 

Given the flexible nature of the project methodology, an opinion regarding 

the operation of the project management control framework during future 

phases of the programme cannot be offered. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the progress of the Customer Connect programme, including 

project governance, timescales, milestones and overall implementation. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 0 0 0 

 

P
age 152



   
 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Customer Connect  

Page 2 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

No recommendations were made. 

 

P
age 153



   
 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Customer Connect  

Page 3 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Maters have been identified. 

 

P
age 154



   
 

   

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Customer Connect  

Page 4 

 

 

Introduction 

1. This review was carried out in January 2019 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2018/19. Based on the work carried out an assessment of the overall 

adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

Background 

2. Significant investment is being made in the Council’s digital platform to provide more accessible and innovative means of communication and interaction with the 

public. The Council is working with an external partner to redesign services and introduce a new operating model which will see a reduction in the number of roles 

and generate annual savings of circa £1.55m. 

Materiality 

3. South Lakeland District Council places considerable reliance on the security, integrity and availability of its computer systems for day to day operations and to achieve 

its business objectives. The project requires significant up-front investment in resource, technology, hardware, and support and training to deliver anticipated savings 

into the future.  

Key Findings & Action Points 

4. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. There do not 

appear to be any findings to be addressed, 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

5. The review considered the progress of the Customer Connect project, including project governance, timescales, milestones and overall implementation. 

6. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 

has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 

and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

  

Detailed Findings 

P
age 155



   
 

   

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Customer Connect  

Page 5 

 

Risk Area Assurance Assessments 

8. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are managed 

and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

Audit Contacts 

9. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Peter Simpson 

peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk  

07580 700415 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

Audit Report Distribution 

10. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: David Sykes, Director People and Places 

Simon McVey, Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 

Clare Gould,  Partnerships and Organisational Development Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manage 

  

P
age 156

mailto:peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


   
 

   

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Customer Connect  

Page 6 

 

Release of Report 

11. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 29th January 2019  

Date management responses received: 15th February 2019  

Date final report issued: 18th February 2019  

 

 

P
age 157



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 158



 2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Appendix 2e 

 South Lakeland District Council 

 Assurance Review of Homelessness 

 March 2019 

 FINAL 

  

 

P
age 159



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Homelessness 
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT  OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

 

The Council's use of dedicated software helps ensure compliance with 

legislation and best practice; which was supported by the sample testing 

performed. 

Appropriate documentation is retained to provide a reasonable audit trail 

evidencing the support provided and decisions made. 

The working relationship with Cumbria County Council relating to service 

provision should be documented and agreed. 

The Council needs to ensure that it publishes a Homelessness Strategy 

every five years. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements in place for managing homelessness, 

including the implementation of new measures through the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 2017. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 2 1 0 

 

P
age 160



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Homelessness 

Page 2 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed Section 1(4) of the Homelessness Act 

2002 requires that the Council publishes a 

Homelessness Strategy every five years. 

The Council's Homelessness Strategy 

2013 – 2018, published on its website, 

was developed in conjunction with Eden 

District Council and approved by Cabinet 

on 26th June 2013. The Council has 

therefore been in breach of this Section of 

the 2002 Act since 2018. An updated 

Strategy 2019 – 2024 is currently being 

drafted for approval by Cabinet on 5th 

June 2019. Section 3 of the Act stipulates 

the scope and purpose of the Strategy. 

Section 1(4) of the Homelessness 

Act 2002 be complied with, in that 

the Council ensures it publishes a 

Homelessness Strategy every five 

years. 

2 We are on track to take the strategy 

to the relevant committees on the 

dates confirmed. 

30/06/19 Fiona Inston 

Public 

Protection 

Manager (this 

may change 

depending on 

changes with 

customer 

connect) P
age 161



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Homelessness 

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Compliance A recent document prepared by the Public 

Protection Manager entitled "Feedback on 

CCC" was reviewed. This summarises the 

ongoing working relationship with 

Cumbria County Council across several 

areas, including those related to 

homelessness. The document indicates 

that the biggest issue affecting service 

delivery is that the County Council is not 

involving the Council at a sufficiently early 

stage in the process. Discussions are said 

to be ongoing in this regard. Other noted 

issues include information sharing and the 

need for more joined-up working for 

complex cases. 

The working relationship with 

Cumbria County Council relating to 

homelessness be documented and 

agreed by both parties such that the 

service can provide appropriate, 

efficient and timely action. 

2 Work continues in this area and 

further partnership sessions are to 

take place with the CC to improve 

joint working in the future. 

30/09/19 Fiona Inston 

Public 

Protection 

Manager (this 

may change 

depending on 

changes with 

customer 

connect) 

2 Directed The only internal audit report within the 

previous 10 years relating to 

homelessness was issued in November 

2015 and covered the social lettings 

scheme. Partial assurance was provided 

and ten recommendations were made. 

The Private Rented Accommodation 

Officer stated that uncertainties 

surrounding the continuation of the 

scheme have meant that the 

recommendations have not yet been 

implemented. Funding for a further two 

years has been requested from the 

government. 

As far as they remain relevant, 

recommendations from the 2015 

internal audit report on the social 

lettings scheme be implemented 

once further funding is secured. 

3 We were hopeful that we would 

have received the additional funding 

as it was a sound application joint 

with Eden. Unfortunately the grant 

wasn’t approved and we are 

seeking further funding to support 

this work – if that fails we will need 

to undertake a fundamental review 

of the current scheme. 

31/12/19 Fiona Inston 

Public 

Protection 

Manager 

 

P
age 162



   

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Homelessness 

Page 4 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 163



   

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Homelessness 

Page 5 

 

Detailed Findings 
 

Introduction 

1. This review was carried out in February 2019 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2018/19. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 

overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

Background 

2. The Council is a local housing authority, as defined by legislation. As such, it has a legal responsibility to act to prevent homelessness and to provide assistance to 

people threatened with homelessness or who are actually homeless. 

Materiality 

3. From a total of 605 presentations during 2017/18, as identified in the Council's Homelessness Review 2018, 158 were homeless applications and 447 required 

advice and assistance only. Total presentations represent a 41% increase over the previous year. The Homelessness budget for 2018/19, as per the Public Protection 

Service Plan, is £359,000 and for Town View Fields Hostel is £96,000. 

Key Findings & Action Points 

4. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

5. The review considered the arrangements in place for managing homelessness, including the implementation of new measures through the Homelessness Reduction 

Act 2017. 

6. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 

has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 

and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Risk Area Assurance Assessments 

P
age 164



   

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Homelessness 

Page 6 

 

8. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are managed 

and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

Audit Contacts 

9. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Ian Goodwin 

ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk  

07867 526292 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

Audit Report Distribution 

10. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Ian Hassall, Assistant Director Strategic Development 

Fiona Inston, Public Protection Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

 

  

P
age 165

mailto:ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


   

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Homelessness 

Page 7 

 

Release of Report 

11. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 7th March 2019  

Date management responses received: 22nd March 2019  

Date final report issued: 25th March 2019  

 

P
age 166



 2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Appendix 2f 

 South Lakeland District Council 

 Assurance Review of Information 

Governance  

 March 2019 

 FINAL 

  

 

P
age 167



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Information Governance  
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT  OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

 
The Council is establishing a framework of appropriate and proportional controls to 

meet the requirements of the introduction of the General Data Protection Regulation 

(GDPR), nevertheless some work is still required to take this forward. The key 

findings from the audit are:  

Updates are required to the Council's Record of Processing Activity (RoPA), for 

example regarding data sharing arrangements.     

Some of the Council's information systems have not been formally assessed for 

compliance with GDPR; additional development work may be required by 

software suppliers. 

The means by which document retention timescales are applied to digital and 

non-digital records needs to be documented and recorded in the RoPA. 

Data Protection Impact Assessments will be required for any systems containing 

personal information which are significantly impacted by the introduction of the 

new technology platform. 

The GDPR project plan be updated to include, timescales, resources and 

ownership of residual compliance tasks. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review assessed compliance with the key [EU] GDPR elements of: 

 Governance; 

 Data Controllers & Processors; 

 Data Classification and Information Asset Management; 

 Data Subject Rights (e.g. Right to be forgotten); 

 Consent; 

 Privacy Impact Assessments; 

 Data Security; and 

 Breach Management. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 3 9 1 

 

P
age 168



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Information Governance  

Page 2 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed The GDPR compliance project was subsumed 

as a workstream within the Council’s wider 

Customer Connect programme. A project plan 

was prepared and implemented. The issues 

raised in this report indicate further work is 

required, in particular regarding updates to the 

Record of Processing Activity (RoPA), data 

sharing arrangements and drafting of 

procedural guidance in order to comply with 

the new data protection Accountability 

principle. 

The action plan be updated to 

include timescales, resources and 

ownership of tasks already 

identified together with any 

additional tasks identified in this 

report; this will provide an 

understanding of the resources 

required and timescales involved in 

order to complete work on the 

GDPR compliance framework. 

2 Agreed – Action Plan to be updated 

in line with the wider Customer 

Connect Programme – notably 

RoPA, data sharing arrangements 

and procedural guidance as 

commented throughout this Action 

Plan. 

03/05/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer (with 

advice from 

Projects & 

Innovation 

Officer) 

P
age 169



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Information Governance  

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

4 Compliance The Council shares data with other 

organisations for a variety of legitimate 

reasons. The RoPA identifies 172 separate 

instances where data is shared with other 

generic organisations. The data sharing 

register, however, lists only 18 specific 

organisations with whom sharing agreements 

are held.  

The RoPA identifies 13 organisations which act 

as Joint Processors of information with SLDC 

(column AJ), however there was no 

documentation available during the audit 

regarding the joint processing arrangements 

with these organisations and it is questionable 

whether they are all joint processors or simply 

undertake processing activity for the Council. 

Neither the RoPA nor the data sharing log 

identify the means by which data is 

shared/transferred, nor the security 

arrangements which apply. 

The RoPA be updated (column AM) 

to record: 

 the specific organisations with 

whom personal data is shared, 

ensuring the data sharing 

register is then updated to these 

organisations identified and used 

to track the receipt of data 

sharing agreements and/or 

GDPR compliance statements. 

 the arrangements for sharing 

data with processors/joint 

processors. 

 the security of data at rest, with 

the data sharing register(s) being 

used to identify the security 

arrangements for data in transit. 

2 Agreed – RoPA to be updated to 

include links to specific Data 

Sharing Agreements and GDPR 

compliance statements.  RoPA to be 

updated to include arrangements for 

data sharing with processors and/or 

joint processors. RoPA updated to 

include security arrangements for 

data at rest. Update Data Sharing 

register to identify security 

arrangements for data in transit. 

28/06/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

P
age 170



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Information Governance  

Page 4 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

5 Compliance The Council has a data retention policy and 

schedule, however the means by which 

document retention timescales are applied to 

digital and non-digital records is not 

documented.  

The means by which the Council's 

data retention policy and 

procedures are to be applied to both 

digital and documentary records be 

recorded in local procedure notes 

held and implemented/evidenced by 

the responsible data owners, with 

the specific arrangements for 

disposal summarised in the RoPA 

(column BL) and periodically 

monitored by the DPO. 

2 Agreed – Records Retention Policy 

to include local procedure notes to 

evidence specific arrangements for 

disposal summarised with RoPA. 

28/06/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

(working with 

Information 

Asset 

Owners 

identified in 

IAR) 

2 Directed GDPR awareness is included as part of the 

induction process for new staff and a 

mandatory e-Learning course available from 

the Council's Sharepoint site must be 

completed by all staff. Given the significant 

business transformation currently being 

undertaken by the Council, GDPR refresher 

training should be undertaken and tailored to 

the requirements of new staff roles once the 

restructure has taken effect.  

On completion of the Customer 

Connect programme and once the 

restructure has taken effect, GDPR 

refresher training be undertaken 

and tailored to the requirements of 

new staff roles. 

3 Agreed - current e-learning package 

to be reviewed in light of new staff 

roles - notably Customer Contact 

and Case Management roles.  

Consult and seek recommendations 

from Corporate Learning & 

Development Team.  Resources to 

be made available. 

20/12/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

(working 

closely with 

Corporate 

L&D Team) 

P
age 171



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Information Governance  

Page 5 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Compliance The Council maintains an information asset 

register (IAR) and from this a detailed data map 

was compiled based on a Local Government 

Association (LGA) Records of Processing 

Activities (RoPA) template/toolkit.  

A procedure for periodic review of 

the RoPA is required, which should 

include an updated information data 

audit completed by Information 

Asset Owners identified in the IAR. 

3 Agreed - IAR Framework and 

protocol to be developed with 

identified Information Asset Owners 

listed in current IAR. 

27/09/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

(working with 

Information 

Asset 

Owners 

identified in 

IAR) 

6 Compliance Discussion with the ICT Manager and the Data 

Protection Officer revealed that although the 

Council’s main information systems, Capita 

Revenues and Benefits and iTrent, had been 

updated to include new GDPR compliance 

modules, it was not certain that this was true of 

all systems/records containing personal 

information.  

The RoPA (column BA) be updated, 

where necessary, to identify the 

specific systems/locations where 

personal data is held and this list 

then be used to check that all 

systems are GDPR compliant, in 

conjunction with system owners 

within the Council and the ICT 

Team. An assessment be 

undertaken of any outstanding ICT 

compliance work regarding the 

Council’s information systems and 

records, and any tasks identified be 

added to the project plan with the 

timescales and resources required 

to complete residual tasks. 

3 Agreed – working with Shared 

Infrastructure Manager in ICT 

update RoPA accordingly to identify 

GDPR compliant systems. Working 

with Shared Infrastructure Manager 

assess any outstanding ICT 

compliance work regarding 

information systems. Include any 

actions as part of overall project 

plan (see Rec 1) to include 

timescales and resource 

requirement. 

28/06/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

(working with 

Shared 

Infrastructure 

Manager and 

Information 

System 

Owners) 

P
age 172



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Information Governance  

Page 6 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

7 Compliance GDPR places greater emphasis on a 

requirement for data controllers to document 

policies and procedures and to be able to 

demonstrate how these are applied in practice. 

Key policies were reviewed during the audit 

and amendments and updates suggested to 

the DPO, in particular that: 

 The Data Protection policy be updated to 

include details relating to data subject 

access rights, the lawful bases upon which 

data will be collected, data protection by 

default and design and the role of the DPO 

in a Public Authority.  

 The way in which the ICT incident 

management policy and the data breach 

policy interact should be described in 

those policies. 

The suggestions made to the DPO 

regarding updates to policies and 

procedures be reviewed and in 

particular the updates to the data 

protection and data breach policies 

be enacted.  

3 Agreed – Data Protection Policy to 

be updated.  Include links to ICT 

Incident Management Policy and 

arrangements as part of data breach 

reporting protocol and procedures. 

03/05/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

8 Compliance There is a Sharepoint site containing a 

comprehensive set of GDPR related policies 

procedures and on-line training materials. A 

number of suggestions were made regarding 

routine maintenance and consolidation of the 

SharePoint site the most significant of which 

was to review multiple copies of a Data 

Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) 

template located in different folders on the site. 

The suggestions made to the DPO 

regarding routine maintenance and 

consolidation of the GDPR 

SharePoint site be reviewed, and in 

particular multiple copies of a DPIA 

template be rationalised to ensure 

that the latest version of the 

template is used consistently across 

the Council. 

3 Agreed – ‘tidy up’ Data Protection 

SharePoint to ensure constituency 

of documentation. 

03/05/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

P
age 173



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Information Governance  

Page 7 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

9 Compliance The Council must inform people what will 

happen to any data it collects about them. This 

is usually done through privacy notices and the 

Council has published a set of privacy notices 

on its website and Sharepoint site/intranet. 

These were reviewed for compliance with the 

Regulation during the audit and a number of 

minor updates notified to the DPO for review. 

The suggestions made to the DPO 

regarding updates to Privacy 

notices be reviewed and in 

particular: 

 The Corporate Privacy notice 

published on the Council's web 

site be updated to make 

reference to the Council's data 

retention policy and procedures. 

 The privacy notice for staff be 

updated to include all data 

subject access rights. 

3 Agreed – Corporate Privacy Notice 

to be amended to make reference to 

Council’s Records Retention 

procedures.  Staff Privacy Notice to 

be updates to include subject 

access rights. 

28/06/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

10 Compliance The Council has determined the lawful bases 

upon which it collects and processes personal 

information and recorded this in the RoPA. The 

RoPA identifies 3 instances where Legitimate 

Interest is the lawful basis for data collection. 

GDPR requires that legitimate interest be 

established by the application of three ‘tests’, 

however, a link to the location of the Legitimate 

interests tests has not been entered in the 

RoPA.  

A link to the location of the 

Assessment of  Legitimate interests 

be entered in the RoPA at Column 

AV.  

3 Agreed – Legitimate Interest 

assessment documents to be added 

to Information Governance 

Framework and Data Protection 

SharePoint.  RoPA to be updated 

with relevant links. 

28/06/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

P
age 174



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Information Governance  

Page 8 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

11 Compliance In some circumstances people will need to give 

specific consent for their data to be processed. 

SLDC has established a framework with regard 

to obtaining consent. There is a Consent 

protocol and form and the Council has 

designed its processes to ensure that the need 

to obtain consent is kept to a minimum. The 

RoPA identifies 8 instances where consent 

must be obtained from customers/staff in order 

for the Council to collect and process their 

personal data. However, a record of Consent 

is not maintained and the arrangements for 

withdrawing consent are not clearly notified to 

data subjects.   

A record of consent be maintained 

by the DPO and periodically 

reviewed and confirmed that 

consent is still given by the data 

subject, with a link to the location of 

the record of consent entered in the 

RoPA at Column AZ. Data subjects 

be clearly notified of the 

arrangements for withdrawal of 

consent. 

3 Agreed – Record (log) of Consent 

Protocol to be developed and added 

to Data Protection SharePoint – 

reference to document within overall 

Data Protection Policy.  Record of 

Consent to include details of 

Consent ‘Owners’ with reference in 

IAR and RoPA.  Consent 

procedures to clearly detail 

arrangements for withdrawal of 

consent. 

28/06/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

P
age 175



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Information Governance  

Page 9 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

12 Compliance The GDPR makes privacy by design a legal 

requirement and requires organisations to 

undertake a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) 

when changes are made to systems which 

may impact upon the security, collection and/or 

processing of data. The Council has 

documented a Data Protection Impact 

Assessment procedure and has conducted 

impact assessments relating to two recent 

projects. However the PIA arrangements will 

need incorporating into other processes, for 

example for procurement and project 

management in order to establish an overall 

assessment framework. The introduction of the 

new digital platform will require Data Protection 

Impact Assessments to be undertaken for the 

majority (if not all) of systems holding personal 

data, this issue should be included in business 

transformation plans.  

An overarching Data Protection 

Impact Assessment framework be 

established, with the production of 

DPIAs and resources required for 

this being included in business 

transformation plans. 

3 Agreed – Data (Privacy) Protection 

Impact Assessment template is 

being used and completed in line 

with Service Redesign Programme. 

DPIA Framework to be established 

with specific references and links 

through RoPA and Data Protection 

SharePoint. 

27/12/19 Data 

Protection 

Officer 

 

P
age 176



   

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Information Governance  

Page 10 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

1 Compliance Consideration be given as to whether it is feasible or desirable to develop 

systems that allow individuals to access their information easily online. 

This is considered as part of ‘single customer’ account and single customer 

view development work.  This is in line with Article 15 of the General Data 

Protection Regulation (GDPR), specifically Recital 63 – “where possible the 

controller should be able to provide remote access to a secure system which 

would provide the data subject with direct access to his or her personal data.” 

 

P
age 177



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Information Governance 
Page 11 

 

Detailed Findings 
 

Introduction 

1. This review was carried out in January and February 2019 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2018/19. Based on the work carried out an assessment of 

the overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

Background 

2. The European General Data Protection Regulation came into effect on 25th May 2018 aiming to reform and standardise data protection arrangements across EU 

member states. On the same date the regulation was incorporated into UK law as the Data Protection Act 2018. The regulation requires organisations to strengthen 

procedural controls regarding their data protection arrangements. 

Materiality 

3. South Lakeland District Council places considerable reliance on the security, integrity and availability of its computer systems for day to day operations and to achieve 

its business objectives. Infringement of the basic GDPR principles for data processing is subject to administrative fines up to €20,000,000 or 4% of turnover, whichever 

is higher. 

Key Findings & Action Points 

4. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

5. The review assessed compliance with the key [EU] GDPR elements of: 

 Governance; 

 Data Controllers & Processors; 

 Data Classification and Information Asset Management; 

 Data Subject Rights (e.g. Right to be forgotten); 

 Consent; 

 Privacy Impact Assessments; 

 Data Security; and 

 Breach Management 

 

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance audits. 

6. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan.  

P
age 178



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Information Governance 
Page 12 

 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 

has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 

and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Risk Area Assurance Assessments 

8. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are managed 

and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

Audit Contacts 

9. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Peter Simpson 

peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk  

07580 700415 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

 

  

P
age 179

mailto:peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Information Governance 
Page 13 

 

Audit Report Distribution 

10. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Debbie Storr, Director Policy and Performance 

Paul Mountford, Principal Officer Performance and Intelligence 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manage 

Release of Report 

11. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 12th March 2019  

Date management responses received: 19th March 2019  

Date final report issued: 25th March 2019  

 

 

P
age 180



 2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 Appendix 2g 

 South Lakeland District Council  

 Assurance Review of Housing Benefit  

 March 2019 

 FINAL 

  

 

P
age 181



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council  

Assurance Review of Housing Benefit  
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT  OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

 

The housing benefit system provides an adequate audit trail, with 

additional information held in the document management system. 

Sample testing indicated that the controls in place facilitate the 

accurate and timely assessment and payment of claims. 

Approvals for amounts written off should be in line with requirements 

of the Financial Procedure Rules. 

Best practice be more closely followed by including Discretionary 

Housing Payments in the existing testing regime and completing a 

checklist for each decision check performed. 

Functionality within the housing benefit software may afford the more 

efficient management of Discretionary Housing Payments. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements in place for processing housing benefit 

claims and payments. In particular, the review covered: policy and procedure (mainly 

the application of statutory duties); notifications of changes in personal 

circumstances; Local Housing Allowance; backdated benefits; discretionary 

payments; payment processes (authorisation, BACS routines etc.); cancellations, 

overpayments and recovery action; quality control processes; dealing with fraudulent 

activity; system reconciliations, and; performance reporting. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 1 2 1 

 

P
age 182



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council  
Assurance Review of Housing Benefit  

Page 2 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Compliance Paragraph 28 of the Financial Procedure 

Rules requires that amounts above 

£20,000 to be written off individual debtor 

accounts are approved by Cabinet or the 

relevant committee. From a review of 

amounts written off during 2018/19 to 

date, one amount was in excess of 

£20,000. This was designated as a DWP 

Official Error. The Housing Benefit 

Manager confirmed that this write-off was 

not approved by Cabinet; instead being 

approved by the Chief Finance Officer. 

Amounts to be written off individual 

debtor accounts that are in excess 

of £20,000, regardless of the 

reason, be approved in line with the 

requirements of the Financial 

Procedure Rules. 

2 This write-off was not referred to 

council as it was a DWP error 

overpayment which we are bound 

by legislation to write off as 

unrecoverable.  The Constitution will 

be updated to reflect this in a similar 

manner to business rate write-offs.  

It is not a discretionary decision that 

the authority makes, therefore, there 

was no write off approval to be made 

by council, hence was not included 

in agendas etc.  Had it been a 

discretionary write off decision, then 

the procedures would have been 

followed for referral to council. 

31/12/19 Financial 

Services 

Manager 

1 Compliance The DWP Housing Benefit Quality 

Assurance Process Good Practice Guide 

states that "it is necessary that accuracy 

checks cover a full range of HB 

assessment work and are not just 

targeted at specific claim types such as 

new claims or change in circumstances." 

At present, the existing accuracy checks 

do not include Discretionary Housing 

Payment claims. 

Controls over Discretionary Housing 

Payment claims be strengthened 

and brought in line with existing 

controls by including these claims 

within the existing review process 

operating for Housing Benefits, in 

compliance with the DWP Housing 

Benefit Quality Assurance Process 

Good Practice Guide. 

3 Accepted. 30/09/19 Benefits 

Manager 

P
age 183



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council  
Assurance Review of Housing Benefit  

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Compliance The DWP Housing Benefit Quality 

Assurance Process Good Practice Guide 

states that "LAs should consider using QA 

checklists to ensure a consistency of 

approach amongst those conducting 

quality checks." At present, the Council 

only uses checklists if the original decision 

is determined to be incorrect. 

A suitable checklist be implemented 

for each housing benefit decision 

check performed, not just for 

decisions determined to be 

incorrect. This would accord with the 

DWP Housing Benefit Quality 

Assurance Process Good Practice 

Guide. 

3 Accepted. 30/09/19 Benefits 

Manager 

 

P
age 184



   

 

   

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council  
Assurance Review of Housing Benefit  

Page 4 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

1 Compliance It be investigated whether functionality within the new housing benefit software 

could reduce or eliminate the manual process of entering DHP control data via 

spreadsheets. 

Accepted. 

 

P
age 185



   

 

South Lakeland District Council  
Assurance Review of Housing Benefit  

Page 5 

 

Detailed Findings 
 

Introduction 

1. This review was carried out in February 2019 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2018/19. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 

overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

Background 

2. Housing Benefit is a statutory, income related benefit that is intended to help meet housing costs for rented accommodation. This review forms part of the rolling 

three-year programme of key financial and governance audits. 

Materiality 

3. The Housing Benefit estimated mid-year subsidy claimed for 2018/19 was £17,058,000. Discretionary Housing Payments (DHPs) are financed from a separate 

subsidy claim, for which the mid-year estimate for 2018/19 was £114,000. 

Key Findings & Action Points 

4. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

5. The review considered the arrangements in place for processing housing benefit claims and payments. In particular, the review covered: policy and procedure (mainly 

the application of statutory duties); notifications of changes in personal circumstances; Local Housing Allowance; backdated benefits; discretionary payments; 

payment processes (authorisation, BACS routines etc.); cancellations, overpayments and recovery action; quality control processes; dealing with fraudulent activity; 

system reconciliations, and; performance reporting. 

6. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 

and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 

has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 

and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

  

P
age 186



   

 

South Lakeland District Council  
Assurance Review of Housing Benefit  

Page 6 

 

Risk Area Assurance Assessments 

8. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are managed 

and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that risks are 

managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

Audit Contacts 

9. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Ian Goodwin 

ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk  

07867 526292 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

07970 376542 

 

Audit Report Distribution 

10. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Michael Fisher, Revenues and Benefits Manager 

Vicky McDonald, Benefits Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

  

P
age 187

mailto:ian.goodwin@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


   

 

South Lakeland District Council  
Assurance Review of Housing Benefit  

Page 7 

 

Release of Report 

11. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 1st March 2019  

Date management responses received: 26th March 2019  

Date final report issued: 26th March 2019  

 

P
age 188



 

 

 2018/19  

 

 

 
Appendix 3 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

 
Follow Up Review 

March 2019 

 FINAL 

P
age 189



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary  
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This follow up review by TIAA established the management action that has been taken in respect of recommendations arising from the internal audit reviews listed 

below at South Lakeland District Council. The review was carried out in February and March 2019. 
 

Review Year 

Follow Up November 2018 2017/18 

Business Continuity 2018/19 

Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers 2018/19 

Customer Connect 2018/19 

KEY FINDINGS 

2. The follow up review considered whether the management action taken addresses the control issues that gave rise to the recommendations. The implementation of 

these recommendations can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. From the work carried out the following evaluations 

of the progress of the management actions taken to date have been identified. 

 

Evaluation Progress in implementing recommendation Number of Recommendations 

Outstanding The recommendation has not yet been implemented but is still on target to meet its target date. 3 

Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date has not been met. 11 

Outstanding There is no tangible evidence that the recommendation is being progressed. - 

Completed The recommendation has been implemented and is now considered closed. 5 

 

P
age 190



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 2 

 

3. This review identifies that implementation remains by and large on track; although there has been some slippage, recommendations continue to be implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

4. The review considered the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the previous internal audit reports and to establish the extent to which 

management has taken the necessary actions to address the control issues that gave rise to the internal audit recommendations. 

5. The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all 

strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, 

although the audit procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control 

may not be proof against collusive fraud. 

6. For the purposes of this review reliance was placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and 

to ensure the authenticity of these documents. 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

7. The table below sets out the history of this report. 
 

Date draft report issued: 22nd March 2019 

Date draft report issued: 25th March 2019 

 

 

P
age 191



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 3 

 

Detailed Report  
 

FOLLOW UP 

8. Management representations were obtained on the action taken to address the recommendations and limited testing has been carried out to confirm these 

management representations. The following matters were identified in considering the recommendations that have not been fully implemented: 

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS REMAIN OUTSTANDING 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

1. Bereavement 

Services 

Management should assure 

themselves that efficiencies 

relating to future service 

planning opportunities have 

been fully explored and 

actions identified and 

progressed as appropriate. 

2 Fees and charges for this 

service area are reviewed 

annually. Emerging best 

practice and service 

enhancements are 

considered including 

alternative burial options in 

light of customer need and 

appropriate legislation at the 

time. These will additionally 

be considered in the drafting 

of the Parks and Open 

Spaces Strategy.  

Community and 

Leisure 

Manager/ 

Principal 

Community 

Spaces Officer / 

Bereavement 

Services Officer 

Assistant 

Director – 

Neighbourhood 

Services 

31/12/2016 31/05/2019 Outstanding 21/02/2019 The Green Spaces 

Officer confirmed that the 

draft Strategy went to the 

20th December Corporate 

Management Team 

meeting and that the 

revised due date is still on 

target to be met. A draft 

Parks and Open Spaces 

Strategy 2019-2029 was 

reviewed, which includes 

reference to the eight 

cemeteries owned by the 

Council. 

P
age 192



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 4 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

2. Bereavement 

Services 

Management should ensure 

that adequate arrangements 

are in place to review and 

assess the Services future 

planning arrangements.  This 

could include ensuring 

provision can be maintained, 

identifying ways of improving 

the service and possible cost 

reductions for the Council. 

1 This will form part of the 

Parks and Open Spaces 

Strategy that is to be 

produced by a consultant. 

Principal 

Community 

Spaces Officer 

Assistant 

Director – 

Neighbourhood 

Services 

31/12/2016 31/05/2019 Outstanding 21/02/2019 The Green Spaces 

Officer confirmed that the 

draft Strategy went to the 

20th December Corporate 

Management Team 

meeting and that the 

revised due date is still on 

target to be met. A draft 

Parks and Open Spaces 

Strategy 2019-2029 was 

reviewed, which includes 

reference to the eight 

cemeteries owned by the 

Council. 

3. Insurance A periodic reconciliation be 

performed between the 

system operated by Fleet and 

the claims system maintained 

by the Insurance Team to 

help ensure that all motor 

insurance work is properly 

claimed. 

2 We will work with Fleet to 

carry out reconciliations and 

will monitor the effectiveness 

of these. 

Financial 

Services Officer 

30/01/2018 31/03/2019 Outstanding 13/03/2019 The Financial Services 

Manager previously 

stated that reconciliations 

were anticipated to begin 

by the end of the calendar 

year. During the current 

review, the Financial 

Services Manager stated 

that implementation was 

in progress.  

P
age 193



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 5 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

4. Licensing – 

Premises & 

Clubs 

The Statement of Licensing 

Policy be amended to reflect 

the current application 

routes. 

2 The policy is set by statutory 

guidance from the home 

office, underpinning this there 

is an EU service provision 

directive requiring on line 

applications and payments.  

The current IT suppliers do 

not provide this capability and 

we have already recognised 

this as a significant weakness 

in the current system and is 

one of the main IT 

requirements in the new IT 

solution.  This is a key finding 

of the gap analysis. Due to 

the work involved and the 

cost we propose action is 

deferred until the new IT 

product is delivered. 

Public Protection 

Manager 

Principal Food, 

Licensing and 

Safety Officer 

31/12/2018 31/12/2019 Outstanding 21/02/2019 The new system is yet to 

be developed in line with 

the Customer Connect 

programme. 

The authority is in a 

process of change and is 

implementing a digital 

platform. Once this has 

been implemented the 

policy will be updated 

accordingly. This was 

reconfirmed with the 

Principal Environmental 

Protection Officer. P
age 194



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 6 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

5. Lake Services 

– Moorings 

and 

Encroachment

s 

Proper procedures be 

developed that evidence 

ownership of key areas of the 

service provision. 

2 An overall procedure that 

details responsibilities for the 

complete process of lake 

encroachment 

documentation and 

ownership is in development. 

Debt collection is via the 

Council’s agreed procedures 

and policies. Debt rose 

sharply during 2011/12 when 

changes to the method of 

calculation were made and 

this led to an over capacity of 

work for the Legal and 

Finance teams. The current 

debt recovery position is very 

encouraging and the position 

more secure following a large 

amount of work by the Legal 

Team.  Challenges are most 

commonly seen during works 

to develop sites and as a 

result of ownership changes. 

These relate to updated and 

revised plans and 

dimensions. 

Anthea Lowe, 

Solicitor to the 

Council. 

Helen Smith, 

Financial 

Services 

Manager. 

Sion Thomas 

Asset and 

Property 

Jim Maguire 

Community and 

Leisure Manager 

31/10/2018   January 

2020 

Outstanding 25/02/2019 The Solicitor to the 

Council stated that a 

meeting has taken place 

between officers of the 

Council and Lambert 

Smith Hampton to 

discuss roles and 

responsibilities and a brief 

summary document is 

currently being worked 

on. It is felt however  that, 

with the work currently 

being undertaken as part 

of Customer Connect, 

there would be benefit in 

inviting the Process 

Design team to consider 

this as part of their wider 

process redesign role so 

as to ensure an effective, 

slick process is 

implemented that 

properly reflects the 

structures in place 

following CC. 

P
age 195



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 7 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

6. Lake Services 

– Moorings 

and 

Encroachment

s 

Invoiced amounts for 

encroachments be properly 

determined using accurate 

encroachment dimensions. 

Agreements be updated 

accordingly and invoices 

raised at correct rates, be 

they residential or 

commercial. This proper 

determination of invoiced 

amounts be effected more 

economically via a phased 

approach, on a case by case 

basis, rather than a full lake 

survey. 

2 The current Asset Database 

used by the Council and LSH 

is in the process of being 

updated. It is anticipated that 

this work will be completed by 

31st December 2018.  

Budgets are in place to 

complete this work. 

Also note that updated plans 

and dimensions are 

established whenever works 

to sites are approved and on 

completion, when the legal 

ownership transfers between 

parties and during the 

resolution of any dispute 

process.  This has been the 

case since the registration of 

the title occurred in 2006. 

Sion Thomas 

Asset and 

Property 

Manager with 

Lambert Smith 

Hampton.   

31/12/2018 30/04/2019 Outstanding 25/02/2019 The Asset and Property 

Manager stated that once 

Technology Forge Cloud 

is installed, expected 

completion of which is 

30/04/2019, all data will 

be held centrally, 

eliminating the risk of 

mismatching or incorrect 

data being used for 

encroachment fees. Also, 

LSH are working with the 

IT department to obtain 

necessary land registry 

electronic files so that 

information can be 

downloaded to the GIS 

mapping system, thereby 

allowing all parties to use 

the same land ownership 

line. As and when the 

encroachment agreement 

is renewed or where a 

jetty or encroachment is 

constructed, a full site 

measure is undertaken 

and will then will be input 

to TF Cloud. 

P
age 196



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 8 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

7. Awarding of 

Grants 

An overarching policy on the 

provision of financial aid be 

approved which addresses 

any potential provision of 

State Aid. 

2 Following completion of the 

review recommended at point 

10 above, an overarching 

policy can be prepared which 

will set out the broad 

principles to be taken into 

account when entering into 

grant arrangements with an 

economic activity. This will be 

completed within 3 months of 

completion of 

recommendation 10. 

Solicitor to the 

Council 

31/03/2019 30/06/2019 Outstanding 25/02/2019 The Solicitor to the 

Council stated that work 

will commence on this 

shortly, however, due to 

the imminent departure of 

the Solicitor to the 

Council, there is potential 

for this deadline to pass 

and this will be handed 

over as a priority for the 

new post-holder. 

8. Awarding of 

Grants 

Training be delivered to 

relevant Officers such that 

State Aid rules and related 

risks be sufficiently 

understood and that 

concerns be reported to a 

central Council Officer or 

team. 

2 It is considered that training 

should be offered to 

Members as well as officers 

given the potential 

implications of providing 

unlawful State Aid.  Given the 

complexities surrounding 

State Aid, steps have been 

taken to seek an external 

training provider. 

Solicitor to the 

Council 

31/12/2018 30/06/2019 Outstanding 25/02/2019 The Solicitor to the 

Council stated that due to 

the date on which the 

grant review was 

completed, this training 

has not yet been 

undertaken.  However, 

requests have been made 

to a number of training 

providers seeking costs 

estimate for delivery. 

P
age 197



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 9 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

9. Debtors Procedures be amended to 

highlight the importance of 

the existing mitigating 

controls that address the risk 

that a separation of duties 

does not exist between the 

person raising and the 

person authorising a sales 

invoice and the risk that 

authorisation levels for sales 

invoices are not defined. 

2 There are an increasing 

proportion of invoices raised 

through interfaces from other 

systems, particularly for rents 

from the Technology Forge 

system which would 

complicate the approval 

process.   

The Customer Connect 

programme includes a full 

review of all processes.  This 

recommendation will be 

considered as part of that 

review. 

Chief 

Accountant 

31/03/19 

as part of 

phase 1 of 

Customer 

Connect 

(support 

services) 

30/09/2019 Outstanding 02/03/2019 The Financial Services 

Manager stated that the 

Customer Connect 

service redesign for 

debtors will not be before 

the end of the financial 

year and that the 

implementation of this 

recommendation is now 

expected to be delayed 

by six months. 

10. Treasury 

Management 

The four clauses listed in 

Section 5 of the CIPFA 

Treasury Management in the 

Public Services: Code of 

Practice be formally and 

explicitly adopted by the 

Council, as recommended by 

the Code. 

3 Agree to change as part of 

review of Treasury 

Management Practices and 

2019/20 Treasury 

Management Framework. 

Financial 

Services Officer 

– Treasury 

28/02/2019 30/09/2019 Outstanding 13/03/2019 The Treasury 

Management Strategy 

was presented to Council 

at its meeting on 26th 

February 2019. This 

document references 

compliance with the 

CIPFA Code of Practice 

and largely incorporates 

the four clauses, albeit 

not word-for-word. These 

specific clauses will be 

considered as part of the 

next update to treasury 

procedures. 

P
age 198



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 10 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

11. Treasury 

Management 

The 12 Treasury 

Management Practices in 

place be updated to comply 

with the latest version of the 

CIPFA Treasury 

Management in the Public 

Services: Code of Practice. 

3 Review of Treasury 

Management Practices 

(TMP) to be undertaken this 

autumn. 

Financial 

Services Officer 

– Treasury 

31/10/18 30/09/2019 Outstanding 13/03/2019 The Treasury 

Management Strategy 

was presented to Council 

at its meeting on 26th 

February 2019. This 

document references 

compliance with the 

CIPFA Code of Practice.  

The 12 Treasury 

Management Practices 

will be considered as part 

of the next update to 

treasury procedures. 

P
age 199



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 11 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

12. Use of 

Agency, 

Interim and 

Casual 

Workers 

Controls be strengthened to 

ensure that casual workers 

may not successfully seek 

employee status, for example 

by virtue of the length of their 

working relationship with the 

Council, or by arguing their 

working hours and patterns 

can be shown to be set and 

regular. 

2 Agree. Business as Usual HR 

colleagues will undertake 

periodic reviews. In line with 

Customer Connect the use of 

casual workers will be 

significantly reduced 

therefore mitigating current 

risk. 

Senior Human 

Resources 

Advisor 

January 

2020 

 Outstanding 25/02/2019 The due date for 

implementation of this 

recommendation has not 

yet been reached. 

The Senior Human 

Resources Advisor and 

the Humans Resources 

Manager both stated that 

a review is to be 

conducted of overtime 

claim forms in conjunction 

with the finance team to 

establish if there are any 

patterns of work for 

casual worker. 

Research conducted from 

this will identify where 

there may be concerns 

with working patterns etc. 

and this will be used as a 

basis to discuss with 

Leads moving forward. 

In the future further 

guidance/policy is to be 

developed around the use 

of casual workers. 

P
age 200



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 12 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

13. Use of 

Agency, 

Interim and 

Casual 

Workers 

In line with LGA advice, an 

assessment of female casual 

workers be included in any 

Equality Impact Assessments 

of pay and reward policies. 

2 Agree, these have not taken 

place previously. Given the 

fact that there have not been 

any quality claims in the past 

two years does not present 

an immediate risk. However 

as an EAI is required under 

the LGA we will commit to 

ensuring this is carried out in 

the future. 

Senior Human 

Resources 

Advisor 

January 

2020 

 Outstanding 25/02/2019 The due date for 

implementation of this 

recommendation has not 

yet been reached. The 

Senior Human Resources 

Advisor and the Humans 

Resources Manager both 

stated that current files 

will be used to compile 

this information and to be 

included in an EIA for pay 

and the reward 

statement; to be drafted 

early 2020. 

Additionally through the 

gender pay gap analysis, 

female workers are on 

average paid higher than 

male workers at SLDC. 

P
age 201



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 13 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 

Officers 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last 

Update 

Latest Response 

14. Use of 

Agency, 

Interim and 

Casual 

Workers 

Control over the use of 

agencies be centralised to 

ensure compliance with 

procurement legislation. 

2 Agree. There is one particular 

area of the Council that is 

heavily reliant on the use of 

agency. For this area it is 

proposed that on completion 

of Customer Connect this 

area is reviewed and options 

considered and a possible 

procurement exercise to be 

undertaken. Following 

completion of Customer 

Connect there will be minimal 

requirement for the utilisation 

of agency employees. Senior 

Management will be required 

to commit to the introduction 

of a strict agency process. 

Human 

Resources 

Manager 

January to 

June 2020 

due to 

Customer 

Connect 

demands 

 Outstanding 25/02/2019 The due date for 

implementation of this 

recommendation has not 

yet been reached. . The 

Human Resources 

Manager stated that the 

HR Team monitors the 

current use of 

contingency workers. 

There will be no review 

undertaken regarding a 

procurement exercise 

until the conclusion of 

Customer Connect. 

Following which a 

decision will be made 

regarding the use of CA’s. 

A decision will be made 

thereafter. 

  

P
age 202



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 14 

 

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS HAVE BEEN IMPLEMENTED  

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last Update Latest Response 

15. Awarding of 

Grants 

An overall review of the provision of 

financial aid be conducted that 

adequately addresses the risks 

relating to State Aid. 

2 Assistant Director 

(Resources) 

31/12/2018 31/03/2019 Completed 25/02/2019 The Solicitor to the Council stated 

that the review has been 

undertaken and a report presented 

to Cabinet at its February meeting, 

the outcome of which results in the 

potential risk arising from state aid 

being limited. This was 

corroborated from a review of the 

presented report. Cabinet Minute 

CEX/87 refers. 

16. Compliance with 

the Local Code of 

Corporate 

Governance 

The mapping of the Guidance 

behaviours and actions that 

demonstrate good governance in 

practice be mapped only to sub-

principles in the Local Code that 

pertain to the same principle to 

which the behaviour and action 

relate. 

2 Financial Services 

Manager 

Audit 

Committee 

19/04/2018 

Council 

22/05/2018 

31/12/2018 Completed 21/02/2019 The Financial Services Manager 

stated that the revised LCoG was 

presented to the Audit Committee 

on 5th December 2018. The papers 

were reviewed and the 

recommendation was seen to have 

been implemented. Appendix 3 to 

Minute AUD/41 refers. 

17. Procurement Revisions to the Council's 

Sustainable Procurement and 

Commissioning Strategy be 

considered in line with The National 

Procurement Strategy for Local 

Government in England 2018. 

3 Financial Services 

Manager 

31/01/2019  Completed 21/02/2019 The Financial Services Manager 

stated that the revised Sustainable 

Procurement and Commissioning 

Strategy was presented to Cabinet 

on 6th February 2019 and will be 

presented to Council on 26th 

February 2019. The papers were 

reviewed and the recommendation 

was seen to have been 

implemented. Appendix 1 to 

Agenda item 13 of the Council 

meeting refers. 

P
age 203



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 15 

 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due 

Date 

Revised  Due 

Date 

Status Last Update Latest Response 

18. Development 

Control 

The Administration and Technical 

team be trained to input relevant 

details onto Exacom. 

2 Development 

Management 

Group Manager 

30/06/2018 30/11/2018 Completed 22/02/2019 The Development Management 

Group and Economic Development 

Service Manager confirmed that a 

second team member has been 

trained on the Exacom system, 

thereby reducing the dependence 

on one individual. This was 

corroborated by the Technical 

Team Leader who underwent the 

training. 

19. Lake Services – 

Moorings and 

Encroachments 

A sample of amounts to be 

invoiced, as received from Lambert 

Smith Hampton, be challenged on a 

timely basis, and a record of such 

challenges be retained, such that 

reasonable assurance can be 

provided that amounts invoiced are 

in agreement with the verifiable 

data. 

2 Helen Smith, 

Financial Services 

Manager 

01/04/2019  Completed 06/03/2019 The Assistant Financial Services 

Officer confirmed that the 

spreadsheet received from LSH, 

entitled Annual Encroachments, is 

now being reviewed against details 

held on Integra, with any 

discrepancies queried with LSH. It 

was further confirmed that 

moorings details will also be 

checked once direct debit 

mandates are received in the new 

financial year. To corroborate this, 

the Annual Encroachments 

spreadsheet was reviewed, 

containing details of 460 

encroachments.  
 

 

--------------- 

P
age 204



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Tuesday, 9 April 2019 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19 

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable 

Report from:  Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Report Author: Peter Harrison - Internal Audit Manager (Director, TIAA Ltd) 

Wards:  Corporate Issue 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report provides a summary of the outcomes of the work of the internal audit 
provided by TIAA Limited for South Lakeland District Council for 2018/19 and 
includes the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s 
arrangements for risk management, governance and internal control in accordance 
with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 Members of the Audit Committee are asked to note: 

 (1) The Head of Internal Audit’s opinion of reasonable assurance on the 
Council’s overall systems of governance, risk management and internal 
control for the year ended 31st March 2019 set out in Appendix 1;  

 (2) The progress achieved in 2018/19 in delivering the Audit Plan and the 
outcomes of completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1; 

 (3) The Head of Internal Audit’s declaration of Internal Audit independence 
as required by the mandatory PSIAS; and 

 (4) The Head of Internal Audit’s declaration of conformance with the 
mandatory PSIAS. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 
Local Government Act. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the 
Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, internal control and governance processes, taking into account the 
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS). 

3.2 Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the Council’s 
senior management and to the Audit Committee on the systems of governance, risk 
management and internal control. 

3.3 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain internal control systems 
and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately managed and 
that outcomes are achieved. Management is responsible for the system of internal 

Page 205

Item No.14



control and should set in place policies and procedures to ensure that controls are 
operating effectively. 

 INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 

3.4 The purpose of this report is to give my opinion as the Head of Internal Audit for 
South Lakeland District Council on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
systems of risk management, governance and internal control from the work 
undertaken by Internal Audit for the year ended 31st March 2019. 

3.5 This report contributes to the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

3.6 In giving this opinion, it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute and it 
is not possible to give complete assurance that there are no major control 
weaknesses. My opinion is based on the work undertaken by Internal Audit during 
the year, including the outcomes of any follow up work undertaken. 

3.7 I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow me to 
give a conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management, 
governance and internal control. 

3.8 Twelve risk based audits have been completed in the year of which two have 
resulted in substantial assurance and ten have resulted in a reasonable assurance 
assessment. There were no reviews which resulted in a no assurance assessment.   

3.9 My opinion takes into account the outcomes of all audit work together with the 
management responses of the Council which I consider to have been appropriate 
and demonstrate the Council’s commitment to addressing the issues raised. 

3.10 I can also report that there has been no threat to the independence of internal audit 
that would impact on the provision of my annual opinion statement. 

3.11 My opinion is that I can provide reasonable assurance over the Council’s the systems 
of governance, risk management and internal control. 

3.12 The Annual Report at Appendix 1 shows the individual assurance opinions against 
each audit area. 

3.13 There have been no changes to the Annual Plan during the year, although the audit 
of DFG Grants did not take place as the Council did not draw down any of the 
additional Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) funding which was made available in the 
Autumn Budget 2017. 

 STATEMENT OF CONFORMANCE WITH PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT 
STANDARDS 

3.16 Internal audit conducts all its work using a risk based audit methodology which has 
been designed to ensure conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. I can confirm that all work has been carried out in accordance with these 
Standards. 

4.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 

4.1 Internal audit work has been carried out in accordance with the mandatory standards 
for internal audit. 

4.2 The work of internal audit is considered to be sufficient to provide an opinion on the 
systems of governance, risk management and internal control. 

4.3 There have been no threats to internal audit independence that would impact on the 
provision of an annual opinion statement. 

4.4 The annual opinion has concluded reasonable assurance over the systems of 
governance, risk management and internal control. 

Page 206



5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options; the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require 
that the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness 
of its risk management, internal control and governance processes, taking into 
account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS). 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements for 
governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of the 
Council’s strategic priorities. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 

Legal 

7.3 There are no direct legal implications to this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No      

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:  

 This report relates to a corporate governance issue and has no direct health, social, 
economic or environmental impacts.   

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:  

 This report relates to a corporate governance issue and has no direct equality or 
diversity impacts. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council does not comply 
with legislative requirements as 
laid out under the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015 

Adverse impact on the 
Council in respect of 
conformance with 
expected auditing 
standards and on the 
assurances delivered by 
internal audit regarding 
adequate and effective 
internal control 
arrangements. 

A complete and thorough 
self-assessment 
undertaken with 
supporting details to 
illustrate the effectiveness 
of internal audit against 
the PSIAS and LGAN 
requirements. 

Contact Officers 

Report Author:  Peter Harrison, Director, TIAA Limited. 

Page 207



Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19 including the Head of 
Internal Audit’s opinion. 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services N/A 

Section 151 Officer 25/03/2019 

Monitoring Officer N/A 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 25/03/2019 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 208



 

 

 2018/19  

 

 

 

Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District   

 
Internal Audit Annual Report 

March 2019 

 FINAL 

P
age 209



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
Page 1 

 

Internal Audit Annual Report 

 

INTRODUCTION 

This is the 2018/19 Annual Report by TIAA on the internal control environment 

at South Lakeland District Council. The annual internal audit report summarises 

the outcomes of the reviews we have carried out on the organisation’s 

framework of governance, risk management and control. This report is 

designed to assist the Council in making its annual governance statement. 

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT’S ANNUAL OPINION  

TIAA is satisfied that, for the areas reviewed during the year, South 
Lakeland District Council has reasonable and effective risk 
management, control and governance processes in place.  

This opinion is based solely on the matters that came to the 
attention of TIAA during the course of the internal audit reviews 
carried out during the year and is not an opinion on all elements of 
the risk management, control and governance processes or the 
ongoing financial viability or your ability to meet financial 
obligations which must be obtained by the South Lakeland District 
Council from its various sources of assurance. 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLANNED COVERAGE AND OUTPUT  

The 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan approved by the Audit Committee was for 190 

days of internal audit coverage in the year. During the year there were no 

changes to the Audit Plan, although the audit of DFG Grants did not take place 

as the Council did not draw down any of the additional Disabled Facilities 

Grant (DFG) funding which was made available in the Autumn Budget 2017.    

All the planned work has been carried out and the reports have been issued 

(Annex A). 

There was no work carried out which was in addition to the work set out in the 

Annual Audit Plan. 
 

 

 

ASSURANCE 

 

TIAA carried out 12 reviews, which were designed to ascertain the extent to 

which the internal controls in the system are adequate to ensure that activities 

and procedures are operating to achieve the Council’s objectives. For each 

assurance review an assessment of the combined effectiveness of the 

controls in mitigating the key control risks was provided. Details of these are 

provided in Annex A and a summary is set out below. 

Assurance Assessments Number of Reviews Previous Year 

Substantial Assurance 2 3 

Reasonable Assurance 10 8 

Limited Assurance - 1 

No Assurance - - 

The areas on which the assurance assessments have been provided can only 

provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss 

and their effectiveness is reduced if the internal audit recommendations made 

during the year have not been fully implemented. 
 

We made the following total number of recommendations on our audit work 

carried out in 2018/19.  

Urgent Important Routine 

- 22 19 

 

 

 

 

P
age 210



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
Page 2 

 

AUDIT SUMMARY 

Control weaknesses: There were no areas reviewed by internal audit where 

it was assessed that the effectiveness of some of the internal control 

arrangements provided ‘limited' or 'no’ assurance.  

Recommendations Made: We have analysed our findings/recommendations 

by risk area and these are summarised below. 

Risk Area Urgent Important Routine 

Directed - 11 4 

Compliance - 11 15 

Operational - - - 

Reputational - - - 

 

Operational Effectiveness Opportunities: One of the roles of internal audit 

is to add value and during the financial year we provided advice on 

opportunities to enhance the operational effectiveness of the areas reviewed 

and the number of these opportunities is summarised below. 

Operational 

8 

 

INDEPENDENCE AND OBJECTIVITY OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

There were no limitations or restrictions placed on the internal audit service 

which impaired either the independence or objectivity of the service provided. 

 

 

 

 

 

PERFORMANCE AND QUALITY ASSURANCE  

The following Performance Targets were used to measure the performance of 

internal audit in delivering the Annual Plan. 

Performance Measure Target Attained 

Completion of Planned Audits 100% 100% 

Audits Completed in Time Allocation 100% 100% 

Final report issued within 10 working days of 
receipt of responses 

  95%   83% 

Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards 

100% 100% 

Two out of twelve reports were not finalised within 10 days of receipt of 

management comments; this was due to clarification being required on 

management responses. 

Ongoing quality assurance work was carried out throughout the year and we 

continue to comply with ISO 9001:2015 standards. An independent external 

review was carried out of our compliance of the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS) in 2017 and in particular to meet the requirement of an 

independent five year review, the outcome confirmed full compliance with all 

the standards. Our work also complies with the IIA-UK Professional 

Standards.  

RELEASE OF REPORT 

The table below sets out the history of this Annual Report. 

Date Report issued: 25th March 2019 

P
age 211



 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
Page 3 

 

Annexes 

 

Annex A 

Actual against planned Internal Audit Work 2018/19 

 

System Type 
Planned 

Days 
Actual 
Days 

Assurance Assessment Comments 

Homelessness Assurance 15 15 Reasonable  

Business Continuity Assurance 10 10 Substantial  

Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers Assurance 15 15 Reasonable  

DFG Grants Assurance 5 0 N/A Review not required – additional DFG 

Funding was not drawn down. 

Information Governance Assurance 15 15 Reasonable  

Customer Connect Appraisal 10 10 Reasonable  

Cyber Security Assurance 8 8 Reasonable  

Procurement Assurance 15 15 Reasonable  

Budgetary Control Assurance 10 10 Reasonable  

Treasury Management Assurance 10 10 Substantial  

Health & Safety – Property Risks Assurance 15 15 Reasonable  

Housing Benefit Assurance 20 20 Reasonable  

Debtors Assurance 10 10 Reasonable  

Follow-up Follow up 12 12   

Audit Management Management 20 20   

 Total Days 190 185   

 

P
age 212



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Tuesday, 9 April 2019 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019/20 

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable 

Report from:  Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Report Author: Peter Harrison - Internal Audit Manager (Director, TIAA Ltd) 

Wards:  Corporate Issue 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 Internal Audit is required, under the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS), to prepare an annual risk based audit plan for approval by the 
Audit Committee. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit Committee:  

(1) Approves the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019-20 which is attached at 
Appendix 1.  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors describes internal auditing as “an 
independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and 
improve an organisation’s operations. Internal audit helps the Council to achieve its 
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluating and improving 
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.”  

3.2.  The Accounts and Audit Regulations requires the Council to undertake an adequate 
and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control 
in accordance with proper practices in relation to internal control. Proper Practices are 
now defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which became 
mandatory for all UK public sector internal auditors from 1st April 2013.  

3.3.  The PSIAS affirm the need for annual risk based audit plans to be developed in order 
that the Head of Internal Audit can form an annual opinion on the Council’s systems of 
risk management, governance and internal control.  

3.4  The draft Internal Audit Annual Plan attached at Appendix 1 has been prepared 
following review of corporate documents including the Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register, corporate plans and recent internal audit coverage 

4.0 Internal Audit Service Delivery 

Page 213

Item No.15



4.1 The PSIAS require that the Internal Audit plan sets out a high level statement of how 
the Internal Audit Service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the 
internal audit charter and how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities.  

4.2.  Internal Audit for South Lakeland District Council is delivered by TIAA Limited under a 
contractual arrangement since 1st April 2016.  

4.3.  Internal Audit supports the delivery of the Council Priorities as set out in the Council 
Plan by providing independent assurance over the arrangements in place across the 
Council to deliver priorities and objectives.    

4.4.  It is a requirement of the PSIAS that the Council has an Internal Audit Charter which 
has been approved by senior management and the Audit Committee. The Charter, 
approved by the Committee at its meeting in July 2017, sets out the arrangements for 
the delivery of the Internal Audit service to South Lakeland District Council (the 
Council). 

Roles of Management and of Internal Audit  

5.1  It is the role of management to establish effective systems of governance, risk 

management and internal controls in order to:  

 safeguard the Council’s resources and prevent fraud;  

 ensure the completeness and reliability of records;  

 monitor adherence to laws, regulations, policies and procedures;  

 promote operational efficiency demonstrate the achievement of value for 

money; and  

 manage risk.  

5.2  It is the responsibility of management to establish the checks and balances needed to 
confirm that their systems are working effectively, that all information within them is 
accurate, that they are free from fraud or error.  

5.3  Internal audit’s role is to provide assurance that management are undertaking the 
appropriate checks over their systems to confirm that they are working effectively.  It 
is not the role of internal audit to re-perform management’s checks or to undertake 
such checking on management’s behalf.    

5.4  In order to safeguard its independence, Internal Audit does not have any operational 
responsibilities and is not responsible for any of the decision making, policy setting or 
monitoring of compliance within the Council.     

6.0  Internal Audit Resources   

6.1  The Director of Resources (S151 Officer) has contracted with TIAA Limited to deliver 
190 days of Internal Audit time in 2019-20. This is deemed a sufficient number of audit 
days in which to provide an opinion on the systems of governance, risk and internal 
control in line with the PSIAS and in order to support the preparation of the Annual 
Governance Statement.  

6.2  The PSIAS also reflect the requirement for internal audit plans to be flexible in order to 
respond to new and emerging risks to the organisation. The Plan will be subject to 
regular review to ensure it remains appropriate and may be subject to revision. In this 

Page 214



event, revisions would be considered and agreed by the Assistant Director of 
Resources and reported to the Audit Committee, including the need for any additional 
audit resources if appropriate. Any request for significant consulting activity by Internal 
Audit would be approved by the Audit Committee in line with the requirements of the 
PSIAS.  

7.0  Categories of Internal Audit Work  

7.1  Corporate Reviews – these are reviews which are strategic in nature or which cut 
across the entire Council. These reviews are designed to provide assurance that the 
Council has effective governance and risk management arrangements to mitigate 
strategic risks.  

7.2  Departmental Risk-Based Audit Reviews – these reviews have been identified in 
consultation with senior management and following review of corporate plans and the 
Corporate Risk Register. These reviews are spread across service areas following a 
risk assessment to ensure that Internal Audit resources are targeted at the areas where 
the greatest benefit will be achieved.   

7.3  Financial System Reviews – A three-year programme has been devised which will 
ensure that each main financial system is reviewed in depth at least once every three 
years.    

7.4  Governance System Reviews – a provision is included for cyclical reviews of key 
governance systems.  

7.5  Computer Audit – the Plan includes provision for computer audit work which will 
provide assurance over the technical controls in place for key IT systems and 
processes.  

7.6  Audit Management, Advice and Guidance – capacity has been built into the Plan for 
audit management, planning and reporting. This also includes some provision for 
formal advice and guidance to all services across the Council.    

7.7  The follow up of previous audit requirements is a key requirement of the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards to provide assurance on the successful 
implementation of agreed recommendations. Where an audit has received a lower 
level assurance rating (i.e. partial or limited assurance) in the previous year, Internal 
Audit will now undertake a formal follow up of the management actions which have 
been undertaken to address the agreed audit recommendations; this will include 
formal interviewing, audit testing and reporting to provide senior officers and 
members with the required independent assurance that key areas for improvement 
address have been addressed. 

8.0 Alternative Options 

8.1 The production of a risk based audit plan is a key requirement of the PSIAS. There 
are no alternative options. 

9.0 Links to Council Priorities 

9.1 Internal Audit supports the delivery of the Council Priorities as set out in the Council 
Plan by providing independent assurance over the arrangements in place across the 
Council to deliver priorities and objectives. 

Page 215



10.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

10.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

Human Resources 

10.2 There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 

Legal 

10.3 There are no direct legal implications to this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

10.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No      

10.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:  

 This report relates to a corporate governance issue and has no direct health, social, 
economic or environmental impacts.   

Equality and Diversity 

10.6 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

10.7 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:  

 This report relates to a corporate governance issue and has no direct equality or 
diversity impacts. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Internal Audit coverage does not 

address the high risk areas of 

Council activity.   

Internal Audit coverage 

does not address the high 

risk areas of Council 

activity.   

Non-delivery of the agreed 

Audit Plan.  Unplanned 

work which arises in year 

which requires audit 

attention. 

The Council would be more 

vulnerable to risk. 

The Council does not 

receive adequate 

assurance over the 

internal control 

environment.   

Potential breach of the 

statutory requirement to 

maintain an adequate and 

effective system of internal 

control.   

Risk based annual audit 

planning.  

Regular progress reporting 

to senior management and 

Audit Committee each 

quarter.  

A degree of flexibility in 

the Plan to accommodate 

unplanned work. 

Page 216



Contact Officers 

Report Author:  Peter Harrison, Director, TIAA Limited. 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019-20 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services N/A 

Section 151 Officer 25/03/2019 

Monitoring Officer N/A 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 25/03/2019 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 217



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 218



 

 
 

Internal Audit 
Appendix 1 

 
App 

March 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

 Audit Strategy and Annual Internal Audit Plan 

 2019/20 

P
age 219



  

    

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
Page 2 

 

Overview 

Introduction 

The Audit Plan for 2019/20 has been informed by an updated audit risk assessment 

to ensure that planned coverage for the year is focussed on the key audit risks, and 

that the coverage will enable a robust annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion to be 

provided. 

Key Emerging Themes 

This year will be another challenging year for local authorities in terms of income, 

obligations and also the pressures on service delivery. We have identified a number 

of key areas which require consideration when planning internal audit coverage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adequacy of the planned audit coverage 

The reviews identified in the audit plan for 2019/20 support the Head of Audit’s 

annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 

framework of governance, risk management and control as required by TIAA’s 

charter. The reviews have been identified from your assurance framework, risk 

registers and key emerging themes. 

 

Internal Audit Plan 

Audit Strategy Methodology 

We adopt a proprietary risk based approach (GUARD) to determining your audit 

needs each year which includes reviewing your risk register and risk management 

framework, previous internal audit work for the organisation, the Regulatory 

Framework and assessment of South Lakeland District Council, external audit 

recommendations together with key corporate documentation such as your business 

and corporate plan, standing orders, and financial regulations. The Audit Strategy is 

based predominantly on our understanding of the inherent risks facing South 

Lakeland District Council and those within the sector and has been developed with 

senior management and Committee. 

Risk Prioritisation 

The Council has identified a rolling programme of audits that focus on its main 

financial and governance processes; these are set out at Annex A.  

Audit Strategy and Annual Plan 

Following the risk prioritisation review, the Audit Strategy has been updated and the 

Annual Plan (Annex B) sets out the reviews that will be carried out, the planned 

times and the scopes for each of these reviews.  

The Annual Plan will be subject to ongoing review and could change as the risks 

change for the organisation and will be formally reviewed with senior management 

and the Audit Committee mid-way through the financial year or should a significant 

issue arise. 

The overall agreed time for the delivery of the Annual Plan includes: research, 

preparation and issue of terms of reference, production and review of working 

papers and reports and site work. The Annual Plan has been prepared on the 

assumption that the expected controls will be in place.  

The total number of days required to deliver the Audit Plan is as agreed in the 

contract between TIAA and South Lakeland District Council. This number of days is 

fixed and it is TIAA’s responsibility to deliver the Audit Plan for this number of days. 

Where South Lakeland District Council agrees additional work the required number 

of days and the aggregate day rate will be agreed in advance with the Chief Finance 

Officer & Assistant Director of Resources and will be clearly set out in the terms of 

reference for the additional review(s). 

 Brexit – The Business Plan and Risk Register need to be stress-tested against continuing 
uncertainty, which may have knock-on impacts on recruitment and retention of staff and 
on procurement and suppliers. 

 Data Protection Act 2018 – this has a significant impact on how data is held and protected 
and could lead to an increase in access requests.  

 Cybercrime – all the indications are that there will be continued and more sophisticated 
attempts to disrupt and deny services often for no clear motive. 

 Property Compliance – an increased focus following Grenfell and other incidents requires 
effective processes and controls over legislative compliance relating to water hygiene, 
gas safety, fire risk assessments, asbestos management and electrical safety. 

 SLDC continues to implement its Customer Connect programme; one element of which 
is a fundamental reorganisation of the staffing structure to achieve savings and deliver 
services more effectively. 

 

P
age 220



 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
Page 3 

 

Audit Remit 

The Audit Remit (Annex C) formally defines internal audit’s purpose, authority and 

responsibility. It establishes internal audit’s position within South Lakeland District 

Council and defines the scope of internal audit activities. 

Reporting 

Assignment Reports: A separate report will be prepared for each review carried 

out. Each report will be prepared in accordance with the arrangements contained in 

the Terms of Reference agreed with TIAA and which accord with the requirements 

of TIAA’s audit charter and the IIA UK & Ireland standards.  

Progress Reports: Progress reports will be prepared for each Audit Committee 

meeting. Each report will detail progress achieved to date against the agreed annual 

plan. 

Annual Report: An Annual Report will be prepared for each year in accordance with 

the requirements set out in TIAA’s audit charter and the IIA UK & Ireland standards. 

The Annual Report will include our opinion of the overall adequacy and effectiveness 

of South Lakeland District Council’s governance, risk management and operational 

control processes. 

Other Briefings: During the year Client Briefing Notes, Benchmarking and lessons 

learned digests will be provided. These are designed to keep the organisation 

abreast of in-year developments which may impact on the governance, risk and 

control assurance framework. 

Assurance Mapping 

For each assurance review an assessment of the combined effectiveness of the 

controls in mitigating the key control risks will be provided. The assurance mapping 

process is set out in Annex D. 

Liaison with the External Auditor  

We will liaise with South Lakeland District Council’s External Auditor. Any matters in 

the areas included in the Annual Plan that are identified by the external auditor in 

their audit management letters will be included in the scope of the appropriate 

review. 

Performance 

The following Performance Targets will be used to measure the performance of 

internal audit in delivering the Annual Plan: 

Area Performance Measure Target 

Achievement of the 
plan 

Completion of planned audits. 100% 

Audits completed in time allocation. 100% 

Reports Issued 

Draft report issued within 10 working days of exit 
meeting. 

95% 

Final report issued within 10 working days of receipt 
of responses. 

95% 

Professional Standards Compliance with TIAA’s audit charter and the IIA UK 
& Ireland Standards. 

100% 

Conflict of Interest 

We are not aware of any conflicts of interest and should any arise we will manage 

them in line with TIAA’s audit charter and the IIA UK & Ireland standards, South 

Lakeland District Council’s requirements and TIAA’s internal policies. 

Limitations and Responsibility 

Substantive testing will only be carried out where a review assesses the internal 

controls to be providing ‘limited’ or ‘no’ assurance with the prior approval of South 

Lakeland District Council and additional time will be required to carry out such 

testing. South Lakeland District Council is responsible for taking appropriate action 

to establish whether any loss or impropriety has arisen as a result of the control 

weaknesses. 

Internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against 

misstatement or loss. The limitations on assurance include the possibility of one or 

more of the following situations, control activities being circumvented by the 

collusion of two or more persons, human error, or the overriding of controls by 

management. Additionally, no assurance can be provided that the internal controls 

will continue to operate effectively in future periods or that the controls will be 

adequate to mitigate all significant risks that may arise in future.  

The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management 

and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all 

strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be 

P
age 221



 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
Page 4 

 

relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, 

although the audit procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity 

has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control 

may not be proof against collusive fraud. 

Reliance will be placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to 

staff and to accounting records and transactions and to ensure the authenticity of 

these documents. 

The matters raised in the audit reports will be only those that come to the attention 

of the auditor during the course of the internal audit reviews and are not necessarily 

a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements 

that might be made. The audit reports are prepared solely for management's use 

and are not prepared for any other purpose. 

Audit Committee Responsibility 

It is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to determine that the number of audit 

days to be provided and the planned audit coverage are sufficient to meet the 

Committee’s requirements and the areas selected for review are appropriate to 

provide assurance against the key risks within the organisation. 

Release of Report 

The table below sets out the history of this plan. 

Date plan issued: March 2019 

P
age 222



  

    

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
Page 5 

 

Annex A: Three year rolling programme of main financial and governance systems  

 

Review Area 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Cash Receipting    

NNDR    

Risk Management   

Income Management – Car Parking   

Contract Management   

Main Accounting System   

Payroll   

Creditors   

Council Tax   

Performance Management   

Asset Management   

Insurances   

Corporate Governance – Compliance with Local Code   

Budgetary Control   

Treasury Management   

Housing Benefits   

Information Governance   

Procurement   

Debtors   

 

 

 

 

P
age 223



 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
Page 6 

 

Annex B: Annual Plan – 2019/20 

Audit Type Days Rationale and Scope 

Cash Receipting – Car Parking Assurance 10 Car parking income represents a significant proportion of the Council’s annual income.  

This review will focus on cash receipts for car parking, taking in to account collection, storage, 
banking and the insurance arrangements. It will also consider the controls in place around the 
increasing use of alternative payment methods, such as through mobile phones and other 
devices.   

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance 
audits. 

NNDR Assurance 15 SLDC issues approximately 8,000 National Non-domestic Rates bills each year.  

The review will consider the calculation and application of business rates, collection, business 
rate relief and refunds, interest and appeals.   

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance 
audits. 

Risk Management Assurance 5 This high-level review will consider the arrangements in place for the identification and 
management of risks, including the identification of controls and actions designed to mitigate 
risk. 

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance 
audits. 

Income Management  Assurance 10 The review will consider the arrangements for collecting and accounting for income received 

by the Council. 

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance 

audits. 

Contract Management Assurance 20 The review will consider the arrangements in place for managing major contracts and 
programmes including grounds and general maintenance, and property services. The review 
will include particular focus on the progressing of contractual arrangements for cyclical 
servicing and testing as highlighted in the Property Services review in 2018/19.   

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance 
audits. 

Main Accounting System Assurance 10 The review will assess procedures and controls within the main accounting systems to ensure 
that: 

 Control accounts and bank reconciliations are carried out regularly. 

 Transactions are transferred accurately from feeder systems. 

 The integrity and security of the main accounting system is maintained. 

 Responsibilities and processes for journal entries and year end processing are 
appropriately defined and allocated. 

 Transactions are accurately valued and allocated correctly within the general ledger. 

P
age 224



 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
Page 7 

 

Audit Type Days Rationale and Scope 

This audit will focus on the arrangements for the overall governance of the system and the 
controls and risks related to the general ledger. 

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance 
audits. 

Customer Connect Assurance 10 Significant investment is being made in the Council’s digital platform to provide more accessible 
and innovative means of communication and interaction with the public. The Council is 
undergoing restructuring to align with service delivery going forward. 

The review will consider the progress of the Customer Connect project, including project 
governance, timescales, milestones and overall implementation. 

ICT Network Security and Cybercrime Assurance 5 Organisations are increasingly reliant on ICT systems for everyday operations and service 
delivery.  

This review will assess the arrangements in place for maintaining the integrity of the computer 
network. This will include server configuration and patching, threat detection, change control, 
remote access, user administration and desktop control policies as well as examining 
supporting policy and procedural documentation. The review will also consider the 
arrangements for the pro-active identification, prioritisation and mitigation against cyber-crime.   

Empty Homes Assurance 10 One of the Council’s housing priorities is to reduce the number of empty homes reduced and 
to work with owners and housing providers to bring empty homes back into use. 

The review will consider the Council’s approach to dealing with empty homes including 
identification, intervention, assistance, performance and budget monitoring. 

ERDF Grant Assurance 10 SLDC is in receipt of ERDF funding of £4.67m for direct flood alleviation measures to the 
businesses on the Shap Road industrial estates and indirectly to over 1700 businesses 
throughout Kendal. As the accountable body for the ERDF grant, SLDC is legally and financially 
accountable for the effective management of the grant, will be required to submit ERDF claims 
and pay out grant funding to delivery and project partners. It will also be liable for any clawback 
of monies if it or any of its delivery partners breach the terms of the grant. 

The review will assess the extent to which the Council is complying with the terms of the grant 
funding.  

Data Protection Compliance Assurance 10 The review will consider how the Council can demonstrate that it meets its obligations under 
the Data Protection Act 2018 in handling, processing and storing data, and how it manages 
access requests. 

Leisure Services Assurance 10 SLDC entered into a ten year Leisure Partnership Agreement, beginning on April 1st 2014, with 
North Country Leisure (NCL), a Charitable Trust. From 1st April 2017, the contract transferred 
to GLL of which NCL had previously become a wholly owned subsidiary. GLL works with SLDC 
managing Kendal Leisure Centre, Ulverston Leisure Centre and Windermere Outdoor Centre.  

The review will consider the arrangements for: management of the leisure partnership contract 
in accordance with the Council’s contract management policy; the adequacy of controls in place 
for identifying, monitoring and management contractual (operation and strategic) risks; and the 
adequacy and effectiveness of controls in place to monitor and manage the contractor’s 
performance. 

P
age 225



 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
Page 8 

 

Audit Type Days Rationale and Scope 

Emergency Planning Assurance 10 The Council is a Category 1 emergency responder and plays a key role in the Cumbria 
Resilience Forum response to emergencies.  

The review will consider the arrangements in place for emergency planning including 
responsibilities, training, scenario testing, multi-agency working and lessons learned. 

Household Waste Collection Assurance 20 The Council has recently made changes to the way it collects and recycles household waste.  

The review will consider the arrangements in place for managing the Council’s domestic bins 
and recycling service including contractual arrangements, service standards, budget 
monitoring and performance.  

Follow-up Follow up 15 The review will provide an independent update on the implementation of internal audit 
recommendations and their current status. Follow up work will be on-going throughout the year 
and reported to each meeting of the Audit Committee. 

Management, Planning & Audit 
Committee Reporting/Support 

Management 20 This time includes: meeting client management, overseeing the audit plan, reporting and 
supporting the Audit Committee, liaising with External Audit and Client briefings (including fraud 
alerts, fraud digests and committee briefings). 

 Total days 190  

 
 

P
age 226



  

    

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
Page 9 

 

Annex C: Audit Remit  
 

Role 

The main objective of the internal audit activity carried out by TIAA is to provide, in an 

economical, efficient and timely manner, an objective evaluation of, and opinion on, the 

overall adequacy and effectiveness of the South Lakeland District Council framework of 

governance, risk management and control. TIAA is responsible for giving assurance to 

South Lakeland District Council “Governing Body” (being the body with overall 

responsibility for the organisation) on the adequacy and effectiveness of South Lakeland 

District Council risk management, control and governance processes. 

Scope 

All South Lakeland District Council activities fall within the remit of TIAA. TIAA may 

consider the adequacy of controls necessary to secure propriety, economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in all areas. It will seek to confirm that South Lakeland District Council 

management has taken the necessary steps to achieve these objectives and manage the 

associated risks. It is not within the remit of TIAA to question the appropriateness of policy 

decisions. However, TIAA is required to examine the arrangements by which such 

decisions are made, monitored and reviewed. 

TIAA may also conduct any special reviews requested by the board, Audit Committee or 

the nominated officer (being the post responsible for the day to day liaison with the TIAA), 

provided such reviews do not compromise the audit service’s objectivity or independence, 

or the achievement of the approved audit plan. 

Access 

TIAA has unrestricted access to all documents, records, assets, personnel and premises 

of South Lakeland District Council and is authorised to obtain such information and 

explanations as they consider necessary to form their opinion. The collection of data for 

this purpose will be carried out in a manner prescribed by TIAA’s professional standards, 

Information Security and Information Governance policies. 

Standards and Approach 

TIAA's work will be performed with due professional care, in accordance with the 

requirements of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors – UK & Ireland standards. 

Independence 

TIAA has no executive role, nor does it have any responsibility for the development,  

 

 

implementation or operation of systems. However, it may provide independent and 

objective advice on risk management, control, governance processes and related 

matters, subject to resource constraints. For day to day administrative purposes only, 

TIAA reports to a nominated officer within South Lakeland District Council and the 

reporting arrangements must take account of the nature of audit work undertaken. TIAA 

has a right of direct access to the chair of the board, the chair of the Audit Committee and 

the responsible accounting officer (being the post charged with financial responsibility). 

To preserve the objectivity and impartiality of TIAA’s professional judgement, 

responsibility for implementing audit recommendations rests with South Lakeland District 

Council management. 

Consultancy activities are only undertaken with distinct regard for potential conflict of 

interest. In this role we will act in an advisory capacity and the nature and scope of the 

work will be agreed in advance and strictly adhered to.  

Irregularities, Including Fraud and Corruption 

TIAA will without delay report to the appropriate regulator, serious weaknesses, 

significant fraud, major accounting and other breakdowns subject to the requirements of 

the Proceeds of Crime Act 2003. 

TIAA will be informed when evidence of potential irregularity, including fraud, corruption 

or any impropriety, is discovered so that TIAA can consider the adequacy of the relevant 

controls, evaluate the implication of the fraud on the risk management, control and 

governance processes and consider making recommendations as appropriate. The role 

of TIAA is not to investigate the irregularity unless commissioned to do so.

P
age 227



  

    

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
Page 10 

 

Annex D: Assurance Mapping  

Corporate Assurance Risks 

We consider four corporate assurance risks; directed; compliance; operational and 

reputational, and tailor the type of audit accordingly. For all types of audit we also 

taken into account value for money considerations and any linkages to the 

organisational Assurance Framework. The outcomes of our work on these corporate 

assurance risks informs both the individual assignment assurance assessment and 

also the annual assurance opinion statement. Detailed explanations of these 

assurance assessments are set out in full in each audit report. 

Assurance Assessment Gradings 

We use four levels of assurance assessment: substantial; reasonable, limited and 

no. Detailed explanations of these assurance assessments are set out in full in each 

audit report. 

 

Benchmarking 

Where a similar review is carried out at a number of our clients we will subsequent 

to the completion of the review at each of the clients we will where relevant provide 

a benchmarking and lessons learned digest. This digest will include Operational 

Effectiveness Matters for the South Lakeland District Council to consider. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Types of Audit Review 

The Annual Plan includes a range of types of audit review. The different types of 

review focus on one or more of the corporate assurance risks. This approach enables 

more in-depth work to be carried out in the individual assignments than would be 

possible if all four assurance risks were considered in every review. The suite of audit 

reviews and how they individually and collectively enable us to inform our overall 

opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the governance, risk and control 

arrangements is set out in the assurance mapping diagram. 

 

 

P
age 228



Document is Restricted

Page 229

Item No.17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 235

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 245

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Audit Committee 2018/19 Work Programme
	6 Audit Committee 2019/20 Work Programme
	7 Chair of the Audit Committee's Annual Report 2018/19
	Chair of the Audit Committees Annual Report 2018-19 - Appendix 1

	8 Review of Performance Management Framework and Risk Management Process
	Review of Performance Management Framework and Risk Management Process  - Appendix 1
	Review of Performance Management Framework and Risk Management Process  - Appendix 2

	9 Risk Management - Operational Risks
	Risk Management - Operational Risks  - Appendix 1
	Risk Management - Operational Risks  - Appendix 2

	10 External Auditor's Progress Report and Update
	11 Certification Work for South Lakeland District Council for Year Ended 31 March 2018
	12 External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council Year Ending 31 March 2019
	13 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19
	Internal Audit Progress Report April 2019 - Appendix 1
	Internal Audit Progress Report April 2019 - Appendix 2a
	Internal Audit Progress Report April 2019 - Appendix 2b
	Internal Audit Progress Report April 2019 - Appendix 2c
	Internal Audit Progress Report April 2019 - Appendix 2d
	Internal Audit Progress Report April 2019 - Appendix 2e
	Internal Audit Progress Report April 2019 - Appendix 2f
	Internal Audit Progress Report April 2019 - Appendix 2g
	Internal Audit Progress Report April 2019 - Appendix 3

	14 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19
	Internal Audit Annual Report 2018-19 - Appendix 1

	15 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019/20
	Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019-20 - Appendix 1

	17 Customer Connect Programme Management
	Customer Connect Programme Management  - Appendix 1
	Customer Connect Programme Management  - Appendix 2


